AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF VARUN
BEVERAGES LIMITED AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

» VARUN BEVERAGES (NEPAL) PRIVATE LIMITED

» VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

> OLE SPRING BOTTLERS PRIVATE LIMITED (STEP-DOWN SUBSIDIARY)
> VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO S.A.

» VARUN BEVERAGES (ZAMBIA) LIMITED

> VARUN BEVERAGES (ZIMBABWE) (PRIVATE) LIMITED

» LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED



Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt, Lid,

Balance sheet as at 31" December, 2021

Indian GAAL Indlan GAAT IND AS - Adj INIY &Adj Post Ind AS Post Ind AS
Note NIR NPR NPR NPR NFR NFR
M December 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Assets e —— - - — e ]
1) Non - Currenl Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1A 3,373,747,916 3,465,806,417 542,347,216 567,135,328 3,916,005,133 4,032,941,745
(b) Capital Work In Progress 18 1,509,897 151,626,925 L - 1,509,897 151,626,925
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 2 = 28,417,505 (5,712,389) 22,705,116
(d) Other Non - Current Assels 3 138,844,541 141,587,896 - - 138,844,541 141,587,896
Total Non - Current Assets 3,514,102,355 3,787,438,742 542,347,216 561,422,938 4,056,443,571 4,348 861,680
2) Current Assels
(a) Inventories 4 650,773,706 440,523,463 - - 650,773,706 440,523,463
(b) Financial Assets
(1) Trade Receivables 5 194,644,164 160,093,524 (25,901,930) (21,675,151) 168,742,234 138,418,373
(if) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 36,045,302 465,253,122 2 " 36,045,302 465,253,122
(iti) Bank Balances Other Than (ii) above 7 1,849,510,366 882,907,329 - - 1,849,510,366 882,907,329
(iv) Others 8 49,657,164 24,042,161 ; S 49,657,164 24,042,161
(c) Current Tax Assels (Net) 9 17,737,325 11,873,253 - - 17,737,325 11,873,253
i) Other Current Assets 10 95,427,733 131,598,246 : - 95,427,733 131,598,246
Total Current Assets 2,893,795,761 2,116,291,097 (25,901,930) {21,675,151) 2,867,893,831 2,094,615,946
—Total Assets 6,407,898,116 5,903,729,839 516,445,286 539,747,787 6,924.343,402 6,443,477,626
Equity & Liabilitics
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 1 1,080,000,000 1,080,000,000 = - 1,080,000,000 1,080,000,000
(b) Other Equity 12 1,184,016,695 2,073,160,223 412,437,872 438,781,140 1,596,454,566 2,511,941,363
Total Equity 2,264,016,695 3,153,160,223 112,437,872 438,781,140 2,676.454.566 3,591,941,363
Liabilities
1) Non - Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings = = 0 [1] 1] 0
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities s - 89,886,578 86,123,697 89,886,578 86,123,697
(b) Provisions 13 60,484,002 94,569,889 - = 60,484,092 94,569,889
{c) Deferred Tax Liabilities 2 124,167,723 8,107,877 132,275,600
(d) Other Non - Current Liabilities 14 - - - - - =
Total Non - Current Liabilties 184,651,815 94,569,889 97,994,455 86,123,697 282,646,270 180,693,586
2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 111,176,750 4,713,024 2 - 111,176,750 4,713,024
(ii) Trade Payables 16 1,083,154,261 1,314,317,242 = - 1,083,154,261 1,314,317,242
(iii) Other financial Liabilities 17 891,394,543 674,504,760 5,570,009 14,400,000 896,964,552 688,904,760
{b) Other Current Liabilities 18 1,868,776,976 658,341,237 - 5 1,868,776,976 658,341,237
(c) Provisions 13 4,727,077 4,123,463 442,950 142,950 5,170,027 4,566,413
(d) Current Tax Liability (Net) 19 - = = = = -
Total Current Liabilties 3,959,229,606 2,655,999,727 6,012,959 14,842,950 3,965.242.565 2,670,842,677
Total Liabilities 4,143,581 421 2,750,569,616 104,007,414 100,966,647 424?,% 2.851.536.263
Total Equity & Liabilities 6,407 ,898,116 5,903,729,839 516,445,286 539,747,787 6,924,343, 402 b,443,477,626
In Terms of Our Report of Even Date Annexed
SUBHASH & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
CA. 5. K. Jhunjhunwala Distor hecton

Partner
Place: Kathmandu
Dated: 2022-01-21




Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pyt Lid.
Profit & Loss For The Period Ended n* December, 2021
Indian GAAP Indian GAAP IND AS - Adj IND AS - Adj Post Ind AS Past Ind AS
Note NPR NPR NI'R NPR NPR NFR
31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 202131 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Income
1 Revenue From Operations 20 7.871,494,595 6,266,785,567 . = 7,871,494,595 6,266,785,567
11 Other Income pat 196,854,763 429,405,496 - = 196,854,763 429,405,496
Branch Transfer
m Total Income (I + 1) 8,068,349,358 6,696,191,063 - - 8,068,349,358 6,696,191,063
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 2 2,700,101,864 2,037.210,419 - - 2,700,101,864 2,037,210,419
(b) Excise Duty 1,412,927,661 971,794,888 - - 1412927661 971,794,888
(c) Purchase of Stock in Trade 23 134,190 69,498 = - 134,190 69498
(d) Changes in inventories of finished goods,
stock-in-trade & WIP el (20,298,707) (33348,198) - - (20.298,707) (BM8198)
(e) Employee Benefits Expense 5 461,353,340 425902,994 - - 461,353,340 425,902,994
(f) Finance Costs 26 236,779,935 182,970,401 9,332,890 9,790,383 246,112,824 192,760,784
() Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 277 384,110,507 315,360,315 24,788,112 20,089,445 408,898,619 335,449,759
(h) Other Expenses 28 2,478,267,54 1,949,148,333 {10,173,221) (10,929,435) 2,468,094,313 1,938,218,898
Total Expenses (IV) 7,653,376,322 5,859,108,649 23,947,781 18,950,393 7677324103 5878.059,042
V  Profit/(loss) Before Prior Period ltems (ITI-IV) 114,973,036 837,082,414 (23,047,781) (18,950,393) 391,025,256 18132021
V1 Prior Period ltems 29 . . . i - - =
v MV{’“’;L"‘"’ Tax (V-V1) 414,973,036 337082414 (23,947,781) (18,950,393) 391,025,256 818,132,021
Eamnings Before Interest, Tax, Depn &
Amortization (EBITDA) = 839,008,715 906,007,633 10173221 10,929,435 849,181,936 916,937,068
VI Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 107,022,228 126,014,810 . - 107,022,228 126,014,810
(2) Adjustment of Tax Related to Earlier Periods 558,509,108 171,373,327 - - 558,509,108 171373327
(3) Deferred Tax 152,585,228 44,602,098 2,395488 1.595,381 154980716 46197479
Total Tax Expenses 818,116,564 341,990,235 2,395,488 1,595,361 820,512,052 343,585,616
X Profit (Loss) For the Year (VII-VIIT) (403,143,528) 495,092179 (26,343.268) (20,545,774) (429,486,796) 474,546,405
X OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 30
Al i ifi i
(i) Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans = - - = c -
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified < : R - 3
toP&L i
B ltem ill lassifi T
Other Comprel ive Income for the Year, Net of Tax - A & . -
yj Total Comprehensive Income For The Year, (403,143,528) 495,092,179 (26,343,268) (20,545,774) (429,486,796) 474,546,405
——Netof Tax (DG)
In Terms of Our Report of Even Date Annexed
SUBHASH & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANEF
Direc Director
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Lid.
Gummary of Significant Accounting Policies & Other Explanatory
Information on The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year

Ended 31% December, 2021
s —Indian GAAP __ indian GAAP INDAS-Ad]___INDAS-Adj Post Ind AS Post Ind AS
Note NFPR NFR NFR NFR NFR NPR
TA) Froperty, plant 3nd equipment 31 December 202131 December 2020 _31 December 207131 December 202031 December 217131 December P2,
i s RN.1A 3373747916 3,465,806,417 542,347,216 567,135,328 3,916,095.133 4,032,941,745
ital work |
18y Capilsh work In progress RN. 1B 1,509.897 151,626,925 - - 1,509,897 151626925
2. Deferred Tax Assela/(Liability) (Net)
Unabsorbed Depn & Carry Forward Losses -
Provision For Doubtful g:u. . Derﬂerrd Tax e (136,141,347) (120,026,016) (12.931,930) 9.691,086) (149,073.277) (129717,102)
Provision For Retirement Benefils - Deffered T. 185,768 130,090,167 4,824,053 3,978,697 5,109,821 134,068,864
- Ie78% 18353354 o ___ nsmme 1833
{124,167,723) 28,417,505 (8,107,877) (5.712.389) 32,275,600) 22,705,116
Capital advances
- - 134,283,903 137,548,113
Less: Provision for Doubtiul Advances e R ~ = - = &
37, = Pl 1 903 137,548,113
Advances other than capital advances 134,283,903 137,548,113 34,283,
(8} Security Deposits 4,560,638 4,039,783 - 4.560.638 4,039,783
(b) Advances o Related Parties
(¢ ) Other Advances i 2 ' . e i
138,044,541 141,587,89% - - 138,844,541 141,567,896
4. Invenlories
(a) Raw material 381,823,069 205,207,573 . - 381,623,069 205,207,573
{b) Raw Maierial in transit i 2,470,829 - - - 2,470,829
(c) Work-in-progress 5,496,865 BAS,892 - - 5,496,865 845,892
(d) Intermediate goods
(¢) Finished goods 110,159,642 94,511,908 - - 110,159,642 94,511,908
(N Stores and spares 153,754,129 137,487,261 - - 153,204,129 137,487,261
650,773,706 #0,523,463 - . 650,773,706 430,523,463
5. Irade receivables
Trade Receivable, Considered Good - Unsecured 5,608 867 6,074,209 - - 5,608,867 6,074,209
Trade Receivable, Considered Good - Secured 169,035,298 154,019.315 (25,901,930) (21,675,151) 163,123,367 132,344,164
Trade Recelvable - Credit Impaired 1.428.840 5,096,636 25,901,930 21,675,151 27,330,771 7,771,787
196,073,005 166,190,160 - - 196,073,005 166,190,160
() Allowances For Expected Credit Losses (1,428,840) (6,096,636) (25,901,930} (21.675.151) (27,330,771) (27,771,
194,644,164 160,093.524 (25.901,930) (21,675,151 168,742,234 138,418,373
Vi
Balance with banks:
= On current accounts M.636,776 14,046,750 - - 636,776 14,046,750
- Deposils with original maturity of less than 3 months - 450,000,000 - - - 450,000,000
Cheques,/drafts on hand
Cash on hand 1,408,526 1,206,372 - - 1,408,526 1,206,372
36,045,302 465,253,122 - - 36,045,302 465,253,122
al
Deposits with original maturity > 3 months but <12 months * 1,849,510.366 882,907,329 = - 1,849,510,366 882,907,329
1,849,510,366 832,907,329 - - 1,849,510,366 §52,907,329
*Pledged as security with Banks & Statutory Authorities
nancial
Interest accrued on:
Term deposts 30,624,314 15,129,626 . = 30,624.314 15,129,626
oy 5,022,6M 4,547,118 - - 5,022,634 4,547,118
s vable 14,010,216 4,365,417 - - 14,010,216 4,365,417
49,657,164 24,042,161 - - 49,657,164 24,042,161
17,737,325 11,873,253 - - 17,737,325 11,873,253

9, Current Tax Assels
Advance Tax (Net of Provisions)




Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.
Gummary of Significant Accounting Policies & Other Explanatory
Information on The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year

Ended 31" December, 2021
e -
Indian GAAP Indian GAAFP IND AS - Ad.l' IND A_S.- Adj Post Ind AS Post Ind AS
Note NFPR NPR NPR NFR NPR NFR
P 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 202131 December 2020 31 December 22131 December 2020
10, Other Current Assets e e e e e e
(Unsecured Considered Good, Unless Otherwise Stated)
Other Advances:
"-’“P“’Y'“": - 5,667,776 625770 - . 5,667,776 6257727
Carpiacions & BUl 65,643,967 90,038,396 - . 65,643,967 90,008,396
¥ k 4,497,915 13,397,500 - - 4497915 13,397 500
Balance With Statutory /Government Authorities . 9,007,800 N - - 9,007,800
Othe 19,618,076 12,896,823 - - 19,618,076 12,896 823
95.!2?23_3_ 1:2.,59!,146 - = 95,427,733 131,598,246
11. Equity Shi ital
Authorised Share Capital
3,380,451 Equity Shares of "1000/- Each 3:280,451,000 3.380,451,000 3,380,451,000 3,380,451,000
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid - Up
100,000 Ordinary Shares of "1000/- Each
8,000 Bonus Shares of 1000/ - Each 1,080,000,000 1,080,000,000 - . 1,080,000,000 1,080,000,000
T 080,000,000 T 080,000,000 " = 1,080,000,000 1,080,000,000
i ,0BO,000, , —  —
Revaluation Reserve , = H - 3 = *
Balance At Beginning of Reporting Period/Year 2 =
Add: Transferred during the year* = =
Balance at the End of the Year - = = - = i
Securities Premium Reserve
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 53,600,356 53,600,356 - - 53,600,356 53,600,356
Less: Amount Utilised for Share Issue Expenses 3EE
Balance at the End of the Year 53,600,356 53,600,356 - - 53,600.356 53600356
Capital Reserve ” - 88,071,842 83,071,842 88,071,842 8,071,842
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance At Beginning of the Year 2,019,559,867 1,848,467,688 350,709,299 371,255,073 2,370,269,165 219,722,761
Less: Transfer 1o Debenture Redemption Reserve
Less: Dividend Paid (461,700,000) (307,800,000) (461,700,000 (307,800,000)
Less: Taxes on Dividend Paid (24.300,000) (16,200,000) (24.300,000) (16,200,000)
Add: Profit For the Year (403,143,528) 495,092,179 (26,343,268) (20,545,774) (429,486,796) 4’?4,5_4&
Balance at the End of the Year 1,130,416,339 2,019,559,867 _S_ﬂ,lbﬁ.ﬂﬂll 350,709,299 1,454,782, 369 2,370,269,166
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Diff. Account
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Additions made during the year
Less: Amortised during the year
Balance at the end of the year i e =
1,184,016,695 2,073,160.223 412,437,872 438,781,140 1,596,154,566 2,511,941,363
. Financial Liabiliti
Loan From Others : - 0 0 0 0
Lease Liabilities = - 85,886,578 86,123,697 89,886,578 86,123,697
= - 9,886,578 86,123,697 B9 886,578 86,123,697
13, Provisions
Non - Current
Gratuity 39,096,293 74,474,646 2 i 39,006,203 74,478,646
Compensated Absences 237,799 20,005,243 z - 21,387,799 20,095,243
50,484,052 94,569,889 - - 60,454,092 94,569,859
Current
Gratuity g . - = - -
Compensated Absences A AL 4123463 442,950 442,950 5,170,027 4,566,413
A72.077 410463 442,950 112,950 5,170,027 4566413




Varun Beverages (Sepall vt LI

Sanwiars of Sapmitont Advuniing feliioes & Other Taplanatin
1 on The Sandal Timaneial Satemwnts Fur The Ycar

Ended M7 Docemlsr, 2021

Indian GAAP Indian GAAP IND AS - A INTYAS - Adj Post Ind AS Poat Ind 4%
Note NPR NTR TR TR NTR N

31 December 2021 31 December 2030 31 Decrmacr 2021 3 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
1 v —— TCEMber 20N

14. Other Non - Current Liabilties

Pt iaom dor Casmtingend Luabulity (Net of 1aa paid under protest)

15. Cumrent boarroswings

Lourms rpayuble on demand from

A Body Corporate (unsocured”

Banks - Working Caputal Facilibes (Secured)
Banks - Working Capital Facilitves Unsecured)

16. Trade Payables
Trade Payalbles

Tots! Outranding Dues to Micro Frierprises & Small Enterprses

Tota! outsanding dues of creditors other than
micr enterprises ke small enterprises

17. Other Financial Liabilities

Current Maturiiios of Lang Term Debts
Current Matuntios of Lease Liabiliies
Interest Aceruod But Not Due on Borrewings
Pavable lor Capital Expend imun:

Enmiplovee lelated ['4y ables

Linpaid Dividend

RG Comimission Payably 1o Parent Company
Security Deposiis

18. Other Current Lisbilities
Advanees From Cuslomers
Statutory Dues Payable

19. Current Tax Liabllties (Net)
Provisien For Income Tax (Nel of Tanes Maid)

20. Revenur From Operations
Revenue From Oparations (Gross)
Sale of Mroducts

Other Opersling Revenue

21 Other Income
Interest On

= Bank Depumity

= (hors

Nt Gain on Forergn Curvency Transactions & Tranalalions

Excens Prominins Wrnlien lack
Coarn o Sabe of Fivead Assets Net)
Miscellancous

22 Comt of Materials Consumed

Raw Material & Packing Material Consumed
Invenies a1 begnning of the year

Purchases duning the year [net)

Sold during the year
Inventorus al end of the vear

11176750 L0
M176750 471304 .
& 111,176,750 4,713,004
111,176,750 4,713,004 =
HN7242
1.083.154.261 131831742 . ) Lvea ki
— 1,083 EITEIRAT)
1.083 154361 13101720 - - Lo 1N L
j : ” 14400000 3,970,000 14,400,000
1A 530 10sass - a0 30 SN
u:v.‘)n 0T : b AGLIN
ST VAN e i
Pty Sor.50000 . . 461,700,000 307.800,000
24 m L ) . 369.424,784 329,071,001
R LU 570,009 14,400,000 396,964,552 $88,904,760
TLTUA 1 11118969 1343429
1 8% A5 0 bt W, e 1,856,658, 006 B4, 906,986
LA, VAL 27 2 1,068,776,976 658,341,237
NN S T e . 849,309 364 6,256,842,442
i 1A14) 10 - . 185,00 10,143,126
7 AT a8 S 43k THS 447 - - 7871494, 595 6,266,788, 547
LY L L X ) . 6,560,961 63,700,904
12762.000 13179430 . 12.762,000 13,179,630
209,387 s39m . . 2,009,387 897
TLISS M oy - L2353 M7
1.2 T - - 1,208 74250
21,728,767 351,629,604 . . 21,728,767 331,629,604
196 854 763 429,405,456 . v 196,854,763 429,405,459
———
207 578,402 3404895 207,678,402 24,1409%
1570576 94 1.966 843 025 21B70.578, 954 1,966 843,026
3.078,255,39% 2,250,991,9%82 x m 3,078,255,356 2,250,991,
[SAH,007) £,103,181 - . . (5.844.607) 610,161
181,996,139 207 478 402 343,998,1%9 07,678,402
2700101 864 207,210,415 % - 2,700,101 210415




Beverages (Nepal) Pot. Lid.

Y Sgticant Accounting Polies & Other Explanatory

. o on The dal Financial St For The Year
Ended 31" December, 0
m— -
— Indian CAAP Indian GAAP IND AS - Adj IND AS - Adj Post Ind AS Post Ind AS
Note NFR NPR NPR NFR NFR NFR
31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 Dec 2021 December 2020 Dec 2 D 2020
e A Ta Cools emt er 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Beverages
Onbet 1341 69498 - - 134190 _ 69498
134,190 69,49 = m 134,190 69,498
24 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods
As Al the Beginning of The Year
Finished Goods
54 : 72,009,601
Siaie Cooils ,511,5_!!1 72,009,601 94,511, gus G
Work In Progress 815, ) 845,892 -
S - - % 357 500 72,009,601
As At the Olosing of The Year CRERELE gl DL B
Finished Goods
Intermediate Goods 101 12 94,511,908
iate 1]0.]59.?42 94,511,908 110, 59,?1 it
Work bty 5,496,865 __Bs89 5,496,865 845,892
115,656,507 55,357,500 > = 115,656,507 95,357.800
(20,298,707 (13,345,198) - - __(20.298,707) (23,348198)
Exise Faid 1,412,977, 661 971,794,888 - - 1,412,927,661 971,794,888
1,412,977,661 971,794,888 - - 1,412,927,561 971,794,888
2. Employee Benefits Expense _— me-
Salried & Wapes Q679,730 385,909385 2 . 016,791,730 365,909,385
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 21,055,260 12,056,418 i - 11,055,260 12,056,418
Staff Wellare Expenses 23,506,350 27,937,191 - 23,506,350 27,937.151
461,353,340 425,902,994 - = 461,353,340 425,902,994
26. Finance Costs
Interest Om:
Term Loans - = - - - i
Working Capital Facilities 22,905,186 6220422 - - 22,905,186 6320422
Financial Liabilities - = 9,332,590 9,790,383 9,332,890 9,790,383
Others 181,453,175 149,763469 - - 181,453,175 149,763,463
Other Barrowing Costs:
Processing Fees 1160,958 1,489,010 # = 2,160,958 1,489,010
Bank Guaraniee Fees to Others 30,260,615 15,397 500 - - 30,260,615 25,397,500
Bank Guarantee Fees to Parent Company - - 2 z = =
236,779,935 182,570,401 9,312,890 9,790,383 246,112,824 192.760.784
27, Depreciation & Amartisation Exp
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 384,110,507 315360315 24,788,112 20,089,445 408,898,519 335,449,759
Amortisation of Intangible Assets o —
34110507 315,360,315 24,788,112 20,089,485 308,856,619 335,449,759




129. Prior Period Items
Depreciation of Leasehold Land for Earlier Years

30, Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans
IT relating to items that will not be reclassified to P & L

peverages (Nepal) Pyt L1d.
of Significant Accounting Policies & Other Explanatory
nformation on The dalone Financial S For The Year
Wg' December, 2021
m—
A= v lndil.:lanl’ %ﬂl GAAP IND AS - Ad| IND AS - Adj Post l_nd AS I’nsl_ln_d AS
NFR NFR NFR NFPR NPR
31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
W%m — b — —
power and _ 189,686,324 153,167,350 4 - 189,686,324 153,167,350
Repair 10 “';‘;" Equipment 104,274,337 93,049,793 ; - 104,274,337 93,049,793
Repair to Bulldings 2052659 26,880,020 : - 20,526,599 26,880,020
Repair to Othe ik 21,9519 15,055,327 : ; 21,905,192 15,055327
Consumption Spares 52,132,885 41,536,839 : - 52,132,885 41,536,839
e 25,451,437 2543993 {14,400,000) (14,400,000) 11,051,437 11,009,923
Rales and Taxes 465,664,198 875,29 : . 465,664,198 875,290
Irarine X 13,328,947 20,428,132 : - 13,328,947 20,428,132
Printing and stationery 1,654,736 2573937 " = 1,654,736 2,573,937
Communication 3,593,995 3543677 5 . 3,593,995 3,543,677
Travelling and Conveyance 23,188,339 17,908,241 z . 23,188,339 17,908,241
Payment to the Auditors As
Audit & Reviews 2,175,000 1,700,000 : . 2,175,000 1,700,000
Taxation Matters
Other Matters
Reimbursement of Expenses
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 10,699,972 11,103,298 - - 10,699,972 11,103,298
Lease and hire charges . = . i . =
Security and service charges 17,389,151 20973123 . - 17,389,151 20973123
Professional charges and consultancy 14,588,886 12,554,759 = - 14,588,886 12,554,759
Bank charges 2,757,856 2250327 - % 2,757,856 2,250327
Adverti and sales p 114,944,575 286,880,555 2 114,944,575 286,880,555
Meeting and conference 624,589 51,735 - - 624,589 51,735
Freight, octrol and insurance paid (net) 196,200,141 363,671,221 = # 396,200,141 363,671,221
Delivery vehicle running and mainlenance 49,220,829 46,075,285 - - 49,220,829 46,075,285
Distribution expenses 69,732,869 60,420,966 - - 69,732,869 60,420,966
Loading and unloading charges 23,725,609 17,878,002 . - 13,725,609 17,878,002
Donations 671,000 306,100 - 671,000 306,100
Property, Plant & Equipment Wrilten off - - - - - -
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) - - - -
Bad Debts & Advances Written Off - = - - - -
Allowance for Doubtful Debts . - 4,226,779 3470565 4,226,779 3,470,565
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translations - - - < - .
General office and other miscellaneous expenses 240,012,763 247,004,512 - 240,012,763 247,004,512
Management Fee 614,117,305 477,819,921 = - 614,117,305 477,819,921
2,478,267.534 1,949,148,33 (10,173,221) no.E.csn 2,468,094,313 1,938,218,898
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT www.deloitte.com
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PVT) LTD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Varun Beverages Lanka (Pvt) Ltd (“the Company”) and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiary (“Group”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described to in the basis for qualified opinion section of our report, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects of the financial position of the Company
and the Group, as at 31 December 2021, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Since 2013 to 2017 Borrowing costs and exchange losses amounting to Rs. 658.8 million incurred to acquire Property, Plant
and Equipment (Building and Plant and Machinery) have been capitalized under cost of such items in these financial
statements. This is not in compliance with the requirements of Sections 17,30 and 25 of the SLFRS for SMEs. Due to the
misstatement, the profit of the Company and Group for the year ended 3 1st December 2021 is understated by Rs.24.2 million
(2020- Rs.24.2 million) and accumulated loss of the Company and Group as of 3 1st December 2020 and 3 1st December 2021
have been understated by Rs.511.8 and Rs.487.6 million respectively. Further the net book value of property plant and
equipment as of 31st December 2020 and 31st December 2021 of the Company and the Group have been overstated by
Rs.511.8 and Rs.487.6 million respectively. The misstatements represent the net impact of borrowing costs and exchange
losses capitalized and the depreciation charged on the capitalized costs.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of
Ethics) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. At the date of ‘this auditor’s report, other
information was not made available to us.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium Sized Entities (SLFRS for SME’s), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s and Group’s financial reporting process.

M. Basheer Ismail FCA, S. Lilani Jayasuriya FCA, Gerard J. David FCA, F. Maryam Marikkar FCA, M. Sharnila J. Henry FCA,
R. Hilmy M. Minfaz ACA, Sarala Y. Kodagoda ACA, M. Manzeer M. Muzawwir ACA



- Deloitte.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s and
Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statcments represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the cntities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 163(2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007; we have obtained all the information and explanations

that were required for the audit and as far as appears from our examination, except for the matters referred in the basis for
qualified opinion paragraph, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company.

%'m@@ e Nj

SIMSASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Colombo -
31 January 2022 fen 6




Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note

4

Other income 6
Less: Expenditure

Administrative expenses 1
Selling and distribution expenses 2
Profit / (loss) from operations

Finance and other costs 8
Profit / (loss) before tax 7
Income tax expense/ (reversal) 9

Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income/ (expensc)

Actuarial gain / (loss) on employee benefit

obligations

Deferred tax on actuarial gain/loss

Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the

year

Attributable to :

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Company
Year Ended
31.12.2021

Rs.

3,505,514,053

(2,233,622,217)

Group
Year Ended
31.12.2021

Rs.

5,176,155,520

Company
Year Ended
31.12.2020
Rs.

2,691,094,526

(2,960,812,919) (1,749,124,028)

Group
Year Ended
31.12.2020

Rs.

4,032,505,846

(2,342,564,090)

1,271,891,836

240,068,713

2,215,342,601

263,421,148

941,970,498

101,797,214

1,689,941,756

126,471,760

1,511,960,549

2,478,763,749

1,043,767,712

1,816,413,516

(172,892,373) (204,651,901) (145,886,830) (195,142,114)
(1,048,266,886) (1,675,633,785) (938,931,506) (1,357,032,424)
290,801,291 598,478,063 (41,050,624) 264,238,978
(55,452,480) (97,930,288) (73,908,144) (186,876,643)
235,348, 810 500,547,775 (114,958,767) 77,362,335
(35,442,710) (176,332,591) 80,792,019 26,955,787
199,906,101 324,215,184 (34,166,748) 104,318,122
19,162,385 29,202,813 4,104,826 4,941,332
(2,874,358) (3,199,668) (615,724) (849,945)
216,194,128 350,218,330 (30,677,646) 108,409,509
216,194,128 350,218,330 (30,677,646) 108,409,509
216,194,128 350,218,330 (30,677,646) 108,409,509

The accounting policies and notes from 01 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements,




Assets

Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Deferred tax asset

VARUN BEVERAGES L
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF F
AS AT 31 DECEMBE

Note

10
11
9.2

Investment in subsidiary - Ole Springs Bottlers

(Pvt) Lid

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Fixed deposits with banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Stated capital
Accumulated losses
Total Equity

Non Current Liabilities
Bottle deposit payable
Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred tax liability

Current Liabilities
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
Bank overdrafis

Total Current Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

3

11
12
21
14
13

15

16
17
9.2

18
19
21
20

ANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
INANCIAL POSITION
R 2021

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
2,511,331,896 4,318,629,112 25 15,331,425 4,469,698.456
- - 803,733 803,733
41,859,228 41,859,228 80,176,295 80,176,295
2,553,191,124 4,360,488,340 2,596,311,453 4,550,678,485
940,828,790 - 940,828,790 -
638,099,201 860,408,020 511,145,451 797,977,361
183,351,115 585,297,737 204,085,834 535,138,929
1,448,252,582 5,307,891 1,840,903,332 60,886,079
57,914,774 261,496,948 2,544 411 211,573,028
891,121,846 944,973,043 107,078,875 121,803,513
3,218,739,518 2,657,483,640 2,665,757,903 1,727,378 910
6,712,759,432 7,017,971,980 6,202,898,146 6,278,057,395

6,438,536,700
(710,214,757)

5,728,321,943
S ZD0e 780

36,736,220
58,475,690

—_——
95,211,911
A LI AL

839,255,354
49,970,224

—_— T
889,225,579

6,712,759,432

6,438,536,700  6,438,536,700
(964,472,254)

5,474,064,446 5,512,127,814

165,963,992 38,409,967

84,672,785 69,134,974

127,380,247 -
—— T

378,017,025 107,544,941
| V84941

1,543,907,534
- 100,540,883

L102,977,817 365,531 366
62,912,692 9,375,382

- 107,777,760
1,165,890,510 583 725.30]

7,017,971,980 6,202,898,146

6,438,536,700

(926,408,886) (1,398,999,088)
5,039,537,612
2222 0 e

175,762,996
107,181,921
70,473,563

353,418,479
—— 70T

103,657,733
612,725,669
16,439,364
152,278,537
885,101,303
6,278,057,395

[ certifhthatgie financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

ce Officer

The Board of Dj
Signed fora

Ve

ctors is responsible for the
alf of the Board,

Nfg}"‘% ese financial statemahts.
a
&

ector
27 January 2022

Director
27 January 2022

The accounting policies and notes from 01 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements,




VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Company

Balance as at 01.01.2019
Profit / (loss) for the year

Stated Accumulated Total
Capital Losses
Rs. Rs. Rs.

6,438,536,700

(895,731,240)
(34,166,748)

5,542,805,460
(34,166,748)

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 3,489,102 3,489,102
Balance as at 31.12.2020 6,438,536,700 (926,408,886)  5,512,127,814
Preference shares redeemed - - -
Profit/ (loss) for the year - 199,906,101 199,906,101
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 16,288,027 16,288,027

Balance as at 31,12.2021

6,438,536,700

(710,214,757)

5,728,321,943

Stated Accumulated Total
Capital Losses
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Group
Balance as at 01.01.2020 6,438,536,700 (1,507,408,597) 4,931,128,103
Profit / (loss) for the year - 104,318,122 104,318,122
Other comprehensive income /(loss) for the year - 4,091,387 4,091,387
Balance as at 31.12.2020 6,438,536,700 (1,398,999,088) 5,039,537,612
Preference shares redecmed - - -
Deferred tax adjustment of revalued gain on land - 84,308,504 84,308,504
Prafit / (loss) for the year - 324,215,184 324,215,184
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 26,003,146 26,003,146
Balance as at 31.12.2021 6,438,536,700 (964,472,254) 5,474,064,446

The accounting policies and notes from 01 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

211, Castle L_e\/;w,
Colombo - 04.
Tel, 0115 444 400




VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note No.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Profit before tax

Adjustment for:

Depreciation

10.1 & 10.2

Gain / (loss) on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Provision for bad and doubtful debt

Asset Scrap loss

Expiries and breakages

ESC write off

Interest cots on gratuity
Provision for gratuity

17
17

Operating profit before working capital changes

Working Capital Changes
(Increase) in inventories

Increase in amounts due to related parties
Decrease in amounts due from related parties
Decrease /(increase) in accounts receivable

Increase in accounts payable

Cash generated from/ (used in) opcrations

Gratuity paid

17

Cash flows from operating / (used in) activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

10.1 & 10.2

Expenditure on capital work in progress 11
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment

Addition to fixed deposits with banks
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Repayment of borrowings
Net cash flow from investing activities

Net increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note

13 & 20)

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash in hand and cash at bank

Bank overdraft

R
The accounting policies and notes from 01 to 23,;‘fo T

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
235,348,810 500,547,775 (1 14,958,767) 77,362,335
199,943,380 360,386,662 198,225,436 379,732,833

191,258 871,269 3,951,726 57,612,559
8,516,699 29,285,355 11,556,412 36,549,979
6,908,953 11,102,974 3,004,431 10,029,154
- - 14,192,566 75,414,313
5,185,123 7,753,292 6,430,863 10,553,843
6,795,901 7,921,554 8,407,458 10,617,005

462,890,124 917,868,880 130,810,126 657,872,021

(133,862,702) (73,533,634) (138,442,494) (265,659,740)
40,594,842 46,473,329 1,122,984 8,186,965
395,236,555 55,578,188 33,375,259 (22,772,781
20,543,439 (51,030,080) 132, 172,052 65,288,694
472,050,241 480,453,144 115,175,954 218,956,937
1,257,452,499 1,375,809,827 274,213,881 661,872,096
(6,063,728) (8,981,168) (2,095,826) (8,331,161)

1,251,388,771

1,366,828,660

272,118,055

653,540,935

(214,364,809)  (248,506,931)  (111,466,037) (156,158,889)
- (803,733) (1,376,462

10,708,016 10,707,992 1,751,492 1,751,468
(55,370,363) _ (49,923,920) 57,764 (88,895,571)
(239.027,156) _(287,722,859) (110,460,514) _(244,679.453)
(100,540,883) _ (103,657,733) (105,163,607) (283,250,799)
(100,540,883) _ (103,657,733) (105,163,607) (283,250,799)
891,820,732 975,448,067 56,493,934 125,610,680
(698,886) _ (30.475,024) _ (57,192,819) _(156,085,704)
891,121,846 944,973,043 (698,885)  (30,475,024)
B9L121.846  944973,043 107,078,875  121.803.513
- - - _(107,777,760) _ (152,278,537)
<O89%,121,846 944,973,043 (698,885)  (30,475,024)

}
s
}




1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1.3
2.1.3.1

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

General

Reporting Entity

Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) Limited (the “Company™) is a limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office of the company and the principal place of business is located at
No.140, Low Level Road, Embulgama, Ranala,

Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

The Company - Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) Limited

The principle activity of the company is to manufacturing, selling and distribution of non-alcoholic beverages &
purified drinking water.

Subsidiary — Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd
The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, selling and distribution of non-alcoholic beverages
and purified drinking water.

Parent and Ultimate Parent Enterprises

The company’s parent undertaking is Varun Beverages Limited and in the opinion of the directors, the
company’s ultimate parent undertaking is RJ Corp Limited. Both intermediate parent and ultimate parent are
incorporated in India.

Date of Authorization for Issue
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 January 2021.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated linancial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Sri Lanka Accounting
Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs) laid down by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka except for Notes 2.2.1 and 2.4.1 These three policies which deviate from SLFRS for
SMEs, are adopted to be in line with group accounting policies,

All values presented in these financial statements are in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.) rounded to the nearest rupee.
The measurement basis used is the historical cost basis,

The previous period figures and phrases have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform to current period
presentation,

Going Concern

When preparing the financial statements the directors have assessed the ability of the Company and the group to
continue as a going concern. The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The company and the group
do not foresee a need for liquidation or cessation of trading, taking into account al available information about
the future and accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial
statements.

Consolidation
Consolidation Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements of the company for year ended 31 December 2021 includes Ole Springs




2.1.3.2

2.1.3.3
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2.2.1

2.3.2
2.3.2.1

2.3.2.2

2.4

2.4.1

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date the control ceases

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the group. The cost of a business combination is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess
of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized is recorded as goodwill,

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Appropriate adjustments have been made where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the group.

Investment in Subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is recognized at cost less impairment losses in separate financial statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees which is the company’s and the group’s functional
and presentation currency. All financial information presented has been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless
otherwise stated.

Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of such transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognized in the profit or loss except for the exchange gain/loss on the translation of
the foreign currency loans taken to finance fixed asset aquisition is capitalized with the respective asset.

Revenue

Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and allowances. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is
no continuing management involvement with the goods.

Other Income

Foreign Services Income

Foreign service income and subsidies are recognized in the financial statements at their fair value. When the
foreign service income or subsidy relates to an expense it is recognized as income over the period necessary to
match it with the costs, which it is intended to compensate for on a systematic basis.

Rent Income
Rent income is recognized on an accrual basis.

Expenditure Recognition

Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of a direct association between the cost incurred
and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in
maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of efficiency have been charged to revenue in arriving
at the profit/ (loss) for the year.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing cost incurred on acquisition of property plant and equipm
the asset .All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss jp'tk

s a part of the cost of
ey are incurred.




2.5 Leases
Leases are classified ag finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Rights to assets held under finance lease are recognized as assets of the company at the fair value of the leased
property (or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments) at the commencement of the lease. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation. Lease bayments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are deducted in
measuring profit or loss. Assets held under finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment and
depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the Same way as owned assets. Rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

2.6 Income Tax Expense

2.6.1  Company
For a period of six (06) years reckoned from the year of assessment already determined by the Board of
Investment of Sri Lanka (BOI) (“tax exemption period”) the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of
2017 relating to the imposition, payment and recovery of income tax in respect of the profits and income of the
Company shall not apply to the profit and income of the Company.

For the above purpose the year of assessment shall be reckoned from the year in which the enterprise
commences to make profits or any year of assessment not later than two (02) years reckoned from the date of
commencement of commercial operations, whichever year is earlier, as specified in a certificate issued by the
Board of Investment of Sri Lanka (BOI).

After the aforesaid tax exemption period referred to above, the profits and income of the Enterprise shall be
charged at the rate of fifteen per centum (15%).

Deferred Tax

tax assets are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to reduce taxable profit in the future,
and any unused tax losses or unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are measured at the highest amount thul, on
the hasis of current or cstimaled future Llaxable profit, is more likely than not to be recovered,

The net carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the
current assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

2,6.2 Subsidiary
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and |
statements and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). De

any unused tax losses or unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets
basis of current or estimated future taxable profit, is more likel

2.7 Stated Capital
2.7.1 Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
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2.8
2.8.1

2.8.2

2.9
2.9.1

2.10

Tangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition hecessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management,

The group adds to the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing parts of
such an item when that cost is incurred if the replacement part is expected to provide incremental future benefits
to the group. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on
other assets is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method is as follows:

Assets Rate (%)
Computers 25.00
Furniture and fittings 10.00
Motor vehicles 14.29
Trade equipment 12.50
Office equipment 25.00
Buildings 3.34
Plant and machinery 4.75
Bottles and crates 12.50

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if
appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting date. An asset’s carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognized within finance and other costs in the statement of comprehensive income,

Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost. In respect of Projects under construction, incidental and attributable
expenses (net of incidental income) including interest expenses is carried as part of incidental expenditure
during construction to be allocated on major immovable project assets other than land and infrastructural
facilities, on commissioning of the project.

Intangible Assets

Computer Software

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. It is amortized over its estimated life of five years using the straight-line method. If there is an indication
that there has been a significant change in amortization rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset,
the amortization is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations.

Impairment of Non-Financia] Assets

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an
indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is
estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying
amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

If an impairment loss for a non-financial asset other than goodwill subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in
excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or
group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairrkrlle‘:‘r‘,lt;l@sﬁg" JS§€§ gnized immediately in profit or
loss. AN
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2.11

2.12

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location and condition, are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials - On actual cost on a weighted average basis
Finished goods - Valued at standard cost basis
Other inventories - On actual cost on a weighted average basis

Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to significant risk of changes in

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits in bank
net of outstanding bank overdrafts,

Financial Instruments

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at the transaction price. All sales are made on the basis of
normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. At the end of each reporting period, the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that
the amounts are not recoverable. If s0, an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the transaction price (including transaction costs). Trade payables
are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. Interest bearing liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. In order to meet this liability, a provision is carried forward in the Statement
of financial position. The provision is made on the basis of an actuarial valuation as recommended by the Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards for SMESs considering the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method and premium for
the period is charged as an expense to the Income Statement in the period which is relate. The fund is not
externally funded.

However, as per the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability arises only upon the completion of
five years of continuous service.

into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts, Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the income
statement as in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Employees’ Provident Fund
The company and employees contribute 12% and 8% respectively on the salary of each employee to the
approved Provident Fund.

Employees’ Trust Fund
The company contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund.

Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the company’s and group’s financial statements require management to make Jjudgments,
estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is re d of revision and future periods, only if
the revision affects both current and future periods. wllg
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3.4

3.5

3.6

Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Contd.)
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed below.

a) Defined benefit plans

obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. The assumptions used in the valuation and sensitivities there on are disclosed in note 17.

Events after the reporting period date
All material events after the reporting period date are considered and where necessary adjustments have been
made in the financial statements.

Capital commitments and contingencies
Capital expenditure and contingent liabilities as at the reporting period date are disclosed in the notes to the
accounts
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5.2

Revenue
Local sales
Export sales
Trade discount

Excise duty

Cost of Finished Goods Manufactured
Finished goods at the at the beginning of the year
Finished goods purchase

Factory cost transferred (Note 5. D

Finished goods at the end of the year

Factory Cost Transferred

Raw materials at the beginning of the year
Raw material purchase

Raw material at the end of the year

Raw material consumed

Production overheads (Note 5.2)

Production Overheads
Salaries
Wages
Overtime
Bonus
Allowance
Employees' Provident Fund
Employees' Trust Fund
Staff welfare
Medical
Terminal gratuity
Fuel
Chemicals
Lab consumables
Lab testing charges
Tea and flooding
Staff uniforms
Electricity
Postage and courier charges
Telephone
General insurance
Printing and stationery
Security charges
Motor vehicle fuel
Depreciation
- Factory building
- Plant and machinery
- Office equipment
- Furniture and fittings
- Motor vehicles and forklift
- Computers
- Bottles and crates
Building repair and maintenance
Equipment maintenance
Travelling and transport
Loading charges

Company Group Company Group
Year Fnded Year Knded Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
3,912,423,266  5,899,650,155 3,108,875,094 4,684,563,886

105,962,426 109,674,206 101,141,451 103,868,127
(84,311,385) (260,324,343)  (61,425,362) (148,785,680)
3,934,074,307  5,749,000,019 3,148,591,182 4,639,646,333
(428,560,254) (572,844,499) (457,496,656) (607,140,488)
3,505,514,053  5,176,155,520 2,691,094,526 4,032,505,846
75,148,394 119,679,645 60,049,567 81,983,229

- 5,239,038 - 37,051,600
2,255,876,836  2,964,541,242 1,764,222,855 2,343,208,905
(97,403,013)  (128,647,006) (75,148,394) (119,679,645)
2,233,622.217  2,960,812,919 1,749,124,028 2,342,564,090
276,278,593 462,747,269 202,947,264 296,606,869
1,753,618,607  2,110,778,469 1,324,074,251 1,714,847,780
(369,445,899) (508,094,998)  (276,278,593) (462,747,269)
1,660,451,301  2,065,430,740 1,250,742,922 1,548,707,380
595,425,535 899,110,502 513,479,933 794,501,525
2,255,876,836  2,964,541,242 1,764,222 855 2,343,208,905
105,983,951 132,374,767 96,878,159 121,171,893
11,543,976 42,243,101 11,531,436 25,802,147
41,594,026 52,563,145 31,868,151 44,333,642
15,569,724 19,040,019 11,026,393 13,490,546
5,907,949 6,185,981 6,314,259 6,472,510
13,383,638 16,560,164 11,975,948 14,829,897
3,345,909 4,140,041 2,994,744 3,708,231
2,333,104 2,343,184 1,710,961 1,792,925
1,936,616 2,151,810 2,115,777 2,368,528
2,575,874 3,261,948 3,266,654 4,228,062
48,218,546 49,595,463 42,067,721 42,780,592
26,890,020 41,241,108 22,468,439 37,888,590

- 1,771,886 - 797,340

4,308,255 4,308,255 2,072,524 2,072,524
13,995,062 13,995,062 6,842,707 6,842,707

- 1,941,868 - 2,885,042

92,868,525 130,589,296 83,286,844 109,791,175
959,609 959,609 1,465,327 1,465,327
119,673 1,095,997 252,266 1,436,148
3,415,087 5,533,225 2,083,654 3,721,862
961,380 961,380 770,229 770,229
5,802,222 12,554,603 5,236,388 12,400,644

- 267,900 - 67,988

- 3,585,351 - 3,592,731

106,951,328 130,049,374 106,380,310 129,414912

- 40,892 - 51,451

- 83,143 - 73,706

- 940,870 - 942,807

- 73,714 - 180,228

- 87,997,885 - 108,647,731

22,134,269 28,663,252 10,344,444 16,261,291
63,396,791 100,566,208 49,635,841 73,276,879
1,230,001 1,230,001 890,759 890,759

- 200,000 - 50,483

595,425,535 899,110,502 513,479,933 794,501,525
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9.1

Other Income

Foreign services income
Scrap sales
Miscellaneous income
Interest income

Loss Before Tax is Stated after Charging all Expenses Including the Following:

Personnel cost

Defined contribution plan costs - EPF &ETF

Provision for gratuity
Bonus

Depreciation
Insurance

Auditor's fees

Finance Cost & Other Cost
Bank overdraft interest

Asset scrap loss

Short term loan interest
Expiries and breakages

Bank charges

ESC write off

Exchange loss

Interest on gratuity

Taxation
Income tax expenses

Deferred tax expense / (benetit) (Note 9.2)
Deferred tax charge against other comprehensive income

Income tax expenses

Income tax payment for previous year

Reconciliation of the total tax charge
A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit mu

Accounting profit / (loss) as per financial statement

Allowable credits

Non- deductible expenses
Investment income

Tax loss claimed

Tax loss removed for tax holiday
Tax profit/ (loss) for the year of assessment

Tax expense

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
226,932,210 226,932,210 98,495,493 98,495,493
6,148,258 18,751,465 2,607,112 14,880,797
13,889 13,889 88,500 88,500
6,974,357 17,723,583 606,109 13,006,969
240,068,713 263,421,148 101,797,214 126,471,760
411,536,089 539,056,474 363,248,580 491,119,369
49,854,991 56,704,301 44,396,544 53,145,726
6,795,901 7,921,554 8,407,458 10,617,005
35,490,614 40,963,572 24,908,047 28,803,321
199,943,380 360,386,662 198,225,436 379,732,833
7,188,964 9,307,102 5,568,533 7,206,741
1,750,950 2,831,514 1,611,301 2,683,330
3,492,590 4,238,746 6,233,638 10,677,588
8,516,699 29,285,355 11,556,412 36,549,979
- 3,118,367 12,181,041 22,702,190
6,908,953 11,102,974 12,235,200 10,029,154
1,682,025 1,917,352 1,120,652 3,179,696
- - 14,192,566 75,414,313
29,667,091 40,514,203 9,957,771 17,769,881
5,185,123 7,753,292 6,430,863 10,553,843
55,452,480 97,930,288 73,908,144 186,876,643
38,317,067 179,532,258 (80,176,295) (26,105,842)
(2,874,358) (3,199,668) (615,724) (849,945)
35,442,710 176,332,591 (80,792,019) (26,955,787)

235,348,810

(205,218,840)

229,448,243
6,974,357

(266,552,571

500,547,775
(289,308,271)
414,396,581

20,819,583
(646,455,668)

(114,958,767)
(154,664,688)

214,015,745
606,109
(606,109)
55,607,710

ltiplied by the statutory tax rate is as follows:

77,362,335
(214,714,520)
528,497,125

13,006,969
(459,759,618)
55,607,710

Lang.

/5 44, Castie
¥

Q4.
v 0o
COWMPE 400 /,
Ty, 0119 A Y

AR\
i




Deferred tax balances

Property, plant Retirement Bad Debt Unused tax Total
& equipment benefit Provision fosses
obligation
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Company
Balance as at 1 January 2020 (313,224,667) 10,370,246 2,734,928 380,295,788 80,176,295
Recognised in changes in equity - - - - -
Recognised in profit or loss - - - - -
Balance as at 3 December 2020 (313,224,667) 10,370,246 2,734,928 380,295,788 80,176,295
Balance as at | January 2021 (313,224,667) 10,370,246 2,734,928 380,295,788 80,176,295
Recognised in profit or loss 3,396,066 (1,598,893) (131,355) (39,982,886) (38,317,067)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 (309,828,601) 8,771,354 2,603,573 340,312,903 41,859,228

Deferred tax of the company has been calculated at the rate of 15% which is future tax rate applicable to the entity as per agreement
with BOL

Deferred tax balances Property, plant Retirement Bad Debt Unused tax Total
& equipment benefit Provision losses
obligation
Rs, Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Subsidiary
Balance as at January 2020 (484,551,180) 10,860,153 - 457,287918 (16,403,109)
Recognised in changes in equity
Recognised in profit or loss 36,274,455 (207,008) 38,299,024 (128,436,925) (54,070,453)
Balance as at 3] December 2020 (448,276,725) 10,653,146 38,299,024 328,850,993 (70,473,563)
Balance as at | January 2021 (448,276,725) 10,653,146 38,299,024 328,850,993 (70,473,563)
Recognized in 84,308,504 84,308,504
changes in equity
Recognised in profit or loss 93,706,627 (5,937,668) (13,8 12,414) (215, 171,734) (141,215,189)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 {270,261,594) 4,715,478 24,486,611 113,679,259 (127,380,247)

Deferred tax of the subsidiary has been calculated at the rate of 18% (31.12.2020 - 28%) which is the future tax rate applicable to
the entity and substantially enacted as of the period end, Impact to deferred tax due to change in tax rate is Rs.70,766,803.
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10.

10.1

Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold property, plant and equipment

{(Note 10.1 and 10.2)

Freehold Property, Plant and Equipment

Company

Cost

Building

Computers

Furniture and fittings
Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Bottle and crates

Trade equipment

Total

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings

Computers

Furniture & fittings

Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Bottle and crates

Trade equipment

Total

Written Down Value

Balance at the
beginning
of the year
Rs.

901,624,956
16,063,796
8,297,257
2,238,813,537
211,407,686
14,780,750
145,541,814
479,147,693

4,015,677,489
2 LR80T

199,536,836
9,925,883
2,836,279

687,369,391

182,279,892
9,919,111

48,715,361

359,763,310

1,500,346,063
2P0, 009

2,515,331,425
B S T

s
199,943,380

e

(29,221,398)
— A0 ,978)

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

2,511,331,896 43 18,629,112 25 15,331,425 4,469,698 456
2,511,331,896 4,318,629,112 2,515,331,425 4,469,698,456

Additions Transfer Disposals/ Balance
write off at the end of

the year

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

5,123,046 803,733 - 907,551,735
4,871,798 - - 20,935,594
3,206,639 - - 11,503,896
18,145,706 - 2,256,959,244
- - - 211,407,686
1,495,891 - - 16,276,640
- - - 145,541,814
181,521,729 - (48,446,089 ¢ 12,223,333
214,364,809 803,733 (48,446,089) 4,182,399,942
29,917,874 - - 229,454,710
2,419,891 - - 12,345,774
903,872 - - 3,740,151
106,951,328 - - 794,320,718
7,346,393 - - 189,626,285
2,733,797 - - 12,652,909
23,875 - - 48,739,236
49,646,350 - (29,221,398) 380,188,262

1,671,068,046
2202 700,U050

2,511,331,896
=202 5070




10.2

11.

11.2

Freehold Property, Plant and Equipment

Group

Cost

Land

Building

Computers

Furniture and fittings
Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Bottle and crates
Trade equipment
Total

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings

Computers

Furniture and fittings
Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Bottle and crates

Trade equipment

Total

Written Down Value

Capital Work-in-Progress

Company

Description
Building

Group
Building

Balance at the Additions Transfer Disposals/ Balance
beginning write off at the end of
of the year the year

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
972,314,280 - - - 972,314,280
1,045,652,152 5,123,046 803,733 - 1,051,578,931
20,735,792 4,911,198 - - 25,646,990
13,079,232 4,162,090 - - 17,241,322
2,722,359,544 20,592,506 - - 2,742,952,050
240,985,236 - - - 240,985,236
17,858,440 1,585,791 - - 19,444,231
1,502,061,826 - - - 1,502,061,826
876,188,943 212,132,301 - (148,844,545) 939,476,698
7,411,235,444 248,506,931 803,733 (148,844,545) 7,511,701,563
256,506,535 33,678,323 - - 290,184,858
14,255,466 2,615,434 - - 16,870,900
7,141,878 1,055,040 - - 8,196,918
885,217,009 130,049,374 - - 1,015,266,383
207,538,789 8,559,460 - - 216,098,249
12,045,028 3,142,718 - - 15,187,747
1,003,317,081 88,021,760 - - 1,091,338,841
555,515,200 93,264,553 - -108,851,198.6 339,928,555
2,941,536,987 360,386,662 - (108,851,199) 3,193,072,450

4,469,698,456

4,318,629,112

Tt

Balance at the Additions Transfers Balance
beginning at the end of
of the year the year

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
803,733 - (803,733) -
803,733 - (803,733) -
803,733 - (803,733) -
803,733 - (803,733) -
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11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

Inventories
Finished goods
Raw materials
Chemicals and fuel
Goods in transit
Spare parts

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade debtors
Less: Impairment provision for trade debtors

Other receivables

Deposits and prepayments

Staff loans and festival advances

VAT receivable

Income tax and economic service charge receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch
Nations Trust Bank PL.C

Nations Trust Banlk PLC-USD

Hatton National Bank - Kaduwela

Sampath Bank

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC-USD
People's Bank - Hanwella

People's Bank - Corporate Division

Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch (UsD)
Saving AC - Hatton National Bank

Marginal AC - Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Cash in hand

Fixed Deposits in Banks

Fixed deposits - Nations Trust Bank PLC

Fixed deposits - Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Fixed deposit - Hatton National Bank PLC

Stated Capital

Issued and fully paid shares

Value of a share
No. of shares
Total value

Ordinary shares

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
97,403,013 128,647,006 75,148,394 119,679,645
369,445,899 508,094,998 276,278,593 462,747,269
21,933,465 34,794,901 17,529,989 27,872,798
6,854,577 7,743,871 22,821,021 22,821,021
142,462,247 181,127,245 119,367,455 164,856,629
638,099,201 860,408,020 511,145,451 797,977,361
121,503,677 626,375,913 143,487,549 578,080,729
(17,357,155) _ (153,393,879) _ (18,232,852)  (155,015,082)
104,146,522 472,982,034 125,254,696 423,065,646
25,224,279 29,132,065 18,615,179 26,993,207
33,785,843 45,508,004 52,119,605 64,517,389
2,482,306 3,184,428 3,268,415 3,618,952
12,312,658 12,312,658 4,715,261 1,523,365
5,399,507 22,178,548 112,677 15,420,369
183,351,115 585,297,737 204,085,834 535,138,929
41,431,098 43,328,588 - -
147,132 304,138 2,015,963 2,263,849
12,242 12,242 -
8,383,834 32,507,921 592,623 11,858,332
312,743 312,743 510,912 510,912
17,678,736 34,212,645 - -
29,231 29,231 - -
- 10,534,252 - 2,309,979
1,020,833 1,042,156 3,115,502 3,141,686
191,341,586 191,341,586 89,979,416 89,979,416
624,533,066 624,533,066 5,052,219 5,052,219
2,769,000 2,769,000 2,169,900 2,346,900
3,462,347 4,045,477 3,642,340 4,340,220
891,121,846 944,973,043 107,078,875 121,803,513
57,914,774 166,266,173 2,544,411 116,274,076
- 4,011,459 - 4,011,459
- 91,219,316 - 91,287,493
57,914,774 261,496,948 2,544,411 211,573,028
10 10 10 10
643,853,670 643,853,670 643,853,670 643,853,670
6,438,536,700 _6,438,536,700  6,438,536,700 6,438,536,700
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16.

17.

18.

19.

Bottle Deposit Payable
Deposits against assets
Dealership deposits

Retirement Benefit Obligations
Balance at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest charge for the year

(Gains) / losses arising from changes in actuarial valuation

Payments received for those who transferred in during the

period
Payments during the year
Balance at the end of the year

The following assumptions were used in determining the post employment benefit obligation :

Expected futare salary increment
Discount rate

Staff turnover rate

Retirement age

Short Term Borrowings
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables

Stamp duty

Excise duty

Accrued and other payables
VAT Payable

Other creditors

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
34,986,220 136,678,111 37,109,967 149,279,417
1,750,000 29,285,881 1,300,000 26,483,579
36,736,220 165,963,992 38,409,967 175,762,996
69,134,974 107,181,920 60,497,304 99,283,566
6,795,901 7,921,554 8,407,458 10,617,005
5,185,123 7,753,292 6,430,863 10,553,843
81,115,998 122,856,766 75,335,625 120,454,414
(19,162,385) (29,202,813) (4,104,826) (4,941,332)
2,585,805 - - -
(6,063,728) (8,981,168) (2,095,826) (8,331,161)
38,475,690 84,672,785 69,134,974 107,181,921
6% 6% 6% 6%
11.0% 11.0% 75% 7.5%& 6.75%
3% 3% 3% 3%
60 Years 60 Years 55 Years 55 Years
- - 100,540,883 103,657,733
- - 100,540,883 103,657,733
497,158,548 579,728,367 124,540,190 289,589,679
53,900 94,500 37,100 67,700
109,848,286 154,534,308 64,620,537 85,286,025
72,221,596 189,787,731 32,564,775 94,013,497
- 18,859,883 - -
159,973,026 159,973,029 143,768,765 143,768,768
839,255,354 1,102,977,817 365,531,366 612,725,669
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20.

20.1

21,

Company Group Company Group

31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Bank Overdraft
Standard Chartered Bank-LKR A/C - 58,037,504 58,984,552
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC - 49,740,257 93,293,985

- - 107,777,760 152,278,537

Securities Pledged for Short Term Loan & Bank Overdrafts

a) Standard Chartered Bank Primary concurrent mortgage over stocks and receivables for Rs. 450Mn
located at No 140, Low Level Road, Embulgama, Ranala.

Corporate Guarantee from Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd.

b) Commercial Bank Primary Concurrent mortgage for Rs 600Mn along with Standard
Chartered Bank over Stocks & Book debtors. General terms and
conditions relating to overdraft, import Demand Loans & Short Term
Loans signed by the Company, Corporate Guarantee from Varun

Beverages Lanka (Pvt) Lid.

Related Party Transactions

Identification of Related Parties

Related parties include companies under common control and key management personne! defined as those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company. Transactions with related parties
during year were taken place at agreed commercial terms.

During the year, Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuriya, Mr. Achal Kumar, Mr. Amit Joshi, and Mr. Tilak de Zoysa wete (he directors of the
company,

Amount due from related Amount due to related parties
Company Group Company Group
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2021
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd - Subsidiary 1,442,944,691 - - -
Varun Beverages Ltd-Parent Company - - 8,465,703 14,296,878
Devyani Foods Industries(Kenya) Ltd 5,307,891 5,307,891 - -
Fellow Subsidiaries
Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd - - 41,504,521 48,615,814
—
1,448,252,582 5,307,891 49,970,224 62,912,692
Amount due from related Amount due to related parties
Company Group Company Group
31.12.2020 31.12.2020 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd 1,780,017,252 - - -
Varun Beverages Ltd-Parent Company - - 8,432,509 15,496,491
Devyani Foods Industries(Kenya) Ltd 20,340,040 20,340,040 - -

Fellow Subsidiariecs
Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited 40,546,039 40,546,039 - -

Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd - ) - 942,873 942,873
(8863079 9,375,382 16,439 364
;;i\ 1. Castle Lav“(’*> |
RS fombo - 04. )
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21.

Related Party Transactions (Cantd,, )

During the year, the Company and the group entered into the following transactions with the related parties at agreed

commercial terms.

Company
Ole Springs Bottlers Pvt) Ltd-Subsidiary

Sale of finished goods
Purchase of raw materials
Payments/ settlements
Land lease expense

Discounts & expenses
Other transactions

Varun Bevcrages Ltd, India -Parent Company
Purchase of spare parts and raw materials
Sales
Export receipt
Software license fee
Payments/ settlements

Varun Beverages Zambia Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Export sales
Payments received for export sales

Varun Beverages Zimbabwe (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Sales
Payments received for export sales

Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase
Payments

Devyani Food International (Pvt) Ltd
Export sales
Payments received for export sales

Group

Varun Beverages Ltd, India -Parent Company
Purchase of spare parts and raw materials
Sales
Export receipt
Software license fec
Payments/ settlements

Varun Beverages Zambia Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Export sales
Payments received for export sales

Varun Beverages Zimbabwe (Pvt) Ltd-Feliow Subsidiary
Sales
Export receipt

Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase
Payments

Devyani Food International (Pvt) Ltd
Sales
Payments received for export sales

21

2021
Rs.

3,100,383,820
25,075,677
3,228,151,827
3,343,680
209,394,175
28,508,977

4,515,104
26,685,750
26,685,750
10,218,560
14,680,365

40,546,039

64,069,229
64,069,229

87,503,758
46,902,917

15,207,446
30,400,862

31,002,214
26,685,750
26,685,750
10,218,560
43,003,123

40,546,039

64,069,229
64,069,229

94,624,673
46,902,917

15,207,446
30,400,862

2020
Rs.

2,406,062,526
18,367,447
2,068,440,000
3,110,400
372,386,644
93.925

22,364,829
4,237,239
4,367,964

11,130,160

27,789,135

55,472,896
53,059,844

20,379,984
20,379,984

50,007,112
55,958,579

20,617,767
18,771,022

53,645,330
4,237,239
4,367,964

11,130,160

52,005,655

55,472,896
53,059,844

20,379,984
20,379,984

55,427,028
61,378,495

20,617,767
18,771,022




21.

22.

23.
23.1

Related Party Transactions (Contd...)
Key management personnel include members of the Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, and the ultimate
parent company, RJ Corp Limited, India,

There was no Compensation paid to key management personnel during the year other than the following:

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.202¢0
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Directors emoluments 36,815,124 40,698,798 18,778,552 32,790,760
36,815,124 40,698,798 18,778,552 32,790,760

Capital Commitments and Contingencies

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued an assessment on income tax for the year of assessment 2013/14 and 2014/15 for
which future carried forward loss will be reduced by Rs. 247,665,087 and Rs. 372,708,484 respectively. An appeal has been
filed against the assessment.

The Department of Inland Revenue hag issued assessments in respect of Nation Building Tax filed for the quarter ended
30.9.2016, 31.3.2017,30.6.2017 & 31.3.2018 value for Rs, 904,501, Rs. 976,706, Rs 301,497 & 1,535,071 respectively and
against the assessments, appeals have been made to Commissioner General of Inland Revenue.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued notice of assessments for subsidiary company for the year of assessment
2015/2016 for income tax, VAT & NBT for the Year 2015 and the amounts are Rs. 358,218 446, Rs.1,005,445,128 & Rs.
141,345,604 respectively, The company has made appeals against the assessments to Commissioner General of Inland Revenue.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued assessments for NBT for the quarter ended 30.06.2016 on its subsidiary Ole
Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd for Rs. 1,866,224/-.

The Department of Injand Revenue has issued assessments for VAT for the Quarter ended 30.06 2017 on itg subsidiary Ole
Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd for R, 4,215,822/,

The Depariment of Inland Revenuc has issued an assessments in respect of VAT for the year 2013 (4 Periods) on its subsidiary
Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd for Rs.4 12,010,752 and the company has appealed against the assessment.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued an assessments in respect of NBT for the year 2013 (4 Periods) on its subsidiary
Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd for Rs, 64,941,434/-

Estimated amount of the contracts remaining to be executed on capital commitments not provided for (net of advance) is Rs.
1,400,605 for the company and subsidiary amount s Rs. 7,978,306/-.

Legal cases have been filed against the company and against the subsidiary Ole Spring Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd up to Rs. 74 1,000/~ and
Rs. 30,000/- respectively by employees and on product related matters,

Apart from the above, there were no significant contingent liabilities and capital commitments as at the reporting period end that
would require adjustments to/or disclosure in the financiaj statements.

Events after the Reporting Period End

Events after the Reporting Period End

There were no significant events after the balance sheet date which require adjustments to or disclosures in the financial
statements
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
DETAIL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Administrative Expenses

Salaries - staff

Wages

Overtime

Staff training expenses

Bonus

Compensation

Tea and flooding

Medical expenses

Terminal gratuity

Employees' Provident Fund

Employees' Trust Fund

Lease rental

Foreign travelling

External auditor's remuneration

Internal auditor's remuneration

Telephone

Printing and stationery

Postage and telegrams

Stamp duty

Repairs and maintenance - vehicles

Depreciation - Building
- Furniture and fittings
- Office equipment
- Motor vehicle
- Computer & Software

Computer maintenance

Fees and penalties

Motor vehicle insurance

Staff welfare

Rent and accommodation charges

Courier charges

Staff recruitment

Subscriptions and periodicals

Electricity charges

Staff insurance

Other allowance to staff

Legal & professional charges

Travelling and transport

Other taxes

Sundry balances written off

Water

Coempany Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
41,305,145 50,246,819 31,429,697 54,129,393
2,168,984 3,487,721 1,314,344 2,065,904
5,326,286 6,993,620 1,743,864 4,035,331
- - - 20,000
4,179,740 5,016,536 2,711,557 3,515,170
- - - 771,344
1,499,002 6,122,712 1,429,200 4,012,211
13,068,682 13,578,777 4,236,940 4,740,283
1,003,896 1,248,400 1,059,784 1,958,109
5,811,024 7,030,035 4,469,964 7,352,946
1,452,755 1,757,508 1,117,488 1,838,233
3,096,000 - 2,880,000 -
1,025,309 1,062,106 547,500 787,534
1,750,950 2,831,514 1,611,301 2,683,330
2,230,324 2,230,324 1,558,259 1,558,259
709,220 2,510,287 212,962 1,655,311
1,061,573 3,865,887 964,981 3,049,375
- 6,040 - 133,029
301,466 441,966 48,425 180,725
1,823,393 1,823,393 - 9,180
29,917,874 30,092,972 29,963,038 30,138,496
903,872 971,898 844,223 904,528
2,733,797 3,101,826 2,985,355 3,448,414
7,346,393 7,618,589 13,716,560 13,989,316
2,419,891 2,541,719 2,158,344 2,456,209
11,149,263 12,674,838 12,353,378 13,362,718
- 9,500 - 12,650
13,080 240,780 18,090 353,090
3,816,558 3,922,983 2,501,409 2,759,129
3,000,136 3,000,136 3,557,771 3,557,771
4,840,328 4,840,328 915,212 915,212
402,100 402,100 306,420 306,420
1,217,865 1,774,264 1,644,505 1,971,284
904,207 984,603 899,083 1,237,656
3,773,877 3,773,877 3,484,879 3,484,879
7,124,261 8,204,013 6,341,375 7,839,131
4,571,867 7,290,907 3,867,163 7,425,137
724,490 2,703,359 541,390 3,696,540
322,605 343,946 76,462 362,379
(180,904) (180,904) 2,338,930 2,338,930
77,065 86,523 36,979 86,260
172,892,373 204,651,901 145,886,830 195,142,114
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Selling and distribution expenses
Salaries - staff

Wages

Overtime

Bonus

Employees' Provident Fund
Employees' Trust Fund

Medical expenses

Conference and meeting expenses
Terminal gratuity

Telephone

Printing and stationery

Sales promotion and discounts
Tea and flooding

Other allowance to staff

Staff Incentive

Rent and accommodation expenses
Staff welfare

Travelling expenses

Transport expenses

Foreign travelling

Vehicle maintenance expenses
Motor vehicle fuel

Export handling charges

Contract outlet expenses

Bad debt/lmpairment
Depreciation - trade equipment
Trade equipment maintenance

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
132,327,249 139,733,949 121,029,569 129,868,987
13,203,203 49,286,683 10,329,188 36,748,172
9,330,850 11,470,327 - 8,562,160 21,179,151
15,741,150 16,907,017 11,170,097 11,797,606
20,689,332 21,773,243 19,070,723 20,333,139
5,172,332 5,443,309 4,767,677 5,083,281
492,946 503,375 5,611,732 5,830,354
706,884 706,884 286,212 301,937
3,216,131 3,411,207 4,081,020 4,430,834
3,505,792 3,505,792 2,323,322 2,323,322
1,485,523 1,485,523 998,473 998,473
449,149,506 928,853,482 397,064,808 584,277,282
15,082,421 16,665,807 14,043,403 17,322,915
42,844,469 44,470,361 42,247,754 43,814,483
84,900,184 85,697,891 43,735,240 44,572,740
7,409,905 8,489,905 6,682,625 9,192,625
1,319,486 1,350,549 3,078,166 3,094,801
7,275,802 7,325,820 5,981,208 6,016,017
55,445,897 84,246,048 84,704,088 110,279,646
1,315,402 1,315,402 2,093,488 2,093,488
30,076,427 34,378,950 24,980,703 29,780,147
17,325,513 31,523,416 18,985,699 29,894,622
22,014,411 22,014,411 18,491,313 18,548,551
47,524 866 47,524,866 35,334,206 35,498,653
191,258 871,269 3,951,726 57,612,559
49,670,225 93,288,428 42,177,607 85,892,303
10,849,720 13,389,869 7,149,298 14,976,140
1,048,266,886  1,675,633,785 938,931,506  1,357,032,424
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- SHWS Associates
I o I tte Chartered Accountants
& No.11, Castle Lane
Colombo 04
Sri Lanka

Tel: +94 11 2580409, 5444400
Fax: +94 11 2582452
www.delcitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD

Report on the Audit of the Financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Lid (“the Company”) which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SME).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the dudit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by CA
Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report, other
information was not made available to us.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SME), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
ruisstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends fo liquidate the Company or to cease operations, ot has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sri
Lanka Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

M. Basheer Ismail FCA, S. Lilani Jayasuriya FCA, Gerard J. David FCA, F. Maryam Marikkar FCA, M. Sharnita J. Henry FCA,
R. Hilmy M. Minfaz ACA, Sarala Y. Kodagoda ACA, M. Manzeer M. Muzawwir ACA
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" Deloitte.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,
. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based o
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any signilicant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information and explanations
that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the
Company.

Y

ESTOOCAD ¢ b
SJMS‘?%;SSOGIA:I?ES..‘,...,V..,w..,_... J
Chartered Accountants o
Colombo

31 January 2022




OLE, SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Profit from operations

inance and other costs

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income / (expenses)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on employee benefit obligations

Deferred tax on actuarial gain/{loss)
Total comprehensive income for the year

The accounting policies and notes from 01 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Year ended
31.12.2021
Rs.

4,564,598.173

(3,647,271,972)

Year ended
31.12.2028
Rs.

3,525,765.444

(2,755,791,709)

917,326,201
26,448,434

(34,855,528)

769,973,736
27,554,545

(52,135,284)

{627,366,908) (408,870,149)
281,552,200 336,522,848
(42,477.808) {122,199,269)
239,074,392 214,323,580

(139,407,913)

(53,836.232)

99,666,479 160,487,348

10,040,428 836,506

(1,807,277) (234,222)
107,899,630 161,089,632




Assets

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Deposits and prepayments
Fixed deposits with banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and Habilities
Stated capital
Accumulated losses

Non current liabilities
Deposits payable

Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred tax Hability

Current liabilities
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
Bank overdrafts

Total current liabtlities
Total equity and liabilities

OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note

10
1L
12
13

14

i35
16
7.3

17
18
20
19

31.12.2021
Rs.

1,429,297,215
378,000,000

31.12.2020
Rs.

1,576,367,030
378,000,000

1,807,297,215

1,954,367,030

225,195,198 315,842,852
390,224,459 321,847,200
11,722,163 12,397,784
203,582,174 209,028,617
53,851,197 14,724,638
884,575,191 873,841,097

2,691,872,407

2,828,208,127

802,872,070 802,872,070
(113,414,398)  (305,622,532)
689,457,672 497,249,538
129,227,773 137,353,029
26,197,096 38,046,947
127,380,248 70,473,562
282,805,117 245,873,538
- 3,116,850
263,722,459 250,386,190
1,455,887,159 1,787,081,234
- 44,500,777
1,719,609,618  2,085,085,051

2,691,872,407

2,828,208,127

[ certify that the financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies

Act No. 07 07.

Signed for and

js responsible for the preparation and presentation of these firancial statemefts.
of the Board.

Director
27 January 2022

Director
27 January 2022

The accounting policies and notes from 01 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Stated capital Accumulated Total
loss
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 01.01.2620 802,872,670 (466,712,165) 336,159,905
Profit for the year - 160,487,348 160,487,348
Other comprehensive income for the year - 602,284 602,284
Balance as at 31.12.2020 802,872,070 {305,622,532) 497,249,538
Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit for the year - 99,666,479 99,666,479
Other comprehensive incore for the year - 8,233,151 8,233,151
Deferred tax adjustment of revalucd gain on land - 84,308,504 84,308,504
Balance as at 31.12.2021 802,872,070 (113,414,398) 689,457,672

The accounting policies and notes from 01 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.




OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PYVT)LTD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 8.1
ESC write off 6
Asset scrapped 6
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables
Bad debt write off
Breakages 6
Provision for gratuity 16
Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease /(increase) in inventories
(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease in deposits and prepayments
Increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease) in amounts due to related parties
Cash gencrated from operations
Gratuity paid 1o

Cash flows from opcrating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 8.1
Investment/withdrawal of fixed deposits with banks

Net cash flows utilized in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net movement in borrowings
Net cash flows utilized in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Cash in hand and cash at bank
Bank overdrafts

The accounting policies and notes from 01 t 22 form an iﬁfegral part of these financial statements.

Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs.
239,074,392 214,323,580
160,443,281 181,507,396
- 61,221,747
20,768,656 24,993,566
- 52,528,436
- 1,132,397
4,194,022 7,024,723
3,693,822 6,332,527

428,174,173

86,453,634

(68,377,257)
675,621
5,211,013

(333,779,880)

118,357,303

(2,917,440)

549,064,372

(149,219,721)
(64,612,510)
7,045,066
94,465,041
(49,084,058)

387,658,190

(6,235,336)

115,439,864

381,422,854

(34,142,122)
5,446,443

(45,265,582)
(88,953,335)

(28,695,679)

(134,218,917)

(3,116,850)

(178,087,192)

(3,116,850) _ (178,087,192)
83,627,335 69,116,746
(29,776,138) (98,892,885)
53,851,197 (29,776,139)
53,851,197 14,724,638

- (44,500,777)
53,851,197 (29,776,139)
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1.3

1.4

2.2

2.3
23.1

2.3.2

233

OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

General

Reporting entity

Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd (the “Company”) is a limited liability Company incorporated and
domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office and the principle place of business is located at 140,
Low Level Road, Fmbulgama, Ranala.

Principal activities and nature of operations
The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, selling and distribution of non-alcoholic
beverages and purified drinking water.

Parent and ultimate parent enterprises

The Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) Limited is the parent company and the company’s ultimate
parent undertaking is RF Corporation Ltd. Intermediate parent and ultimate parent incorporated in Sri
Lanka and India respectively.

Date of authorization for issue
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 January 2022.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in compliance with the Sri
Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-Sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs) laid down by
The Institute of Chattered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

All values presented in the financial statements are in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.) Rounded to the nearest
rupee, The measurement basis used is the historical cost basis.

The previous period figures and phrases have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform to
current year presentation. The current year figures cannot be directly compared with comparative
figures in relation to Statetement of changes in equity due to the difference in reporting periods.

Foreign currency and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan rupees, which is the company’s functional and
presentation currency. All financial information presented has been rounded to the nearest rupee,
unless otherwise stated.

Revenue

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, the associated costs and possible return of
goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

Other gains and losses

Net gains and losses of a revenue nature arising from disposal of plant and equipment and other non-
current assets are accounted for in the income statement after deducting from the proceeds on
disposal, the carrying amount of such assets and the related sell; expenses.




2.3.4
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2.5

2.6

2.7.

Rent income and other revenues
Rent income and other revenues are recognized on an accrual basis.

Expenditure recognition

Expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on the basis of a direct association
between the cost incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the
running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of efficiency
have been charged to revenue in arriving at the profit/ (loss) for the year,

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rights to assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the company at the fair value of
the leased property (o, if lower, the present valug of minimum lease payments) at the commencement
of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are deducted in measuring profit or loss. Assets held under finance leases
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in
the same way as owned assets. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant icase.

Borrowing cost
All borrowing costs are recognized in profit or Joss in the period in which they are incurred

Income tax expense

Income tax expensc comprises current and deferred tax, Income tax expense is recognized in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to jtems recognized directly in equity, in which
case it is recognized in equity

Current tax

The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditures as reported in the
financial statements and computed in accordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act. No 24
of 2017 and subsequent amendments there to.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for al) temporary differences that are expected to increase taxable profit in
the future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to reduce
taxable profit in the future, and any unused tax losses or unused tax credits, Deferred tax assets are
measured at the highest amount that, on the basis of current or estimated {uture taxable profit, is more
likely than not to be recovered.

The net carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to
reflect the current assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or
loss. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss)
of the periods in which it expects the deferred tax asset to be realised or the deferred tax liability to be
settled, on the basis of tax rates that have been ¢nacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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2,94

Stated capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management,

The company adds to the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing paits of such an item when that cost is incurred if the replacement part is cxpected to
provide incremental future benefits to the company. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the year in which
they are incurred. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is charged so as to allocate the
cost of assets less their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method
is as follows:

Assets Rate (%)
Computers 25.00
Furniture and fittings 10.00
Motor vehicles 14.29
Trade equipment 12.50
Office equipment 25.00
Buiidings 3.34
Plant and machinery 4.75
Bottles and crates 12.50

The assots’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting
date. An asset’s carrying amount is writien down immediately Lo ils recoverable amount if the asset’s
catrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognized within ‘other gains/ (losses) — net’ in the statement of comprehensive income,

Investment property

Investment property, which is a property held to earn rentals and/ or for capital appreciation is
measured at cost including transaction cost. Subsequent to the initial recoganition, investment
property is measured at cost less any impairment losses. The investment property consist of a
freehold land which is occupied by the parent company.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost. In respect of Projects under construction, incidental and
attributable expenses (net of incidental income) inchuding interest expenses is carried as part of
incidental expenditure during construction to be allocated on major immovable project assets other
than tand and infrastructural facilities, on commissioning of the project.

Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets are
reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or
group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated
recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its esti d recoverable amount, and
an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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3.1

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.3

Impairment of nor-financial assets — (Conid..)

If an impairment loss for a non-financial asset other than goodwill subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
recognized for the assct (or group of related assets) in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at the transaction price. All sales are made on the
basis of normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. At the end of each reporting
period, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there is
any objective evidence that the amounts arc not recoverable. If so, an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the transaction price (including transaction costs). Trade
payables are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. Interest bearing
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The cost of the defined benefit plan, the gratuity obligation, is determined using the projected unit
credit method which involves making assumptions regarding discount rates and future salary
increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to uncertainty. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Defined contribution plan - EPF & ETF

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contrihntions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee
benefit expense in the Income Statement as in the periods during which services are rendered by
ciployees.

Employees’ Provident Fund
‘the company and employees contribute 12% and 8% respectively of the salary of cach employee to
the approved Provident Fund.

Employees’ Trust Fund
The company contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. The costs incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location and condition, are
accounted for as follows:

Raw materials - On actual cost on a weighted average basis

Finished goods - Valued at standard cost basis

Other inventories — On actual cost on a weighted average basis

10
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3.5

3.6

Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
labilities within the next financial period are disclosed below.

a) Defined benefit plans

The carrying value of defined benefit plans is determined using a formula which considers the
actuarial assumption. This involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, etc. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and their long
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The assumptions used in the valuation and
sensitivities there on are disclosed in note 16.

Events after the reporting period date
All material events after the reporting period date are considered and where necessary adjustments
have been made in the {inancial statements.

Capital commitments and contingencies
Capital expenditure and contingent liabilities as at the reporting period date are disclosed in the notes
to the accounts.

11



7.2

2021 2020
Rs. Rs.

Other income
Scrap sales 12,603,208 12,273,685
Rent income 3,096,000 2,880,000
Interest income 10,749,227 12,400,860

26,448,434 27,554,545
Profit before tax is stated after charging all expenses including the following:
Personnel cost 42,739,190 55,832,848
Defined contribution plan costs - EPF &ETF 6,849,310 8,749,183
Provision for gratuity 1,125,653 2,209,547
Bonus 5,472,958 3,895,275
Pepreciation 160,443,281 181,507,396
Auditor's fees - audit related 1,080,564 1,072,029
Finance and other costs
Bank overdraft interest 746,156 4,443,950
Bank charges 235,327 2,059,044
Exchange loss 10,847,112 7,812,110
Unclaimable ESC . 61,221,747
Assets scrapped 20,768,656 24,993,566
Breakages 4,194,022 7,024,723
Loan interest 3,118,367 10,521,149
[nterest charge on gratuity 2,568,169 4,122,980

42,477,808 122,199,269
Taxation
Income tax expense / (benefit)
Deferred tax expense / (benefit) 141,215,190 54,070,453
Peferred tax on actuarial gain/loss (1,807,277) {234,222)

139,407,913 53,836,232

Reconciliation of the total tax charge

A reconciliation between tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the statutory tax rate is as

follows:

Accounting profit / (loss) as per income tax computation 239,074,392 214,323,580

Allowable credits {84,089,432) (82,052,310)
Non - deductible expenses 184,948,337 314,481,379

Taxable profit 339,933,298 446,752,649

Income from investments 13,845,227

Tax loss claimed (13,845,227

{459,153,509)

Tax profit / {toss) for the period of assessmen

Tax expense at 18% -( 2020 28%)




potiad a1 jo se perdRUL AT[ENURISGNS PUR AIRUS 21 01 sjqesydde a1e1 xey a1yny 3 s1 yorym (

(852°08¢°LT1) 65T 6L9°CTT LLYSILY 01998+ +7 ($65°192°0L.T)

70S*80£ b8 - - - F0S 8OL T8
(681°STZI¥1)  (pELILISIT)  (899°L56°%S) (F1¥°718°¢D) LT9°90L°¢6
(g9s°eLt L) £66°058°87¢ SHI°ES9°01 PT066L € (STL9LT 8TP)
{(FSH0LOS) (Sz6'oLy'gzl)  {(800°L0T) YZO667°8€ SCFFLT9E
(601°C0v"91) 816°L8T LSY €ST098°01 - (0817155 v8Y)

sy sy sY sy |
uo13E3qo
$I5SO] NG S10)43p Ipea] jwawdimbo »
[BI0L XB] pasnup} JUIAINY Joywoutniedwy  juepd ‘Siradosg

£08°09L (0L sy ST 2.l Xey ul S5uBYD 03 9np Xe) Paisejap o) 1ordw] "pua
%8T - 0TOT'TI TE) %81 JO 2781 0Y) 18 PIIR[NO[ED USDQ SBY XEl PaLIja(]

1207 2qua0a(] 1§ IE S8 2oue[eg
Amba ur sadueyd ur poziuSosay

$50] 10 Jj01d ur paziuSoooy

Q70T 2qUiR2(] 1€ I8 St aoueieyg
5807 10 1j0:d Ul pezIuZ009y]
0Z0Z Atenuel 1 1 Se aousey
X®} paasala(y

€L



31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold property, plant and equipment (Note 8.1) 1,429,297,215 1,576,367,030

1,429,297,215 1,576,367,030

8.1

Freehold property, plant and equipment

Cost Balance as at Additions/ Disposals/ Balance as at
01.01.2021 transfers write off 31.12.2621
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Land 594,314,280 - - 594,314,280
Buildings 144,027,196 - - 144,027,196
Plant and machinery 483,546,006 2,446,800 - 485,992,806
Office equipment 3,077,690 89,900 - 3,167,590
Furniture & fiftings 4,781,974 955,451 - 5,737,425
Computers 4,671,996 39,400 - 4,711,396
Trade equipment 350,847,061 - - 350,847,061
Motor vehicles 29,577,550 - - 29,577,550
Bottles and crates 1,060,039,101 30,610,572 {100,398,456) 990,251,217
Total 2,674,882 855 34,142,122 (100,398,456)  2,008,626,520
Accumulated depreciation Balance as at Depreciation Disposals/ Balance as at
01.01.2021 charged write off 31.12.2021
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Buildings 56,969,699 3,760,448 - 60,730,148
Plant and machinery 197,847,619 23,098,046 - 220,945,664
Office equipment 2,125,917 408,921 - 2,534,838
Furniture and fittings 4,305,599 151,169 - 4,456,768
Computers 4,329,583 195,543 - 4,525,126
Trade equipment 149,557,701 43,618,203 - 193,175,904
Motor vehicles 25,258,897 1,213,066 - 26,471,964
Botties and crates 658,120,810 87,997,885 {79,629,801) 666,488,894
Total 1,008,515,825 160,443,281 {79,629,801)  1,179,329,305
Net book value 1,576,367,030 1,429,297,215

14
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11.

12.

13.

4.

13,

Investment property
Land

Inventories
Finished goods
Raw materials
Chemicals and fuel
Spare parts

Goods in transit

Trade and other receivables
Trade debtors
Less: Impairment of trade debtors

Other receivables
Tax receivables
Staff loans and festival advances

Deposits and prepayments
Security deposits and prepayments

Fixed deposits with banks

Fixed deposit - Commercial Bank of Ceyloa PL.C
Fixed deposit - Nations Trust Bank PLC

Fixed deposit - Hatton National Bank PLC

No. of shares

Stated capital
Fully paid ordinary shares 126
80,287,081

Fully paid Class "A" ordinary shares

Deposit payables
Peposits against assets
Dealership deposits

2021 2020
Rs. Rs.
378,000,000 378,000,000
34,130,371 73,542,193
138,649,099 186,468,676
10,821,104 10,342,809
40,705,330 45,489,174
889,204 -
225,195,198 315,842,852
504,872,234 434,593,180
(136,036,724) (136,782,230)
368,835,510 297,810,950
3,907,786 8,378,028
16,779,041 15,307,692
702,122 350,536
390,224,459 321,847,206
11,722,163 12,397,784
11,722,163 12,397,784
4,041,459 4,011,459
108,351,399 113,729,665
91,219,316 91,287,493
203,582,174 209,028,617
1,260 1,260
802,870,810 802,870,810
802,872,070 802,872,070
101,691,892 112,169,450
27,533,881 25,183,579
129,227,773 137,353,029




19.

26,
201

20.2

20.3

31.12.2021
Rs.

Bank overdrafts -

31.12.2020
Rs.

44,500,777

Securities pledged for overdraft facilities have been disclosed in note 17.1.

Related party transactions
Identification of related parties

Retated parties include companies under common control and key management personnel defined as those
persons having authority and responsibility for plarning, directing and controlling the activities of the
company. Transactions with related parties during year were taken place at agreed commercial terms.

During the period, Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria, Mr. Amit Joshi, Mr. Achal Kumar, were the directors of the

company.

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Rs. Rs.

Amounts due fo related parties

Varun Beverages Lanka (Pvt) Ltd ( Parent) 1,442,944,691 1,780,017,253

Varun Beverages Lid India (Intermediate parent) 5,831,175 7,063,981

Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd. (Fellow Subsidiary) 7,111,293 -
1,455,887,159 1,787,081,234

‘The company entered into the following transactions with the related parties on agreed commercial

term basis,

Period ended
31.12.2021
Rs.
Varun Beverages Lanka (Pvt) Ltd ( Parent)

Purchase of goods 3,100,383,820

Sale of raw materials 25,075,677
Settlements / payment 3,228,151,827
Discounts and expenses 209,394,175
Other 28,508,977
Land lease income 3,343,680
Varun Beverages Ltd - India (Intermediate Parent)

Purchase of finished goods and raw materials 26,487,110
Settlements 28,322,758
Lunarmech Technologies (PVT) Ltd (Fellow Subsidiary)

Purchase goods 7,120,915

Settlementis
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Period ended
31.12.2020
Rs.

2,406,062,526
18,367,447
2,068,440,060
372,386,644
93,925
3,110,400

31,280,501
24,216,520

5,419,916
5,419,916



20.4

21,

22,

Remuneration to key management personnel
Key Management Personnel include members of the Board of Directors of the Company and its related
companies.

Compensation paid to key management personnel during the period ended 31 December 2021 Rs.
3,883,674 /- (Period ended 31 December 2020 Rs. 14,012,208/-).

Capital commitments and contingencies
Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for {net of
advance) Rs, 7,978,306/-,

Legal cases filed against the Company up to Rs. 30,000/- for product related matters,

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued notice of assessments to the company for the year of
assessment 2015/2016 for VAT & NBT for the year 2015 amounting fo Rs, 1,005,445,128 & Rs.
141,345,604 respectively. The company has made appeals against these assessments to Commissioner
General of Inland Revenue.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued assessments for NBT for the quarter ended 30.06.2016 for
Rs. 1,806,224,

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued assessments for VAT for the year 2013 for Rs. 412,010,752
and the company has appealed against the assessments and is pending at Tax Appeal Commission,

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued assessments for NBT for the year 2013 for Rs. 64,941,434,
The Department of Inland Revenne has issued assessments for VAT for the year 2017 for Rs. 4,215,822,
Apart from the above, there were no significant contingent liabilities and capital commitments as at the end

of the reporting period that would require adjustments to/or disclosure in the financial statements.

Events after the reporting period end
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date which require adjustments to or disclosures in
the financial statements.

18



OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD

DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021



2.1

OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Revenue

Local sales
Export sales
Trade discounts

Excise duty

Cost of sales
Finished goods at the beginning of the year
Finished goods purchase during the year

Factory cost transferred (Schedule 2.1)

Finished goods at the end of the year

Cost of finished goods manufactured
Raw materials at the heginning the year
Raw materials purchase during the year
Raw materials at the end of the year
Raw materials consumed during the year
Production overheads (Schedule 2.2)

2421
Rs.

4,881,183,595
3,711,781
{176,012,958)

2020
Rs.

3,820,541,277
2,726,677
(147,858,678)

4,708,882,418

(144,284,245)

3,675,409,276

(149,643,831)

4,564,598,173

'3,525,765,444

73,542,193
2,749,297.867

858,562,283

28,942,127
2,158,839,395

641,552,380

3,681,402,343
(34,130,371)

2,829,333,901
(73,542,193)

3,647,271,972

2,755,791,709

186,468,676 93,659,605
507,057,739 453,339,859
(138,649,099) (186,468,676)
554,877,316 360,530,788
303,684,967 281,021,591
858,562,283 641,552,379




2.2 Production overheads

Salaries

Wages

Overtime

Bonus

Allowance

Employees' Provident Fund

Empioyees' Trust Fund

Staff welfare

Medical

Terminal gratuity

Fuel

Chemicals

Lab consumables

Staff uniforms

Electricity

Telephone

General insurance

Security charges

Motor vehicle fuel

Depreciation - Factory building
- Plant and machinery
- Office equipment
- Furniture and fittings
- Motor vehicles and lorklift
- Computers
~ Bottles and crates

Building repairs and maintenance

Equipment maintenance

Loading charges

2021
Rs.

26,390,816
30,699,125
10,969,119
3,470,295
278,032
3,176,526
794,131
10,080
215,194
686,074
1,376,917
14,351,088
1,771,886
1,941,868
37,720,772
976,323
2,118,138
6,752,381
267,900
3,585,351
23,098,046
40,892
83,143
940,870
73,714
87,997,885
6,528,983
37,169,416
200,000

2020
Rs.

24,293,734
14,270,711
12,465,491
2,464,153
158,251
2,853,949
713,487
81,964
252,751
961,408
712,871
15,420,151
797,340
2,885,042
26,504,332
1,183,882
1,638,208
7,164,256
67,988
3,592,731
23,034,603
51,451
73,706
942,807
180,228
108,647,731
5,916,847
23,641,037
50,483

303,684,967

281,021,591




Administrative expenses
Salaries - staff
Wages
Overtime
Staff training expenses
Allowance
Bonus
Employees' Provident Fund
Employees' Trust Fund
Medical
Staff welfare
Terminal gratuity
Tea and food
Compensation
External auditor's remuneration
Electricity
Telephone
Printing and stationery
Postage and telegrams
Stamp duty
Depreciation - Building
~ Furntture and fittings
- Office equipment
- Motor vehicle
- Computer
Computer maintenance
Iees and penalties
Motor vehicle insurance
Foreign travelling
Consultancy fees
Legal fees
Subscriptions and periodicals
Water
Motor vehicle maintenance and repairs
Motor vehicle fuel
Other tax
Travelling and transport

2021 2020

Rs, Rs.
8,941,674 22,699,696
£,318,737 751,560
1,667,334 2,291,467
20,000
1,079,752 1,497,756
836,796 803,613
1,219,011 2,882,982
304,753 720,746
510,095 503,343
106,425 257,720
244,503 898,325
4,623,711 2,583,011
- 771,344
1,080,564 1,072,029
80,397 338,572
1,801,067 1,442,349
2,804,315 2,084,394
6,040 133,029
140,500 132,300
175,098 175,458
68,026 60,305
368,029 463,058
272,196 272,756
121,828 297,865
1,525,575 1,009,340
9,500 12,650
227,700 335,000
36,797 240,034
1,831,620 2,831,474
887,420 726,500
556,399 326,779
9,458 49,281
- 9,480
1,048,043 2,131,688
21,341 285,917
930,826 1,023,461
34,855,528 52,135,284




Selling and distribution expenses
Salaries - staff

Wages

Staff welfare

Allowance

Overtime

Bonus

Staff incentives

Employees' Provident Fund
Employees' Trust Fund

Terminal gratuity

Medical

Motor vehicle fuel

Freight expenses

Tea and food

Discount and claims

Rent expenses

Conferences and meetings expenses
Bad debt write off

Debtors impairment

Motor vehicle maintenance and repairs
Trade equipment hire charges and maintenance

Transport charges

Trade equipment maintenance
Travelling

Depreciation ~ trade equipment

22

2621 2020
Rs. Rs.

7,406,700 8,839,418
36,083,479 26,418,984
31,0663 16,635
1,625,892 1,566,729
2,139,477 12,616,991
1,165,867 627,509
797,707 837,500
1,083,911 [,202,415
270,978 315,604
195,076 349,814
10,429 218,622
14,197,904 10,908,923
57,539 57,238
1,583,386 3,279,512
479,703,977 228,827,458
1,080,600 2,510,000
- 15,725
680,012 1,132,307
- 52,528,436
4,302,522 4,799,444
28,742,612 164,447
2,540,156 7,826,842
50,018 34,809
43,618,203 43,714,690
627,366,908 408,870,149




Cash at bank and cash in hand
Cash at bank

Margin money Commercial Bank of Ceylon

Commercial Bank of Ceylon

People's Bank - Hanwella

Hatton Natipnal Bank - Kaduwela
Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch 3
Nations Trust Bank PLC

People's Bank - International

Cash in hand

Bank overdrafis
Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch 3
Commercial Bank of Ceylon

Accrued and other payables
Electricity

Other payables

Auditor's remuneration
Telephone payable

Transport

Staff incentive

23

31.12.2021 31.12,2020
Rs. Rs,

- 177,000
16,533,909 -
10,534,252 2,309,979
24,124,087 11,265,709

1,897,489 -
157,006 247 886
21,324 26,184
583,130 697,880
53,851,197 14,724,638

- 947,048

- 43,553,728

- 44,500,777

- 2,349,832

113,835,242 57,593,546
434,250 413,438
110,000 20,000

3,086,642 871,900
100,000 200,000
1£7,566,134 61,448,716




CHAHBI ADVISORY
Ahmed CHAHBI

Expert Comptable DPLE
Commissaire aux comptes

Report on financial information of VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO SA

REPORT TO:

The Board of Directors
Varun Beverages Limited
Plot No. 31,

Institutional Area,

Sector 44 — Gurgaon

AND

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
L-41, Connaught Circus
New Delhi- 110001

AND

APAS & Co.

Chartered Accountants

6006, 6th Floor, PP City Centre,
Road No. 44, Pitampura,

New Delhi - 110034

Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to the
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To the Board of Directors of Varun Beverages Limited

We have audited the standalone financial results of VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO (‘the Company’)
for the year ended 31 December 2021, being submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. These
standalone financial results are based on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and
published standalone year to date figures up to the end of the third quarter of the financial year prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, specified under Section 133 of the Act, and SEBI Citrcular CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated 5 July
2016, which are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these standalone financial results based on our audit of the standalone financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial results
are free of material misstatement(s). An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
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CHAHBI ADVISORY
Ahmed CHAHBI

Expert Comptable DPLE
Commissaire aux comptes

amounts disclosed as financial results. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
standalone financial results:

(i) are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosute Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated
5 July 2016 in this regard ; and

(ii) give a true and fair view of the standalone net profit/loss (including other comprehensive income) and other
financial information in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act for the year ended 31 December 2021

For Ahmed CHAHBI
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 40176825

Place: Casablanca
Date: 14™ January 2022
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Varun Beverages Morocco SA
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2021

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD
Note As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Assets
1) Non-current assets
(a) Propetty, plant and equipment 1A 461 227 063 379 055 000 27193 427 19 413 525 488 420 490 398 468 525
(b) Capital work in progress 1B - 5059 388 - - - 5059 388
(c) Intangible assets 2 5 386 664 2303 203 - - 5 386 664 2303 203
(d) Financial assets
@ Loans 3 2716 972 2139 412 (94 941) (59 909) 2622031 2079 503
(e) Other non-current assets 4 135 844 7 689 204 - - 135 844 7 689 204
Total non-cutrent assets 469 466 542 396 246 207 27 098 486 19 353 615 496 565 028 415 599 823
2) Current assets
(a) Inventoties 5 131 876 395 82058 778 - - 131 876 395 82058 778
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 64 683 407 55131 106 (488 689) (1117 226) 64 194719 54 013 880
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 3640 104 4156 251 - - 3640 104 4156 251
(ii) Others 8 1127 1127 - - 1127 1127
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 - 737 782 - - - 737782
(d) Other current assets 10 8 838 507 10 506 285 86 733 51 555 8925 239 10 557 840
Total current assets 209 039 601 152 591 329 (401 956) (1065 671) 208 637 645 151 525 658
Total assets 678 506 143 548 837 536 26 696 530 18 287 945 705 202 673 567 125 481
Equity and liabilities
3) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 869 638 000 869 638 000 - - 869 638 000 869 638 000
(b) Other equity 12 (574 942216 (579 413 108) (4 165 214) (2036 674 (579 107 430) (581 449 782)
Total equity 294 695 784 290 224 892 (4 165 214) (2036 674) 290 530 570 288 188 218
4) Liabilities
A) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 196 498 653 94 611 192 (839 187) (5859 677) 195 659 467 88 751 515
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 - - 19 865 822 11 368 852 19 865 822 11 368 852
Total non- current liabilties 196 498 653 94 611 192 19 026 635 5509 175 215 525 289 100 120 366
B) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(@) Borrowings 15 27 383 054 49 077 589 5517 981 3701 168 32901 035 52 778 757
(ii) Trade payables 16 122779 412 83 114 891 - 5859 677 122779 412 88 974 568
(iif)Other financial liabilities 17 25203 044 18 116 589 6317 127 5254 599 31520172 23371 188
(b) Other current liabilities 18 11 380 676 13 692 383 - - 11 380 676 13 692 383
(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 19 565519 - - - 565519 -
Total current liabilties 187 311 706 164 001 453 11 835 109 14 815 444 199 146 814 178 816 896
Total liabilities 383 810 359 258 612 644 30 861 744 20 324 619 414 672 103 278 937 263
Total equity and liabilities 678 506 143 548 837 536 26 696 530 18 287 945 705 202 673 567 125 481




Varun Beverages Morocco SA
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 December 2021

(Amount in MAD)
Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD
Note 31 Dec 2021 | 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 | 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 | 31 Dec 2020
I Revenue from operations 20 546 040 859 | 424 928 313 - - 546 040 859 | 424 928 313
11 Other Income 21 4129 803 12 578 974 83 025 5889 832 4212 827 18 468 806
111 Total Income (I + II) 550170 661 | 437 507 287 83 025 5889832 | 550253 686 443 397 119
v Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 189 395 927 149 921 959 - - 189 395 927 149 921 959
Excise duty 30 528 941 26 253 802 - - 30 528 941 26 253 802
Purchase of Stock in Trade 23 9 054 355,72 8 222 682 - - 9 054 356 8222 682
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 24 (5409 115) 1827 698 - - (5409 115) 1827 698
stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 25 109 108 328 90911 971 - - 109 108 328 90911 971
Finance costs 26 8 181 863 10 911 313 1214195 238 974 9396 058 11 150 287
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 40 068 544 43 038 557 7 574 780 7250 015 47 643 324 50 288 572
Other expenses 28 161886319 | 123188 971 (6 577 410) 1375674 | 155308909 | 124 564 645
Total expenses (IV) 542 815162 | 454 276 953 2211 565 8864 664 | 545026 727 463 141 617
\% Profir(Loss) before prior period items 7 355 499 (16 769 666) (2128 540) (2974 832) 5226 959 (19 744 498)
V1 Prior period items
ViI Profit(Loss) before tax (V-VI) 7 355 499 (16 769 666) (2128 540) (2974 832) 5226 959 (19 744 498)
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 51476 104 24 601 230 6 577 410 (1375 674) 58 053 514 23 225 556
amortization (EBITDA)
VIIII  Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 2 884 607 2319 087 - - 2 884 607 2319 087
2 884 607 2 319 087 - - 2884 607 2319 087
IX Profit(Loss) for the year (VII-VIII) 4 470 892 (19 088 753)] (2128 540)] (2974 832) 2 342 352 (22 063 585)
X Total comprehensive Income(Loss) for the 4 470 892 (19088 753)] (2128 540)] (2974 832) 2 342 352 (22 063 585)
reporting period/year, net of tax




Varun Beverages Morocco SA

1A Property, plant and equipment

1B

(Amount in MAD)

Gross block Land Land Buildings Plant and Furniture Vehicles Office Computer  Containers  Post-mix vending Total
machines
freehold leasehold equipment  and fixtures equipment  equipment and refrigerators
(Visi Cooler)
Balance as at 1 January 2020 53 561 350 - 62499196 335964 097 2038114 53438 247 1641 637 1916 336 72 546 810 113214 876 696 820 662
Lease transition impact as at 01 January 2020 21150 953 21150 953
Additions for the year ended 1530 925 11 743 300 100 690 227018 309 985 430 450 4375384 7 141 047 25858 799
Disposal for the year ended (1 562 495) (18 041 345) (14 182 225) (33 786 065)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 53 561 350 - 64 030 121 347707 397 2138804 73253723 1951 622 2346 786 58 880 848 106 173 698 710 044 349
Lease transition(Addition) 15 354 683 15 354 683
Additions for the period ended 23616 019 25927 410 68 958 220 128 627 562 583 258 130 910 933 918 6104 008 126 466 847
Disposal for the period ended (1030 375) (13750) (22954 651) (1990 615) (25989 391)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 77 177 369 - 89957530 416 665 617 2267430 881400615 2209 753 3243 969 35927 115 110 287 090 825 876 488
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 January 2020 - - 18766 177 124 047 350 1491768 46722987 518 654 1261 269 45 044 058 57 829 733 295 681 997
Depreciation due to lease impact 95 250 6 343 882 810 883 7250 015
Depreciation charge during the period ended 3157 612 17 196 846 207 114 2389 131 185 674 310 512 7594 819 11 004 723 42 046 430
Reversal on disposal of assets (1 562 495) (17 838 780) (14 001 344) (33402 619)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 - - 21923789 141 339 445 1698882 538935006 704 328 1571781 34 800 097 55 643 995 311 575 824
Depreciation due to lease impact 95 250 6 668 647 810 883 7 574 780
Depreciation charge during the period ended 3615804 18 681 235 87 951 2146 091 198 928 325 525 4233283 9 743 388,06 39 032 205
Reversal on disposal of assets (990 126) (5500) (18 140 834) (1590 351) (20 726 810)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 - - 25539593 160 115 930 1786834 61718118 903 256 1891 806 20 892 546 64 607 916 337 455998
Net block
Balance as at 31 December 2020 53 561 350 - 42106 331 206 367 952 439921 19 360 217 1247 294 775 005 24 080 751 50 529 702 398 468 525
Balance as at 31 December 2021 77177 369 - 64 417 937 256 549 687 480597 26422497 1306 497 1352163 15 034 570 45 679 174 488 420 490
Capital work in progress
(Amount in MAD)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2020 -
Addition during the year 5059 388
Capitalisation during the year -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 ~ 5059388
Addition during the petriod 93 869 783
Capitalisation during the period

Balance as at 31 December 2021

98 929 170




Varun Beverages Morocco SA

2 Intangible assets

(Amount in MAD)

Gross block Franchise Total
Market .
infrastructure rights/ Software
trademarks

Balance as at 1 January 2020 10 170 498 35941 10 206 439
Additions for the year ended - - - -
Disposal for the year ended (5 240 218) - - (5 240 218)
Balance as at 31 Dec 2020 4930 280 35941 4966 221
Additions for the period ended 4119 800 4119 800
Disposal for the period ended -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 9 050 080 - 35941 9 086 021
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 January 2020 6 884 284 - 26 823 6911 108
Amortisation 986 016 - 6111 992 127
Reversal on disposal of assets (5 240 218) - - (5 240 218)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 2 630 082 - 32934 2663 017
Amortisation 1034 111 2228 1036 339
Reversal on disposal of assets -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 3664 194 - 35163 3699 356
Net block
Balance as at 31 December 2020 2300 197 - 3007 2303 203
Balance as at 31 December 2021 5 385 886 - 778 5 386 664




Varun Beverages Morocco SA

Statement of changes in equity

(Amount in MAD)
11 Equity Share Capital
Equity shares of MAD 50 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up
(In MAD)
Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2020 14 284 240 714 212 000
Changes in share capital during the year 3108 520 155 426 000
Balance as at 31 December 2020 17 392 760 869 638 000
Changes in share capital during the period - -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 17 392 760 869 638 000
12 Other Equity
(In MAD)
Particulars FCMIDTA Retained earnings Total
Balance as at 01 January 2020 0 (559 386 197) (559 386 197)
Profit for the year ended - (22 063 585) (22 063 585)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 0 (581 449 782) (581 449 782)
Profit for the period ended 2 342 352 2 342 352
Balance as at 31 December 2021 0 (579 107 430) (579 107 430)




Varun Beverages Morocco SA

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 | 31Dec2020 | 31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
1A. Property, plant and equipment Refer 461 227 063 379 055 000 27 193 427 19 413 525 488 420 490 398 468 525
Note 1A
1B. Capital WIP Refer - 5059 388 - - - 5059 388
Note 1B
2. Intangible assets Refer 5386 664 2303203 - - 5386 664 2303 203
Note 2
Financial assets
3. Loans
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits 2716972 2139 412 (94 941) (59 909) 2622031 2079 503
2716 972 2139 412 (94 941) (59 909) 2622031 2079 503
4. Other non-current assets
Capital advances 135 844 7 689 204 - - 135 844 7 689 204
Advances other than capital advances
(a) Security Deposits - - - - - -
(b) Advances to related parties - -
135 844 7 689 204 - - 135 844 7 689 204
5. Inventories
(a) Raw material 49 559 627 33 675 541 - - 49 559 627 33 675 541
(b) Raw material in transit 30 712 629 3788 340 - - 30 712 629 3788 340
(c)Work-in-progress - - - - - -
(d) Intermediate goods - -
(e)Finished goods 31527 672 26 118 556 - - 31527 672 26 118 556
(f) Stores and spares 20 076 467 18 476 341 - - 20 076 467 18 476 341
131 876 395 82 058 778 - - 131 876 395 82 058 778
6. Trade receivables
‘Trade receivable, considered good - Unsecured 64 683 407 55131106 (488 689) (1117 226) 64 194 719 54 013 880
'Trade receivable, considered good - Secured - - - - - -
‘Trade receivable - Credit impaired 7 473 481 7 473 481 6 006 670 4818 394 13 480 151 12 291 875
72156 888 62 604 587 5517 981 3701 168 77 674 870 66 305 755
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses 7 473 481 7 473 481 6 006 670 4818 394 13 480 151 12291 875
64 683 407 55131106 (488 689) (1117 226) 64 194 719 54 013 880
7. Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks :
- On current accounts 622 765 958 360 - - 622 765 958 360
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -
Cash and cash equivalents
- Cheques/drafts on hand 775 391 1640 109 - - 775 391 1640 109
- Cash on hand 2 242 009 1557 782 - - 2 242 009 1557 782
3640 164 4156 251 - - 3640 164 4156 251




Varun Beverages Morocco SA
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total

MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

8. Other current financial assets

Claims receivable 1127 1127 - - 1127 1127

1127 1127 - - 1127 1127

9. Current tax Assets

Income tax paid (Net of provision for taxation) - 737 781,51 - - - 737782

- 737 782 - - - 737 782

10. Other current assets

(Unsecured considered good)
Other advances:

Employees 1173 096 918 773 - - 1173 096 918 773
Contractors and suppliers 7278 920 475 997 - - 7278 920 475997
Prepaid expenses 76 090 43 378 86 733 51555 162 823 94933
Other advances 310 401 9 068 136 - - 310 401 9 068 136

Balance with statutory/government authorities - - - - - _

8 838 507 10 506 285 86 733 51555 8925 239 10 557 840

11. Equity share capital
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of 50 MAD each 869 638 000 869 638 000 - - 869 638 000 869 638 000

869 638 000 869 638 000 - - 869 638 000 869 638 000
12. Other equity
Capital resetve
Balance at the beginning of the reporting petiod/year - - - -
Add : Transferred during the year* - - - -
Balance at the end of the year - - - - - -
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (579 413 108)| (560 324 354) (2036 674) 938158 | (581449 782)[ (559 386 197)
Add: Profit for the year 4 470 892 (19 088 753) (2 128 540) (2974 832) 2342352 (22 063 585)
Balance at the end of the year (574 942 216)| (579 413 108) (4165 214) (2036 674)| (579 107 430)| (581 449 782)

Foreign currency Translation Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Adjustment during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year - - - - - -

Foreign currency monetary item translation difference account
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - -
Add: Additions made during the year - - - _
Less: Amortised during the year - - - _

Balance at the end of the year - - - - - -

(574942216)| (579 413 108) (4165 214)| (2036 674) (579 107 430)| (581449 782)




Varun Beverages Morocco SA

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
13. Borrowings
‘Term loans (secured) 75 323 258 - - - 75 323 258 -
Loan from parent company (unsecured) 121 175 396 94 611 192 (839 187) (5859 677) 120 336 209 88 751 515
196 498 653 94 611 192 (839 187) (5 859 677) 195 659 467 88 751 515
14. Other Non Current financial liabilites
Lease liabilities - - 19 865 822 11 368 852 19 865 822 11 368 852
- - 19 865 822 11 368 852 19 865 822 11 368 852
15. Current borrowings
Loans repayable on demand from:
Banks-working capital facilities (secured) 27 383 054 49 077 589 5517 981 3701 168 32901 035 52778 757
27 383 054 49 077 589 5517 981 3701168 32901035 52778 757
16. Trade payables
‘Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 122779 412 83 114 891 - 5859 677 122779 412 88 974 568
enterprises and small enterprises
122 779 412 83 114 891 - 5 859 677 122 779 412 88 974 568
17. Other current financial liabilities
Cutrent maturities of long-term debts 4676 742 - - - 4676 742 -
Lease liabilities - - 6317 127 5254599 6317 127 5254599
Interest payable to parent company 3457 401 7700 741 - - 3457 401 7700 741
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 855 146 517 673 - - 855 146 517 673
Payable for capital expenditure 11 545 559 4324 975 - - 11 545 559 4324975
Employee related payables 138 002 138 756 - - 138 002 138 756
Security deposits 4530 194 5296 033 - - 4530 194 5296 033
Bank overdraft - - - - - -
BG Commission payable to parent company - 138 412 - - - 138 412
25203 044 18 116 589 6 317 127 5254 599 31520172 23 371188




Varun Beverages Morocco SA
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total

MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

18. Other current liabilities

Advances from customers 3660 650 640 779 - - 3660 650 640 779
Statutory dues payable 7720 026 13 051 604 - - 7720 026 13 051 604
11 380 676 13 692 383 - - 11 380 676 13 692 383

19. Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provision for tax, net of advance taxes paid 565519 - - - 565519 -
565 519 - - - 565 519 -

20. Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations (gross)
Sale of products 544 483 803 423 472 033 - - 544 483 803 423 472 033

Other operating revenue
Business development support - - - - - -
Scrap sales 1557 056 1456 280 - - 1557 056 1456 280

546 040 859 424 928 313 - - 546 040 859 424 928 313

21. Other income

Interest on:

-bank deposits - - - _

-others 83 025 30155 83 025 30155
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and - 9028 494 - 5859 677 - 14 888 171
translations
Excess provisions written back 248 455 166 801 - 248 455 166 801
Gain on sale of fixed assets (net) 432997 44 379 - - 432997 44 379
Miscellaneous 3448 350 3339 300 - - 3448 350 3339 300

4129 803 12 578 974 83 025 5 889 832 4212 827 18 468 806

22. Cost of materials consumed

Raw material and packing material consumed

Inventories at beginning of the reporting period/year 37 463 881 40 673 819 - - 37 463 881 40 673 819
Purchases during the reporting period/year (net) 255 969 482 163 234 021 - - 255 969 482 163 234 021

293 433 363 203 907 840 - - 293 433 363 203 907 840
Sold during the reporting period/year 23765 180 16 522 000 - - 23765 180 16 522 000
Inventories at end of the reporting petiod/year 80 272 256 37 463 881 - - 80 272 256 37 463 881

189 395 927 149 921 959 - - 189 395 927 149 921 959




Varun Beverages Morocco SA

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31Dec 2021 | 31Dec2020 | 31Dec2021 | 31Dec 2020
23. Purchases of traded goods
Beverages 7802761 5915851 - - 7802761 5915851
Others 1251595 2306 831 - - 1251595 2306 831
9 054 356 8 222 682 - - 9 054 356 8 222 682
24. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
As at the beginning of the reporting period/year
Finished goods 26 118 556 27 946 255 - - 26 118 556 27 946 255
Intermediate goods - -
Work in progress - - - - - -
26 118 556 27 946 255 - - 26 118 556 27 946 255
As at the closing of the reporting petiod/year
Finished goods 31527672 26 118 556 - - 31527 672 26 118 556
Intermediate goods - -
Work in progress - - - - - -
31527 672 26 118 556 - - 31527 672 26 118 556
(5 409 115) 1827 698 - - (5 409 115) 1827 698
25. Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 96 455 858 79 606 547 - - 96 455 858 79 606 547
Contribution to provident and other funds 10 688 876 9550 308 - - 10 688 876 9550 308
Staff welfare expenses 1963 594 1755116 - - 1963 594 1755116
109 108 328 90 911971 - - 109 108 328 90 911971
26. Finance costs
Interest on:
Term loans - - - - - -
Working capital facilities 3994778 1579 868 - - 3994778 1579 868
Loan from parent company 4010435 8 559 888 - - 4010435 8559 888
Financial liabilities - - 1214195 912 524 1214195 912 524
Others 133272 641 497 - (673 550) 133272 (32 053)
Other borrowing costs:
Processing fees 43 378 130 060 - - 43 378 130 060
8181 863 10 911 313 1214195 238 974 9396 058 11150 287




Varun Beverages Morocco SA

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD MAD
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 | 31Dec 2020 | 31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
27. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on tangible assets 39 032 205 42 046 430 7 574 780 7250015 46 606 985 49 296 446
Amortisation of intangible assets 1036 339 992 127 - - 1036 339 992 127
40 068 544 43 038 557 7 574 780 7 250 015 47 643 324 50 288 572

28. Other expenses
Power and fuel 16 339 448 12570 171 - - 16 339 448 12570 171
Repairs to plant and equipment 15 802 393 13 710 957 - - 15 802 393 13710 957
Repairs to buildings 659 795 390 962 - - 659 795 390 962
Other repairs 1580 925 1419 294 - - 1580 925 1419 294
Consumption of stores and spares 3993 629 2850958 - - 3993 629 2850 958
Rent 6749 138 4917 874 82879 37 646 6832018 4955521
Rates and taxes 4235077 4699 337 - - 4235077 4699 337
Insurance 317 827 309 236 - - 317 827 309 236
Printing and stationery 825011 655 164 - - 825011 655 164
Communication 1128 680 1050 517 - - 1128 680 1050 517
Travelling and conveyance 4313901 3314 704 - - 4313901 3314704
Payment to the auditors as

Audit and reviews 130 000 130 000 - - 130 000 130 000

Taxation matters - -

Other matters - -

Reimbursement of expenses 7 596 43955 - - 7596 43955
Vehicle running and maintenance 9375329 8922 389 (4 693 778) (3 856 027) 4681 551 5066 362
Lease and hire charges 2092 300 1741027 - - 2092 300 1741027
Security and service charges 2369 589 1820 284 - - 2369 589 1820 284
Professional and consultancy 1319 079 1747 754 - - 1319 079 1747 754
Bank charges 1804 857 868 541 - - 1804 857 868 541
Advertisement and sales promotion 31917 787 25116 331 - 5859 677 31917 787 30976 008
Meeting and conference 3980 - - - 3980 -
Freight, octroi and insurance paid (net) 33800 850 25 255 269 - - 33800 850 25 255 269
Delivery vehicle running and maintenance 7 632 204 5701 145 (2 315 600) (1 584 000) 5316 604 4117 145
Distribution expenses 3717107 2556 648 - - 3717107 2556 648
Donations 125 420 24 450 - - 125 420 24 450
EMPTY BREAKAGE- FA 9 874 759 202 565 - 9 874 759 202 565
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) - - - - - -
Allowance for expected credit losses - 2214 204 1188 276 918 378 1188 276 3132581
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure - -
Net loss on foreign cutrency transactions and 1524 594 - (839 187) - 685 408 -
translations
General office and other miscellaneous expenses 245 044 955 235 - - 245 044 955 235

161 886 319 123 188 971 (6 577 410) 1375 674 155 308 909 124 564 645




. Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2021

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW
Note As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31Dec2021 | 31Dec 2020 | 31Dec2021 31 Dec 2020
Assets
1)  Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1A 347,134,579 339,865,064 - - 347,134,579 339,865,064
(b) Capital work in progress 1B - 3,271,730 - - - 3,271,730
(c) Intangible assets 2 75,747 77,596 - - 75,747 77,596
(d) Financial assets
(1) Loans 3 296,337 250,908 - - 296,337 250,908
(i) Others 4 - - - - - -
(e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 - - - - - -
(f) Other non-current assers 6 9,525,349 2,598,523 - - 9,525,349 2,598,523
Total non-current assets 357,032,013 346,063,822 - - 357,032,013 346,063,822
2)  Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 138,358,849 80,898,021 B - 138,358,849 80,898,021
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 80,422,158 72,280,222 (11,947,540) (8,131,898) 68,474,618 64,148,324
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 9,607,918 7,100,858 - = 9,607,918 7,100,858
(ui) Others 10 175,823 1,471,596 - - 175,823 1,471,596
(c) Other current assets 11 15,179,008 13,948,389 - - 15,179,008 13,948,389
Total current assets 243,743,756 175,699,085 (11,947,540) (8,131,898) 231,796,216 167,567,187
600,775,769 521,762,907 (11,947,540) (8,131,898) 588,828,229 513,631,009
Total assets 600,775,769 521,762,907 (11,947,540) (8,131,898) 588,828,229 513,631,009
Equity and liabilities
3)  Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 207,890,000 | 207,890,000 - . 207,890,000 | 207,890,000
(b) Other equity 13 19,195,781 (113,859,509)|  (11,947,540) (8,131,898) 7,248,241 (121,991,407)
Total equity 227,085,781 94,030,491 (11,947,540) (8,131,898) 215,138,241 85,898,593
4)  Liabilities
A) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 162,400,436 145,372,646 0 0 162,400,436 145,372,646
(b) Provisions 15 4,117,747 1,586,830 - - 4,117,747 1,586,830
Total non-current liabilties 166,518,183 146,959,476 0 0 166,518,183 146,959,476
B) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 62,638,549 72,484,618 - - 62,638,549 72,484,618
(i) Trade Payables 17 111,294,616 148,993,095 - g 111,294,616 148,993,095
(1) Other financial liabilities 18 28,952,800 53,690,389 - - 28,952,800 53,690,389
(b) Other current liabilities 19 3,688,533 4,948,251 - - 3,688,533 4,948,251
(¢ ) Provisions 15 597,307 656,587 2 - 597,307 656,587
Total current liabilties 207,171,805 280,772,940 - - 207,171,805 280,772,940
Total liabilities 373,689,988 427,732,416 0 0 373,689,988 427,732,416
Total equity and liabilities 600,775,769 521,762,907 (11,947,540) (8,131,898) 588,828,229 513,631,009
: ©)
For PKF Zambia
Chartered Accountants
fauiLe k. Mumen
Partner
Place: Lusaka ‘Qu é“d_
Date: 20 JANUARY 2022




Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 December 2021

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
ZMW ZMW | ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW
Note | 31Dec2021 | 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 | 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 | 31 Dec 2020
Income
1 Revenue from operations 20 772,258,362 374,850,107 - - 772,258,362 374,850,107
11 Other Income 2 44,889,342 314,402 - - 44,889,342 314,402
111 Total Income (I + II) 817,147,704  375,164,509| - - 817,147,704 375,164,509
IV Expenses
Cost of materdals consumed 22 436,837,566 188,038,068 - - 436,837,566, 188,038,068
lixcise duty 2,276,893 1,737,484 - - 2,276,893 1,737,484
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 1,081,164 4,494,003 - - 1,081,164 4,494,003
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 24 (20,218,787) (8,221,078) - - (20,218,787) (8,221,078)
work-in-progress =
limployee benefits expense 25 80,808,543 53,159,921 - - 80,808,543 53,159,921
l‘inance costs 26 15,512,088 12,378,135 - - 15,512,088 12,378,135
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 32,379,648 27,962,213 - - 32,379,648 27,962,213
Other expenses 28 135,415,300 191,635,649 3,815,642 5,180,548 139,230,942 196,816,197
Total expenses (IV) 684,092,413 471,184,396 3,815,642 5,180,548 687,908,056] 476,364,944
V  Profit before prior period items (11-1V) 133,055,291 (96,019.887)| (3,815,642)| (5,180,548)  129,230,648] (101,200,435)
VI Prior period items 29 - - - - - a
VII  Profit before tax (V-VI) 133,055,291 (96,019,887)| (3,815,642)] (5,180,548) 129,239,648|  (101,200,435)
Ilarnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortizaton 136,057,684 (55,993,942)|  (3,815,642)| (5,180,548) 132,242,042 (61,174,489)
(EBITDA)
VI Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - - - - - =
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier pedods -
(2) Deferred tax -
IX Profit for the reporting period (VII-VIII) 133,055,291 (96,019,887)| (3,815,642)| (5,180,548) 129,239,648 | (101,200,435)
X Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 133,055,291  (96,019,887)] (3,815,642)] (5,180,548) 129,239,648 (101,200,435)

For PKF Zambia
Chartered Accountants

fHULILE K. MUMBA ¥

Partner

2Ame\E

Place: 1usaka

Da: 20 JANUARY

2022

%Qﬂ‘ﬂ(ﬂ_
.




Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Statement of changes in equity

11 Equity Share Capital
Equity shares of ZMW 10 each issued, subscnibed and fully paid up

(In ZMW)
Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2020 3,500,000 35,000,000
Changes in share capital during the period 17,289,000 172,890,000
Balance as at 31 December 2020 20,789,000 207,890,000
Changes in share capital during the period 7 -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 20,789,000 207,890,000

12 Other Equity

(In ZMW)
Pardculars Retained earnings FCMITDA Total
Balance as at 01 January 2020 (20,790,971) (3,331,588) (24,122,559)
FCMITDA Creation during the period - (12,231,376) (12,231,376)
FCMITDA Charged to statement of P&L A/c during the period - 15,562,965 15,562,965

Dividend paid

Profit for the year ended

(101,200,435)

(101,200,435)

Balance as at 31 December 2020

(121,991,405) 0 (121,991,405)
FCMITDA Creation during the period - - 2
FCMITDA Charged to statement of P&L A/c during the period - - -
Dividend paid - - -
Profit for the period ended 129,239 648 - 129,239,648
Balance as at 31 December 2021 7,248,243 0 7,248,243 |

For PKF Zambia
Chartered Accountants

THULILE K. MuMBA

Partner

PKF

SAMB\YS

Place: Lusaka

Dae: 20 JANUARY__ Q022

For and on behalf of Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited

Roavoun Aty

Whole Time Director Whole Tite Director




Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021

1B

1A Property, plant and equipment
(In N?Hg_
Gross block Land leasehold Buildings Plant and Furniture and  Vehicles Office Computer Containers  Post-mix vending Total
equipment fixtures equipment equipments machines and
refrigerators (Visi
Cooler)

Balance as at 1 January 2020 18,355 34,274,254 83,478,612 1,661,388 25,103,147 620,526 1,782,657 71,262,213 44,140,708 262,341,860
Acquired on business acquistion year ended 57,000,000 49,057,451 62,321,775 36,328 3,891,662 317,655 99,501 653,793 12,669,293 186,047,458
Additions for the year ended - 20,000 909,098 9,209 672,500 - 122,749 19,204,329 2,875,973 23,813,858
Disposal for the year ended - - (403,173) - - (236,831) (640,004)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 57,018,355 83,351,706 146,709,485 1,706,925 29,264,135 938,181 2,004,907 91,120,335 59,449,143 471,563,172
Additions for the period ended 278,250 2,237,381 11,786,800 124,217 1,023,677 72,287 449,126 21,212,362 4,262,236 41,446,336
Disposal for the period ended (45,840) (3,355,426) (70,000) (165,016) (3,636,281)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 57,296,605 85,543,247 155,140,859 1,831,142 30,217,812 1,010,468 2,289,017 112,332,697 63,711,379 509,373,226
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as ar 01 January 2020 1,846 7,057,460 27,322,459 1,306,261 16,483,760 293,818 589,815 30,254,998 21,019,024 104,329,440
Depreciation charge during the period ended 301,824 1,093,577 5,525,988 50,650 3,803,298 82,638 573,985 11,571,803 4,951,347 27,955,109
Reversal on disposal of asscts - (384,135) - - (202,306) (586,441)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 303,670 8,151,037 32,848,447 1,356,911 19,902,923 376,456 1,163,799 41,826,800 25,768,065 131,698,108
Depreciation charge during the quarter ended 607,095 1,575,609 7,224,259 58,215 3,990,583 103,931 642,374 13,231,392 4,944,341 32,377,799
Reversal on disposal of asscts (8,345) (1,765,486) (31,204) (32,224) (1,837,259)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 910,765 9,718,300 38,307,221 1,415,126 23,862,302 480,387 1,773,949 55,058,192 30,712,406 162,238,647
Net block
Balance as at 31 December 2020 56,714,685 75,200,669 113,861,038 350,014 9,361,212 561,725 841,108 49,293,535 33,681,078 339,865,064
Balance as at 31 December 2021 56,385,840 75,824,947 116,833,638 416,016 6,355,510 530,081 515,068 57,274,505 32,998,974 347,134,579
Capital work in progress

(In ZMK)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2020 2,120,184
Addition during the year 1,219,157
Capitalisation during the year (67,611)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 3,271,730
Additon during the period 279,500
Capitalisation during the period (3,551,230) v %7}
Balance as at 31 December 2021 -

2001/ 2002

SAMB\ES



Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated financial statements for the period
ended 31 December 2021

2 Intangible assets

(In ZMW)

Gross block Franchise rights/ Software Total
trademarks

Balance as ar 1 January 2020 129,977 - 129,977
Additions for the year ended 5,840 5,840
Disposal for the year ended -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 129,977 5,840 135,817
Additions for the period ended - - -
Disposal for the period ended - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 129,977 5,840 135,817
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 January 2020 51,118 0 51,118
Amortisation for the year 6,174 929 7,103
Reversal on disposal of assets -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 57,291 929 58,220
Amortisation for the period 1,849 1,849
Reversal on disposal of assets -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 59,141 929 60,070
Balance as at 31 December 2020 72,686 4,911 77,597
Balance as at 31 December 2021 70,837 4,911 75,748

Tem PKF

?AMB\?‘
a0lol 2022



Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited

ey L

Summary of significant accounting policies and other expl ¥ on the C lidated fi 1 for the period ended 31 D ber 2021
IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
Before IND AS
ZIMW |  ZMW IMW | ZMW | ZIMW | ZMW
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020  31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
1A. Property, plant and equipment Refer Separare Note 347,134,579 339,863,064 347,134,579 339,865,064
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec2021 31 Hl YL e 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
1B. Capital work in progress Refer Sepamie Notw - 3271,730 - - - 3,271,730
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
2, Intangible assets Refer Separae Now 75,747 77,396 - - 75,747 77,396
3. Non-current loans
As at As ar As at As at Asat As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits 296,337 250,908 - 296,337 250,908
Loan to related Parties - -
Other Loans
296,337 251,518 - < 296,337 250,908
4. Other financial assets
Asat As at As at Asat Asat As at
31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31Dec 2021 31 Dee 2020
Bank deposits having maturity more than 12 months » -
Interest accrued on loans
Income acerued on Investments
5. Non Current tax assets
As at As at As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
MAT eredhit entitlement . R - = - x
Income ax pard (includes amount paid under promest)
6. Other non-current assets
Asar As at As at As at As at As at
31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Capiml advances 8,793,050 1,866,224 - = 8,793,030 1,866,224
Advances other than eapital advances
{a) Seeunny Deposits 732,300 732300 - - 73230 732,300
{b) Advanees o related parties
{c ) Other Advances
Balance with stattory authorties (paid under protest)
Prepard expenses
9,525,349 2,598,523 - - 9,523,344 2,598,523
7. Inventories
As ar As at As at As at As at Asat
31Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020  31Dec2021 31 Dec 2020
(@) Raw materaal U3039450 36,086,002 : = 93,039,430 56,986,902
(b) Raw mareral n teansit - 4 - - 4
(€) Work-mn-progress - - - -
(d) Intermediare goods
(¢) Finished goods 240,164 7,939,931 - 24000164 7,939,931
(£ Stores and spares 21,319,226 15,971,185 - 21,319,226 15,971,185
134,358,849 HULBYB,021 - 138,358,849 BULBYR,121




Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other expl ¥ on the C lidated fi 1 for the period ended 31 December 2021
8. Trade receivables
Asat As at As at As at As at As at
31Dec 2021 31Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec2020 31Dec2021 31 Dec 2020
Trade recevable, considered pood - Unsecured BiA422 158 T2055,822 | (11,947,540) (8,131,898) 6B 474,618 63,923,924
Trade recevable, eonsidered goad - Seeured - 224 HK) - - - 224400
Trade recenvable - Credit impaired 6726007 672,007 11,947 5341 8,151,898 12,620,147 8,804,505
H104,763 72,952 428 - - 81,194,765 72,952,428
lLess ; Allowanee for expected eredit losses 672,607 GT2607 | 11,947,340 B,131,898 12,620,147 8,830
0,422,158 72,280,232 | (11.947,541) (8,131,898) 68474618 4,148,324
Includes amounts due from companies in which directors of the
a.) Varun Beverages Morocco SA
b} Ole Springs Bottlers (Povate) Limired
) Devyani Food Street Povate Limited
d.) Varum Beverages (Zambia) |imired
¢) Varun Beverages Mosambigue |imitada
f) Vamn Beverages (Nepal) Privare Limited
) Deveam Internanonal Lamited
h.) Alisha Retil Prvate Limired
1)} Lemon Tree Horels Timired
1) Devyani Food Industeies Limuted
k) Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) 1imited
9. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Balance with banks
- (In current accounts 8,972 264 6,613,014 - - B972268 6,613,014
- Depasits with ongnal maturity of less than three months
Cash and cash equivalents
- Cheques/drafts on hand = i = = g z
- Cash on hand 633,630 487 84 - - (33,630 487,84
9,607 918 71000858 - 9,607,918 T 100,858
10. Other current financial assets
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Claims recevable 173,823 1471,396 - - 175,823 1,471,396
175,823 1,471,596 - - 175,823 1,471,596
11. Other current assets
As at As at As at As at As at Asat
31 Dec2021 31 Dec2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
{Unseeured eonsidered pood, unless otherwise stared)
Advanees
Employees H28,011 9 A6 - - 828,011 94,469
Contractors and supphers 8,629,921 8,313,844 - 8,629,921 8,513,804
Prepaid expenses 306,360 - - 306,360 e
Balanee with smnroey/ government authorines 5,324,113 2,863,667 P - 3,324,113 2,863,667
Advances Recoverable i cash or kind 9,702 1,624,448 - - 0,702 1,624,448
15,179,018 13,948,380 - - 15,179,008 13,948,389
12. Equity share capital
As at As at Asat As at As at As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021  31Dec2020 31 Dec2021 31 Dec 2020
Authorised share capital 33,K0000K1 33,0000 35,000,000 33,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
3000 equiry shaves of MK 10 cach issued, subseribed and fully pud up 207 8904000 207 8O - 207 BHLN0 207 BHLINKD

207 8900000

2017 890,000

207 K000

2T AL




13. Other equity

As at As at As at As at As at As at
31Dec 2021 31Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance ac the begnning of the year -
Add: Adustment during the year &
Balanee at the end of the year = - B
Retained earnings
Balanee ar the begmning of the reporting period fyear (113,839,314) (17,839,622)| (8,131 ,R‘JH)' (2931,350)  (121,991,407) (20,7900,972)
Less: Transfer o debenture redemption reserve = -
Less: Dividend Pad % s 2
less: Taxes on Dindend Pasd = _ =
Adck: Profit froe the reporting penod/vear 133,11533,291 (96,019,887)  (3,813,642) (3,181),548) 120,230,648 (1011,200,435)
Balance at the end of the reporting penod/year 19,195,781 (113,859,509)] (11,947,348 (8,131,808) 724824 {121,991407)
Foreign currency y item t lation diff
Balance ar the begmnimg of the reporang period/ year - - - (3,331,588) (3,331,388)
Add: Addinons made dunng the reporing period/ year - - - (12,231,376) (12,231,376)
Less: Amortised during the reporting peciod)/ year - - - (13,562,963) (13,562,963)
Balanee at the end of the reporning period/ vear - = = “ 5. =
19,195,781 | (113,859,509)] (11,947,540) (8,131,898) 7,248,241 (121,991,407)
14, Borrowings
Asart As at As at As at As at As at
31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Term loans (securcd)
IFrom banks & = 2 - - -
Term loan (unsecured) 5 =
from a Parent Company 162400436 143,372,646 - - 162,110,436 143,372,646
Defereed value added ts (unsecurcd) & = 0 0 1] ]
16240436 145,372,646 0 il 162,401,436 143,372,646
Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other expl y infor on the C lidated fi 1 for the period ended 31 December 2021
15, Provisions
Asat As at As at As at Asat As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefirs
CGirarury S 117,747 1,580,831 - - H117,747 1,586,830
Compensated absences & 5 o = = 2
Liability for foreign currency dervanve contmer = 2 = =
17,047 1,586,830 - = INEEASS) 1,586,831
Current
Proviston for emplovee benefits
Gratuiry - . " - = "
Compensated absences 597,307 636,387 - 397,307 656,587
597,307 636,387 - 397,317 656,587
16. Current borrowings
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Loans repayable on demand from:
A body corporate (unsecured) 36,074 = X 36,4074
Others (Unseeured) = 3 = = -
Banks-working capatal facilines (seeured) 62,638,349 2,448,544 - - 62,634,549 T2 48,54+
62638580 728018 . B (263854 T23B4618
17. Trade payables
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Trade payables
Total oursmnding dues o micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - =
Toal nurstanding dues of creditors other than mices enterprises and small enterprises 111,294,616 148,993,195 - - 11,294,616 148,993,095
111,294616 148,993,085 - - 111,204,616 148,993,003




18. Other Current financial liabilities

As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dee 2020
Current manunties of long-term debr - 1,668,135 3 - - 1,668,135
Interest payable 1o parent company 2,641,276 T8, 703 - - 2,641,276 27,018,703
Capital erediors - - - - - -
Limployee relared payables 253,294 639,166 - - 253,294 639,166
Unpaid Dividend - TOUN - - - FUATEY
Security deposits 26,058,231 23,664,284 - - 26,038,231 23,664,284
28,932 8K 53,691,389 - = 28,952 800 53,690,389
19. Other current liabilities
As at As at Asat As at Asat Asat
31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Advances from customers 1,157,427 LA35076 - - 1,157,427 1,833,076
Stamutory dues payable 2,531,103 3,113,175 - - 2,531,105 3,113,175
3,688,533 +.048,251 - - 3,688,333 4,048,251
20. Revenue from operations
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dee 2020
Revenue from operations (gross)

Sale of products TTMI0HT 374320280 A TIHOET 374320280
Other operating revenue

Serap sales 947 3115 329,827 - 947,505 529,827

772,258,362 374,830,107 - 772,258 362 374850,107
Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated fi 1 for the period ended 31 December 2021
21, Other income
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Intercst on:

-bank deposits = % e = 2
Net g on foreign currency transacunns and teanslations 43,844,408 - - 43,8-4H468 -
lixeess provisions wetten back H01,429 239,112 801,420 239,112
Gin on sale of fxed assers (net) 245,45 73,200 245,45 73,290
Miscellaneous Income - - - "
Amornsation of goverament grant - - -

44,880,342 314402 - - 44,889,342 314402
22, Cost of materials consumed
As at As at As at As at Asat As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Raw material and packing material consumed
Inventones at beginning of the reporting period fyear 36,986,905 27,333,356 - 36,986,905 37,333,356
Purchases during the repornng peviod/ vear (net) 474,225 466 221 468,804 - - 474,223 466 221 468 814
331,2125M 248,802,361 - - 531.212.371 246,802,361
Sold during the reporting penod/ vear 1,335,340 3,777,388 - 1,333,346 3,777,388
Inventones at end of the repocting penod/vear 93,0349 439 36,986,905 - 93,139,439 36,986,903
436,837,366 THEGHIGR 436,837,566 THE 38,068
23. Purchases of traded poods
As ar As ar As at Asat As at As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Bevempes 1,081,164 44940005 - - 1,081,164 4494003
Cithers
14081,164 4,494,103 - - 1,081,164 4494003
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As at Asat Asat As at As at As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec2020  31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
As at the beginning of the reporting period /year
Famished goods 7939931 4,621,039 7,939,931 4,621,139
Intermediate gonds . < = -
Work in progress - 1,695 - 1,695
7,939,931 4622734 7,939,931 4,622,734
As at the closing of the reporting period/year
Finished goods 244K00,16+4 7,939,931 24000164 7,939,931
Intermediare goods - » - = -
Work in progress < - " = 3
24 (000,164 7939931 2 24164 7939931
Finished goods used as fixed assets (4,138,554) (+903,881) = i (+,158,334) (+003,881)
(20,218,787) (8,221,078) - - (20,218,787) (8,221,0178)
25. Employee benefits expense
As at As ar As at As at As at As at
31Dec2021 31 Dec2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Salaries and wages 75,215,721 48,367,135 - - 75,215,721 48,367,135
Contriburion o provident and orher funds 1,769,541 1,433,207 - - 1,769,540 1,433,297
Staff welfare expenses 3823240 3,339,469 - - 3,823,282 3,359,469
8,808,543 53,159.921 - - Ri1,8018,543 33,159,921
26, Finance costs
As at As ar As at As at As at As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Interest on:
Term loans = - - - - -
Waorking capiral feilities 11,186,515 3,689,343 - - 11,186,515 3,689.343
Orhers . " P = .
Loan from Parent Company/ Subsidiary +323,373 #,688,330 - 4325573 8,688,330
Other borrowing costs: 32 :
Processing fees 262 - - 62
Iinance Costs (INIDAS) = = F; =
13,512,188 12,378,155 - - 13,512,188 12,378,135




Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated fi 1 st for the period ended 31 December 2021
27. Depreciation and amortisation expense
As ar As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec2021 31 Dec2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Deprecianon on tangible assets 32,377,799 27,953,100 - - 32,377,799 27,955,108
Amorosanon of intangible assets 1,849 7,104 - 1,849 7,104
32,379,648 27,962,213 - 32,379,648 27.962,213
28, Other expenses
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31Dec2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
Power and fucl 21,246,486 17,688 834 - - 21,246,486 17,688,854
Repars to plant and equipment 6,938 887 6,225 387 - 6,958,887 6,225,587
Repuirs to buildings 315,049 256,374 - 515,049 256,374
Other repairs 3,100,775 3,956,081 - - 5,100,775 3,956,181
Consumption of stores and spares 6,921,612 3n22103 - - 6,921,602 3922122
Renr 2,916,341 2604347 - - 2,916,341 2,604,547
Rates and raxes 504988 1,902,914 - . 504,988 1902914
Insuranee 1,029,844 648,957 - 1,029,848 (48,957
Prnnng and stationery GT0 TGN 431,963 - 670,760 431,963
Communicarion 1,412,146 1,235,865 - 1,402,146 1,253,865
Traveling and eonveyance 3,5018, 838 1,657,253 - 3,508,838 1,657,233
Payment o the auditors as - -
Audit and reviews 731,972 336,385 - 731,972 336,385
Taxation maters - -
Other maters - -
Reimbursement of expenses - -
Vehicle running and maintenance 3,126,692 2,116,192 - - 3,126,692 2,116,192
l.case and hire charges = - = = R
Management Fee 5 < - = -
Secunty and service chasges 1,886,940 1,878,224 - - 1,886,940 1,878,224
Prosfessional eharges and eonsultaney 7,267 462 8,617 304 - - 7,267 462 8,617,304
Bank charges 1,566,763 784211 - - 1,566,763 T8+,211
Advertisement and sales promonon 12,592,011 9,543,246 - 12,592,111 9,543,246
Meeting and conference . . B » < y
Royaley - 5 = = 5 4
Freight, aerrod and insurance paid (net) 43,299,283 38.916,131) - 43,299 283 28,916,130
Delivery vehicle running and maintenance 6,978 003 3,730,111 - - 6,978,003 5,730,111
Distribution expenses 3,751,180 4,334,703 - = 3,731,180 4,354,705
Loading and unloading charpes 1,492,337 H3l 845 - L 1,492,337 851,845
Donations = < B = - -
Property, plant and equipment written off - - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (ner) - - - - -
Bad debts and advances weitten off 8068 - - - 81168 -
Mlowanee For expected credin losses - - 3,815,642 1,848,959 3,815,642 1,848,939
Netloss on foreign curtency transactions and tanslnons - A7,089,135 - 3,331,588 - N1420,724
Gieneral office and other misecllaineous expenses 1,938 o8 BGT,643 = - 1,938,868 BGT,643
135,413,300 191,635,649 3,815,642 3,1811548 139,230,942 196,816,197
29, Prior period items
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 | 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021

31 Dec 2020

KM

20 lot |

PKF

LILEAMBIR



Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021

Total I Total
q Note RTGS USD RTGS USD
Particulars
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
Assets
1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1A 4,340,611,180 39,944,520 4,301,652,299 32,638,869
(b) Capital work in progtess 1B 276,878,353 2,547,976 235,467,192 1,791,149
(c) Financial assets
(i) Others 2 5,351,272 49,245 1,571,746 11,956
(d) Other non-current assets 3 123,728,699 1,138,615 95,197,078 724,144
Total non-cutrent assets 4,746,569,503 43,680,355 4,633,888,315 35,166,118
2) Cutrrent assets
(a) Inventories 4 1,919,270,074 17,662,103 1,656,522,458 12,600,817
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 534,804,815 4,921,547 493,091,541 3,750,843
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 864,974,823 7,959,940 241,817,466 1,839,455
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 7 563,674,948 5,187,225 277,713,786 2,112,510
(iv) Others 8 - - - -
(c) Current tax assets 9 - - - -
(d) Other current assets 10 470,533,789 4,330,092 1,277,056,284 9,714,298
Total current assets 4,353,258,449 40,060,906 3,946,201,535 30,017,924
Total assets 9,099,827,952 83,741,262 8,580,089,850 65,184,042
Equity and liabilities
3) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 70,001 1,100 70,001 1,100
(b) Other equity 12 5,445,764,147 50,114,246 3,416,655,891 25,940,430
Total equity 5,445,834,149 50,115,346 3,416,725,892 25,941,530
4) Liabilities
A) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 1,613,690,100 14,850,000 1,960,519,374 14,879,148
Total non-current liabilties 1,613,690,100 14,850,000 1,960,519,374 14,879,148
B) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 103,232,700 950,000 - -
(i) Trade payables 15 1,045,566,340 9,621,835 1,375,135,460 10,460,366
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 286,004,946 2,631,963 1,221,273,336 9,289,969
(b) Other current liabilities 17 605,499,718 5,572,117 606,435,789 4,613,029
(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 18 - - - -

Total current liabilties

2,040,303,703 18,775,916 3,202,844,584 24,363,364

Total liabilities

3,653,993,804 33,625,916 5,163,363,958 39,242,512

Total equity and liabilities

9,099,827,952 83,741,262 8,580,089,850 65,184,042

For PKF Zimbabwe

C ered Accountants

Sydney Bvurere (Partner)

Place: Harare
Date: 20-01-2022

For Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd
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Director Director




Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 December 2021

Total I Total
] RTGS USD RTGS USD
Particulars
Note 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
Income
I Revenue from operations 19 15,405,817,498 141,772,196 13,020,135,497 99,041,427
11 Other income 20 320,618,747 2,950,497 17,190,070 123,307
111 Total Income (I + II) 15,726,436,246 144,722,694 13,037,325,567 99,164,735
v Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 6,534,483,078 60,133,649 4,906,460,803 36,770,364
Purchase of traded goods 22 828,701,806 7,626,137 267,361,879 2,033,765
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in- 23 (124,628,866) (598,199) (281,001,637) (1,585,471)
progress
Employee benefits expense 24 1,141,950,541 10,508,812 683,312,867 5,197,817
Finance costs 25 172,359,946 1,586,144 357,896,381 2,761,273
Depreciation expense 26 528,562,540 4,864,102 465,818,150 3,543,381
Other expenses 27 3,320,906,535 30,560,677 3,533,918,169 26,881,771
Total expenses (IV) 12,402,335,580 114,681,322 9,933,766,613 75,602,901
\4 (Loss)/profit/ before prior period items (III-IV) 3,324,100,666 30,041,372 3,103,558,954 23,561,834
V1 Prior period items - - - :
VII (Loss)/profit before tax (V-VI) 3,324,100,666 30,041,372 3,103,558,954 23,561,834
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization 3,704,404,404 33,541,121 3,910,083,414 29,743,181
(EBITDA)
VIIII Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - - - -
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to catlier petiods - - - -
(3) Deferted tax - - - -
Total Tax expenses - - - -
X (Loss)/profit for the year (VII-VIII) 3,324,100,666 30,041,372 3,103,558,954 23,561,834
X Other comprehensive income for the reporting period/yeat, net 3,324,100,666 30,041,372 3,103,558,954 23,561,834
of tax

PRE

For PKF Zimbabwe
Chartered Accountants

Sydn&vurere (Partner)

Place: Harare
Date: 20-01-2022

For Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd
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Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited
Statement of changes in equity

1. Equity Share Capital
Equity shares of USD 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

(Amount in RT'GS)
Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2020 1,100 70,001
Changes in share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 1,100 70,001
Changes in share capital during the period - -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 1,100 70,001
2. Other equity

(Amount in RTGS)
Particulars Retained earnings Total
Balance as at 01 January 2020 313,096,937 313,096,937
Profit for the year ended 3,103,558,954 3,103,558,954
Balance as at 31 December 2020 3,416,655,891 3,416,655,891
Profit for the period ended 3,324,100,666 3,324,100,666
IAS 29 Adjustment (1,294,992,409) (1,294,992,409)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 5,445,764,147 5,445,764,147

For and on behalf of Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

PRE

For PKF Zimbabwe
Chartered Accountants

P

Sydney Bvurere (Partner)

Place: Harare
Date: 20-01-2022

1

Director

\>.\'\ &>

Director




Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

1A

1B

Property, plant and equipment

(Amount in RTGS)
Gross block Land Land Building Plarft & Furniture & Vehicles Office Computer Containers Post-mix M ending Grand
Machinery machines
Freehold Leasehold Building MI;I:}?itniLry Fixtures Vehicles Equipment Equipment | Containers arg‘c;i:t::llel—::)o s Total

Balance as at 01 January 2020 91,640,780 956,163,346 1,598,692,136 29,853,061 90,797,282 25,141,063 8,337,964 - 134,700,214 2,935,325,845
Additions during the year 14,049,783 206,327,161 1,119,765 48,382,855 11,706,688 8,815,482 74,610,914 365,012,649
Disposals during the year -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 91,640,780 - 970,213,129 1,805,019,297 30,972,826 139,180,137 36,847,751 17,153,446 - 209,311,128 3,300,338,494
Restated Opening Balance in RTGS 147,300,843 - 1,559,493,632 2,901,337,875 49,784,861 223,714,286 59,228,051 27,571,972 - 336,440,893 5,304,872,414
Additions during the period 31,459,957 361,203,186 33,716,218 48,207,985 13,705,772 10,238,179 79,887,495 578,418,793
Disposals during the period -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 147,300,843 - 1,590,953,590 3,262,541,062 83,501,079 271,922,271 72,933,823 37,810,152 - 416,328,388 5,883,291,207
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 January 2020 - 64,732,276 207,053,795 5,989,115 26,854,595 3,906,798 2,029,250 - 30,549,521 341,115,350
Depreciation charge during the period ended 48,314,444 165,097,778 6,112,065 24,606,397 5,656,483 2,599,109 37,414,770 289,801,046
Reversal on disposal of assets -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 - - 113,046,720 372,151,574 12,101,180 51,460,991 9,563,281 4,628,358 - 67,964,292 630,916,396
IAS 29 Adjustment 55,660,064 - 520,619,065 881,181,366 11,462,114 53,278,231 16,571,829 7,607,390 - 85,850,142 1,632,230,200
Restated Opening Balance in RTGS - - 181,708,158 598,186,101 19,451,101 82,716,968 15,371,752 7,439,494 - 109,243,914 1,014,117,488
Depreciation charge during the period ended 78,469,997 296,073,632 13,077,480 49,756,160 12,649,819 6,701,974 71,833,478 528,562,540
Reversal on disposal of assets -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 - - 260,178,155 894,259,733 32,528,581 132,473,128 28,021,570 14,141,468 - 181,077,392 1,542,680,028
Net block
Balance as at 31 December 2020 147,300,843 - 1,377,785,475 2,314,049,089 30,333,759 140,997,377 43,856,299 20,132,478 - 227,196,979 4,301,652,299
Balance as at 31 December 2021 147,300,843 - 1,330,775,435 2,368,281,329 50,972,498 139,449,143 44,912,252 23,668,683 - 235,250,996 4,340,611,179

Capital work in progress

(Amount in RTGS)
Particulars Amount

Balance as at 01 Jan 2020 10,066,078
Additions during the year 400,645,412
Capitalisation during the year 264,219,478
Balance as at 31 December 2020 146,492,013
Reinstated RTGS Balance 235,467,192
Additions during the period 41,411,161

Capitalisation during the period

Balance as at 31 December 2021

276,878,353
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Total Total
RTGS USD RTGS USD
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
Property, plant and equipment Refer Note 1 4,340,611,180 39,944,520 4,301,652,299 32,638,869
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
Capital work in progress Refer Note 1 276,878,353 2,547,976 235,467,192 1,791,149
2. Other financial assets
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits 5,351,271 49,245 1,571,746 11,956
Loan to related parties - - - -
Other loans - - - -
Foreign Ex Forward asset - - - -
Less: PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 0 0 - -
0 0 - -
5,351,272 49,245 1,571,746 11,956
3. Other non-current assets
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
Capital advances 123,728,699 1,138,615 95,197,078 724,144
123,728,699 1,138,615 95,197,078 724,144
4. Inventories
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
Raw material 1,401,337,406 12,895,822 1,088,057,784 8,276,626
Stores and spares 211,881,494 1,949,842 276,851,495 2,105,951
Intermediate Goods - - - -
Work in Progress 25,726 237 - -
Finished goods 306,025,448 2,816,202 291,613,179 2,218,240
1,919,270,074 17,662,103 1,656,522,458 12,600,817
5. Trade receivables
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
Trade receivable, considered good - Unsecured 534,804,815 4,921,547 493,091,541 3,750,843
Trade receivable, considered good - Secured - - - -
Trade receivable - Credit impaired 76,594 705 123,115 937
534,881,409 4,922,252 493,214,656 3,751,780
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses 76,594.00 704.86 123,115 937
534,804,815 4,921,547 493,091,541 3,750,843
6. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts 854,962,940 7,867,805 221,054,559 1,681,515
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents:
- Cheques/drafts on hand - - - -
- Cash on hand 10,011,883 92,134 20,762,907 157,939




7. Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months
*

8. Other current financial assets

Security deposits
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9. Current tax assets

Advance tax (net of provisions)

10. Other current assets

(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Advances to:
Employees
Contractors and suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Balance with statutory/government authorities

11. Equity share capital

Authorised share capital

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of USD 1 each

12. Other equity

Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Adjustment during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period/year
Less: IAS 29 Adjustment

Add: (Loss)/profit for the reporting period/year
Balance at the end of the reporting period/year

864,974,823 7,959,940 241,817,466 1,839,455
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
563,674,948 5,187,225 277,713,786 2,112,510
563,674,948 5,187,225 271,713,786 2,112,510
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
16,188,196 148,972 5,906,470 44,929
420,883,206 3,873,182 1,093,668,968 8,319,309
33,462,386 307,938 177,480,846 1,350,059
470,533,789 4,330,092 1,277,056,284 9,714,298
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
70,001 1,100 70,001 1,100
70,001 1,100 70,001 1,100
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
- (6,440,619) - 2,785,364
- (5,867,556) - (9,225,983)
- (12,308,175) - (6,440,619)
3,416,655,891 32,381,049 313,096,937 8,819,215
(1,294,992,409) - - -
3,324,100,666 30,041,372 3,103,558,954 23,561,834
5,445,764,147 62,422,421 3,416,655,891 32,381,049
5,445,764,147 50,114,246 3,416,655,891 25,940,430




13. Non Current Borrowings

Loans from bank (secured)
Loan from Parent Company (unsecured)
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14. Current Borrowings
Working capital facilities
-from banks- (secured)

15. Trade payables

‘Trade payables
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

16. Other financial liabilities

Current maturities of long term debt
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Payable for capital expenditure

Employee related payables

Interest payable to parent company on Loan
Commission payable to parent company

17. Other current liabilities

Advances from customers

Statutory dues payable

18. Current tax liability

Provision for income tax (net of taxes paid)

19. Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations (gross)
Sale of products

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales

20. Other income

As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
- - 112,616,950 822,543
1,613,690,100 14,850,000 1,847,902,423 14,056,604
1,613,690,100 14,850,000 1,960,519,374 14,879,148
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
103,232,700 950,000 - -
103,232,700 950,000 - -
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
1,045,566,340 9,621,835 1,375,135,460 10,460,366
1,045,566,340 9,621,835 1,375,135,460 10,460,366
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
- - 982,905,940 7,476,758
5,458,011 50,227 37,158,677 282,658
5,535,086 50,937 11,218,586 85,337
64,249,052 591,253 11,756,154 89,427
210,762,796 1,939,547 162,328,345 1,234,801
- - 15,905,134 120,987
286,004,946 2,631,963 1,221,273,336 9,289,969
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
188,369,643 1,733,474 299,846,979 2,280,873
417,130,075 3,838,644 306,588,810 2,332,156
605,499,718 5,572,117 606,435,789 4,613,029
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
For the period For the period For the period  For the period
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
15,402,080,853 141,737,810  13,018,190,890 99,026,635
3,736,645 34,387 1,944,606 14,792
15,405,817,498 141,772,196  13,020,135,497 99,041,427
For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020




Interest on:
-bank deposits
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations
Gain on sale of fixed assets (net)
Miscellaneous
Excess provisions written back

21. Cost of materials consumed

Raw material and packing material consumed
Inventories at beginning of the year
Purchases during the year (net)

Sold during the year
Inventories at end of the year

22. Purchases of traded goods

Beverages
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23. Changes in inventories of traded goods

As at the beginning of the year
Finished goods

As at the closing of the year
Finished goods
Work In Progress

24. Employee benefits expense

Salaties and wages
Staff welfare expenses

25. Finance costs

Interest on:
Term loans
Bank guarantee fees to Parent Company
Loan from parent company

26. Depreciation expense

1,443,246 13,281 2,446,288 18,608
300,410,945 2,764,535 14,743,782 104,699
13,870,624 127,645 - -
4,893,932 45,036 - -
320,618,747 2,950,497 17,190,070 123,307
For the period  For the period  For the period For the period
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
1,088,057,784 8,276,626 122,408,149 7,299,234
6,843,046,494 04,709,444 5,882,935,534 37,830,101
7,931,104,278 72,986,070 6,005,343,683 45,129,335
(4,716,205) (43,401) 10,825,096 82,344
1,401,337,406 12,895,822 1,088,057,784 8,276,626
6,534,483,078 60,133,649 4,906,460,803 36,770,364
For the period  For the period For the period  For the period
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
828,701,806 7,626,137 267,361,879 2,033,765
828,701,806 7,626,137 267,361,879 2,033,765
For the period  For the period For the period  For the period
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
181,422,308 2,218,240 10,611,542 632,769
181,422,308 2,218,240 10,611,542 632,769
306,025,448 2,816,202 291,613,179 2,218,240
25,726 237 - -
306,051,174 2,816,439 291,613,179 2,218,240
(124,628,866) (598,199) (281,001,637) (1,585,471)
For the period For the period For the period  For the period
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
959,755,410 8,832,159 613,192,997 4,664,430
182,195,131 1,676,653 70,119,871 533,387
1,141,950,541 10,508,812 683,312,867 5,197,817
For the period For the period For the period  For the period
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
69,363,404 638,317 232,876,170 1,810,271
27,535,739 253,398 72,069,487 548,217
75,460,803 694,429 52,950,723 402,785
172,359,946 1,586,144 357,896,381 2,761,273




Depreciation on tangible assets
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27. Other expenses

Power and fuel
Repairs to plant and equipment
Repairs to buildings
Other repairs
Consumption of stores and spares
Rent
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Printing and stationery
Communication
Travelling and conveyance
Payment to the auditors as
Audit and reviews
Taxation matters
Other matters
Reimbursement of expenses
Vehicle running and maintenance
Lease and hire charges
Security and service charges
Professional charges and consultancy
Bank charges
Advertisement and sales promotion
Meeting and conference
Royalty
Freight, octroi and insurance paid (net)
Delivery vehicle running and maintenance
Distribution expenses
Loading and unloading charges
Donations
Property, plant and equipment written off
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Bad debts and advances written off
Allowance for expected credit losses
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translations
General office and other miscellaneous expenses

For the period  For the period  For the period For the period
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
528,562,540 4,864,102 465,818,150 3,543,381
528,562,540 4,864,102 465,818,150 3,543,381
For the period  For the period  For the period For the period
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
356,828,807 3,283,721 465,312,774 3,539,536
350,865,009 3,228,839 444,999,801 3,385,020
11,345,401 104,406 76,299,931 580,397
17,670,309 162,611 11,991,524 91,217
78,320,807 720,748 213,528,469 1,624,266
115,859,981 1,066,203 128,265,765 975,691
4,368,569 40,202 2,353,188 17,900
25,253,370 232,394 29,277,335 222,707
10,247,043 94,299 7,802,773 59,354
38,938,445 358,331 11,600,972 88,246
66,245,993 609,629 29,499,740 224,398
4,762,466 43,827 5,444,387 41,414
15,249,950 140,338 17,222,482 131,008
166,337,835 1,530,726 106,973,766 813,727
54,365,675 500,301 174,969,971 1,330,960
94,425,648 868,953 449,196,486 3,416,943
273,412,296 2,516,080 187,341,369 1,425,066
212,620,143 1,956,639 130,861,543 995,436
1,129,702,830 10,396,102 597,837,533 4,547,624
133,217,856 1,225,939 371,830,309 2,828,435
12,487,720 114,918 24,849,332 189,024
127,108,541 1,169,718 32,694,963 248,704
- - 512 4
6,398,888 63,487 3,204,814 24,378
3,470,176 31,934 - -
10,902,776 100,333 10,558,430 80,316
3,320,906,535 30,560,677 3,533,918,169 26,881,771
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Lunarmech Technologies Private Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Lunarmech Technologies Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the
statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December, 2021 and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (here after referred to as “Standalone Financial Statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31% December 2021, and statement of its profit and loss
(financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report and Management Discussion and Analysis of Annual report, but does not include
the Standalone Financial Statements and our report thereon. The Directors report and Management Discussion
and Analysis of Annual repott is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other
information identified above when 1t becomes available to us and, in doing so, consider whether the other
mformation is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information as and when made available to us and if we conclude that there is a material
musstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a Going Concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to Going Concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error audit procedures, design and perform responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
mntentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.




2. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sectdon 143(3)(T) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonable ness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and event s
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality 1s the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (I) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we 1dentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the ‘Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016’, issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), we
give in the Annexure T’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;




(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under

)

®

@
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Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 December 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure-2”. Qur report expresses as unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The company has disclosed in notes no 36, the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position it its standalone financial statements;

it according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company did not have

any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

111, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company; and
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ANNEXURE-1TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

)

i)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

in respect of its fixed assets:

a) The company has maintained proper records showing . full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a
phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size
of the Company and nature of its assets. As in informed to us no material discrepancies
were noticed on such physical verification.

c) Title deeds in respect of all immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

As explained to us physical verification has been conducted by the management at
reasonable intervals in respect of inventories of finished goods, stores, spare parts and raw
materials. We were explained that no material discrepancies have been noticed on physical
verification.

The provisions of clause (iii) of the Order are not applicable as the company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies firms, limited liability partnership or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013
during the year under audit.

The provisions of clause (iv) of the Order are not applicable as the company has not granted
any loans, made investments, given any guarantee or security during the year under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us the company has not accepted
any deposits, in terms of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013
and the rules framed there under.

In respect of business activities of the company, maintenance of cost records has not been
specified by the Central Government under sub-section (l) of section 148 read with rules
framed thereunder of the Companies Act 2013.

a) As per information and explanations given to us, the company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. As informed to us there are no
outstanding statutory dues in arrears as at the last day of the financial year concerned for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) As per information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax or
sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of Excise or Value added tax which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to
us by the management, we are of the opinion that there is no default in repayment of loans




or borrowings to the financial institutions and banks as at the year end. There are no loans
from Government and the company has not issued any debentures.

ix)  As explained to us term loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained by the company. The company has not raised any money
during the year by way initial or further public offer.

X)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by
the management, we report that, no fraud by the Company or on the company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit for the
year ended 31.12.2021.

xi)  According to information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration paid
and provided by the company during the year is in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act
2013.

xii)  The provisions of clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable as the company is not a Nidhi
Company as specified in the clause.

xiii) According to information and explanations given to us we are of the opinion that all related
party transactions are in compliance with the Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act 2013.
Necessary disclosures has been made in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting Standards.

xiv) According to information and explanations given to us the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or debentures during the year.

xv) According to information and explanations given to us the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transaction with the director or any person connected with him during the
year.

xvi) In our opinion, in view of its business activities, the company is not required to be
registered under section 45IA of Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For APAS & COLLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGN NO. 00034OCIC400308

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 25/01/2022

PARTNER
M.No. 520078

UDIN: 935752@@%? A AARAPOT 2,




Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of Lunarmech Technologies Private Limited of even date)

Repott on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportine under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial staterments of Lunarmech Technologies Private

Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Company™) as at and for the year ended December 31, 2021, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (‘TFCoFR”) of the Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 2 material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that




(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31t December 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For APAS & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm RegriNe:000340C/C400308
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Place : New Delhi | {Sumit Kathuria)
Date : 25/01/2022 C ) o Partner
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Con M No. 520078
UDINS22526078AAAAAPIT31



LU ARMECH FRCHNOLOGIES ERINATE LIMITEL

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 DECEMELE 202

Particulars Note AS AT A5 AT
No. ST DECEMBER 3157 DECEMBER
2021 2029
Asiets
Nom~current assety
£y Pwpmy, phiot asd CYUDIDLRT (=) 5,074.46 3,464,534
) Right-al-use asser I(b) 163.53 235.03
¢) Vinancial assets
¥ Leans 4 985 28,85
) Other financial aascs 5 - .
d} Qther nom current cosces 4 386.45 349.45
Totel nenwcurtent sepety 5,815.30 4,£37.83
Current assers
a} lavesatotivg T 1,870.92 1,059.91
b} Fgancial azpers
9 Trade recoivables 3 2,460.16 1,842.29
i) Cash & cash cquivilests 9 1813.52 L3137
i Other baak balences 94 2,814.52 3,100.80
) Laans 4 2.42 237
) Other fivancial nssets 5 53.94 27.50
¢} Other current asyets [ 190.27 £03.69
Total current zeseiy $.205.54 5,806,935
Total wssetn 15,020.83 9,644.81
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
=) Equity share capital i 99.50 99.5¢
b) Other equiry 1t $,779.23 6,009.11
Total equity 8,378.73 6,108.61
Liabilities
Non-current Babilitdes
WFinancal kabilites
§ Buruwings 2 4,187.57 1,926.24
) Lease habilion 13 114.89 189.98
b Pra Ly o 54.52 4323
) Deforred tax tabiines {neg) 13 101,62 126,60
Total non-current labildes 4,388.4¢ 2,786,035
Cursent Habilitiay
4) Finoncial lnbidines
# Borrowings )3 ~ 28.60
) Lease libilides j3 75.23 6300
) Trade paysbles
Dues w0 micro enterprises and small enterpdses 16 212,88 30.51
Drues o Qchers 16 865.12 1,002.3%
iy Other fnancal Babilites 7 4.36 2476
U} Other cuerent labilives 18 2575 B4
<) Provisians % 6.59 5.24
@) Cureent tax Habilities (N 13 567.55 389.2¢
Total cutrent Habilities L,753.65 1,354.15
Total labilides §,142.09 3,836.20
Total equity & Habilides 13,02¢,43 9,944.8§
Significent accounting policles z

The RCGinpanylag nutes are an integral part of the Gnancial satements,

En teros of wur gepost of even date anmend

Lor APAS & Co LLP
Churtered Accoustants
Fiza'y Reggistration No.: ("!00/

Sumit Kaifsurie
Parmer
M.No. 52007%
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Dawed: ﬁ 5

Direcror

S

g
i

For und on behalf of he ng aifbirccwm:;of

DIN:92255219
(Sutyanarayzn Sharmay

Lunarmech Technplogies Private Limifed

J 5 :
s&&, b%wf

Dircmqr -
DIN:0®&58L
(¥ivek Gupta)




LUNABMECH TECHNOLOGUES PRIVATE LIMITED

Partcndarg Note For the Yearended  For the Year ended
No. December 38, 2021 December 31, 3020

Income

Revenue from operstions 20 18,500.83 4,706.26
Othee income 21 $28.04 57.25
Tol income 1642187 5.763.51
Expeascs

Cast of matedal consumed 22 B,797.41 449940
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 1,376.25 424.99
Changes in Inventosies of finithed grods, stock-in-trade and 23 -415.91 294.37
Work-in-pragress

Employee benefit expenses 3 585.42 $22.28
Finance costs 25 59.33 200.28
Depreciation 2nd amonization expense 6 78161 387.90
Other expenses 27 1,638.35 1,191.72
Towi gxpenses 12,820.88 1,620.86
Profit before exceptional items & tax 3,600.99 Z,042.64
Exceptional iterns

Depreciation of eaclier yoars

Profit belfore tax 3,600.99 2,142.64
Tax expenses

Current tax

Cusrent year 835.94 574.61
Adjustment of eadier yeass 20.47 23,8%
Deferred Tax +25.30 -35.30
Frofit for the year 2,769.87 1,579.48
Other comprehensive income

) Items that will not be reclassified o statement of profit & loss

Remeasurcment of post employment benefit .34 Lg1
Tiess: Defecced o o sbove item 6,08 0.45
Total Other comprehensive income .25 1.35
Total camprehensive income 2,770.12 1,580.83
Earning per share {Basic / Diluted) { Ra) 44 278.37 158,74

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notzs are an integral part of the
finzncial staterneois,

4
In cerms of our eport of even date annexed 4 g

Far APAS & (o LLP For and on behalf of [hcx‘ Boas
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Director fector
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LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES ERIVATE LISITED
Sraternent of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December, 2020

Equity share caplal

(Araount in Rupees Lacs, uniees otherwise smated)

Balance as at January 1, 2020 {Refer Note- 43)

In tenms of our report of even date zanexed
For APAS & Co LLP

Chattered Accountants i
Firm's Registeation No.: 0%@@%\\ )
O N
PN G

5 LN
Sumit Kathuria ~
Pagtner
M.No. 520878

Pluce: New Delhi

Dated: ;2 ﬁi ﬁiif,}:@ g9

99.50
Changes in equity share cepital duning the yeas R
Balance ax at December 34, 202¢ 99,53
Chaages in eyuity share capital dusing the year -
Balance 2 at Decomber 31, 2021 $9.58
Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Other
. . . Capiud Reserve
Pasticul P i
articulars Retained earnings (Refer Note- 43) corqpxthenmva Toal
incomse
As ar Jonuary 1, 2020 4,498.18 -65.00 -3.91 4,428.27
Profit / Loss for the year 1,579.48 ~ 1,579,498
1.35 1.35
Remeasurement gains/lossce on defined employment benefit {Net of Taxes)
As at December 31, 2020 6,077.65 66,00 ~2.58 6,008,108
Reserve & Surplus
Other
Fariculars Retained eamings | Cepil Reserve somprehensive Toual
income
As at January 1, 2021 6,077.66 66,00 -2.56 £.009.14
Profit / Loss for he year 2,769.87 - - 2,769.57
0.25 D.25
Remeasurement gains/losses on defined employment benefit (Net of Tuxes)
As at December 31, 2021 8,847.53 -£6.89 ~2.31 §779.23
e,
1

For snd on behalf Qrit' the Fom—d of Dirccwm;)s”
Lunamnech Te&mn{gbgiw Private Limiged
: 4
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i
Direcior ;iff
DiMN2255219

(Sarysnarsyan Sharms)

Director .-
DIN:G0861354 "




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021

1. Background of the Company
Lunarmech Technologies Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 26" May. 2009 The Company is engaged in
manufacturing, selling, and distribution of Plastic (PP) Closure.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
(i} Compliance with Ind AS-

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Lacs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise
indicated.

(ii) Historical cost convention-
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for:

a) Certain financial assets & liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent consideration that are measured at fair
value.

b) Assets held for sale have been measured at fair value less cost to sell
c) Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.
2.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
+ Expected fo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle of the Company
= Held primarily for the purpose of trading
* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

e All other assets are classified as non -current.

e A liability is treated as current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle of the Company

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months from the reporting period, or

+ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months
as its operating cycle.

2.3 Revenue recognition

i) Revenue is recognised on transfer of premised Goods and Services to the customers on performance of obligation at the
price that reflects the consideration {o which the company expects to receive a performance of obligation, regardless of when
payment is being made. Revenue from operations includes Sale of Goods and adjustments for discounts.

ii) Interest:
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest
rate.




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021

ili) Export License Income
Export license income is recognized on receipt/certainty of receipt basis.

iv) Claims
Revenue in respect of claims is recognized only when the same are reasonably ascertained.

2.4 Taxes

a) The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year's taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate as per the Income tax Act, 1961 adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

b) The current income tax charge is caiculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting year. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

c) Deferred income tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised
in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

d) Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Therefore, in the case of a history of recent
losses, the Company recoganises the deferred tax asset to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidences that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax can be realised.

e)Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

f) Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and in this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

26

a) Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost may also include
transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

b) Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the Statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which they are incurred.

(c)Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value-

Depreciation / amortization on tangible and intangible fixed assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the straight
line (SLM) Method. Depreciation is provided at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
The useful lives have been determined based on those specified by Schedute |l to the Companies Act; 2013, in order to reflect the
actual usage of the assets except in case of Plant & Machinery, where useful life has been taken to be 10 years based on external
/ internal technical evaluation. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting year. There is no asset which is to be treated
as a separate component for the purpose providing depreciation. The capital expense on building renovation is depreciated over
the lease period of the building.

(d) An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

(e) Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement
of profit and loss within other gains/ (losses).

Intangible assets




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021

2.7

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. Gains or losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases
Accounting policy applicable from 1 April 2019 onwards:
The Company as a lessee

As inception of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or
part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

a) the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be physically
distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution
right, then the asset is not identified;

b) the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of
use; and The Company assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the
period of use. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases
of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for
the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use
assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate, Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

a) fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

¢) amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021

d) the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero, as the case may be.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and
equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in the balance sheet. Also, the Company has elected to account for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

In the comparative period, as a lessee, the Company classified leases that transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership as finance leases. Leases of property, plant and equipment in which significant portion of risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred were classified as operating leases. In determining the appropriate classification, the substance
of the transaction rather than the form was considered. In case, the lease arrangement includes other consideration, it was
separated at the inception of the lease arrangement or upon a reassessment of the lease arrangement into those for the lease
and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. Lease classification was made at the inception of the
lease. Lease classification was changed only if, at any time during the lease, the parties to the lease agreement agree to revise
the terms of the lease (without renewing it) in a way that it would have been classified differently, had the changed terms been
in effect at inception. The revised agreement involves renegotiation of original terms and conditions and were accounted
prospectively over the remaining term of the lease. Lease payments Lease payments in respect of assets taken on operating
lease are charged to the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured
to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate the lessor's expected inflationary cost increase.

The Company as a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not,
then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease
is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It
assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with
reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described
above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term as part of ‘other income’.

The accounting policies applicable to the Company as a lessor in the comparative period were not different from Ind AS 116.
However, when the Company was an intermediate lessor the sub-leases were classified with reference to the underlying asset.

Inventories

Inventories are valued on the following basis:

(i) Finished Goods - - At lower of cost or net realisable value
(i) Semi Finished Goods - At Estimated cost

(ili) Raw Materials - At cost (on weighted Average Method)
(iv) Packing Material - At cost (on weighted Average Method)
(v) Stores and Spares efc. - At cost

Cost of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in- progress and finished goods comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure. Cost of inventories also include
all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes of the financial statements for the vear ended December 31, 2021

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.10

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation muitiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other availabie fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is
recognised in OC! up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. if such indication exists, the Company estimates the
asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

2.11 Employee Benefits

(i) Short-term obligations-

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting year and are measured at the amounts expected o be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(il) Post-employment obligations-

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and

(b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and ESI.
Gratuity obligations-

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting year less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
actuaries.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting year on government bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is
included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and |os>
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Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans-

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

2.12 Investments and Other financial assets
(i) Classification-
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and those
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income.

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
(ii) Measurement-

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value, in the case of a financial asset is not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

(a) Debt instruments-

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OClI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOC! are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part
of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

(b) Equity instruments-

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification
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- of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement
of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOC! are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets-
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or, retains the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the
Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in
the financial asset.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the group or the counterparty.

2.14 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per the credit terms.

2.15 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for impairment.

2.16 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
Accordingly, segmental reporting is performed on the basis of geographical location of customer which is also used by the chief
financial decision maker of the company for allocation of available resources and future prospects.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.18 Foreign currency translation or transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical
cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Company's monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized
as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

Exchange differences pertaining to long-term foreign currency monetary items obtained or given on or before 31 December
2016: Exchange differences arising on conversion of long term foreign currency monetary items used for acquisition of depreciable
fixed assets are added to the cost of fixed assets and is depreciated over the remaining life of the respective fixed asset and in
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other cases, is recorded under the head ‘Foreign Currency Monetary ltem Translation Difference account’ and is amortized over
the period of maturity of underlying long term foreign currency monetary items, in accordance with the option available under Ind
aS 101.

Exchange differences pertaining to long-term foreign currency monetary items obtained or given on or after 01 January 2017:
Exchange differences arising on restatement of long term foreign currency monetary items obtained or given is recorded in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.19 Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, ioans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial
guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement-
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below;
(a)Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss-

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

(b)L.oans and borrowings-

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2.20 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future events outside the Company’s control, or present obligations that are not recognised because of the following: (a)
Itis not probabie that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or (b) the amount cannot be measured
reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed and described in the notes to the financial statements, including an
estimate of their potential financial effect and uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflow, unless the possibility of
settlement is remote.

Contingent assets are possible assets whose existence will be confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain
future events outside the Company’s control. Contingent assets are not recognised. When the realisation of income is virtually
certain, the related asset is not a contingent asset; it is recognised as an asset.

Contingent assets are disclosed and described in the notes to the financial statements, including an estimate of their potential
financial effect if the inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.21 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based
on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
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the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and assumptions are required.
Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various accounting policies are described below and also in
the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Judgéments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal,
contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future
events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the
exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
change or circumstances arising beyond the controf of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

(a) impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

{b) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewe d at each reporting date.

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the NAV model.

Financial assets like security deposits received and security deposits paid, has been classified and measured at amortised cost on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Government corporate bond rate has been
used to fair value the security deposits at amortised cost. ‘

Financial liability like long term borrowings received, has been classified and measured at amortised cost on the basis of the facts
and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Average market borrowing rate has been used to fair value the long
term loan at amortised cost.

2.22 Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate
of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair
values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured
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at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.
However, deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ and Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits’ respectively. When a liability
assumed is recognised at the acquisition date but the related costs are not deducted in determining taxable profits until a later
period, a deductible temporary difference arises which resuits in a deferred tax asset. A deferred tax asset also arises when the
fair value of an identifiable asset acquired is less than its tax base.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
if the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial
Instruments’ (*Ind AS 109”), is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate

Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent
its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired
over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill aflocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. an impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash- generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash- generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts  are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Group are accounted for using the ‘pooling of interests’
method as follows:

¢ The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts;
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Except for adjustments made to harmonise accounting policies, no adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise
any new assets or liabilities;

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the
corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against general reserve;

The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee: and

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of
cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented
separately from other capital reserves.
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PARTICULARS As at As at
31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
Inventories
{As cerrified by the managemenr)
942.92 413.52
aterial Invenrories in transit 191.91 318.59
Packing Material 24.40 9.32
Semi Finished Goods 22,20 3162
Finished Goods 7.30 13.85
Finished Goods-in Transit 594.57 161.68
Srores, Spares and Others 87.63 111.33
TOTAL [ 1,870.92 | 1,059.91 ]
Note:
For mode of valuation refer Accounting policy number 2.8
Trade receivables
‘Trade Receivable considered good - Secured - -
Trade Receivable considered good - Uasecured 2,460.16 1,882.29
Trade Receivable which have significant increase 1n credit Risk, a - - -
“Trade Recervable - Credit Impaired - -
TOTAL 2,460.16 | 1,882.29 |
Note:
Refer Note no 34 for related party disclosures
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
-In Current Account 688.25 395.73
-Deposits with maturnity with w three months 906,20 734.60
(Held as margin by bank against credit facilities)
-Cheques/Remitence i transit 218.08 -
Cash on hand 0.79 104
TOTAL [ 1,813.32 ] 1,131.37 |
For the purpose of statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalent comprises of the
following:
Balances with banks 1,812.53 1,130.33
Cash on hand 0.79 1.04
1,813.32 1,131.37
Other bank balances
Bank Deposit with more than three months maturiry 2,814.52 1,100.00
TOTAL 2,814.52 I 1,100.00




a)

b)

10 Equity share capital

—
=

AUTHORISED

1,100,000 Shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each (Previous Year
1,000,000, equity shares of Rs. 10/- each) (Refer note-43)

Add: 100,000 shares of par value of Rs 10/-eacs pucsuant ro the
scheme of amalgamation (Refer Note 43)

1,100,000 Shares ot par value of Rs. 10/- each (Previous Year
1,100,000, equity shates of Rs. 10/~ each) (Refer note-43)
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP

995,020 Shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each (Previous year

1,000,000 Shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each)

Le

Nil (Previous year 739980 Equity Shates of Rs 10 each
cancelled) (Refer Note-43)

Add: Nil (Previous year 735000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 cach
issued aftesh as fully paid up sharcs) (Refer Note-43)

995,020 Shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each (Previous Year
995,020, equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)

Notes:

a) The reconciliation of number of shares outstanding as at the beginiag and end of the year.

110.00 100.00
- 10.00
110.00 110.00
99.50 100.00
- -74.00
- 73.50
99.50 99.50

Equity share capital

31 December , 2021

31 December , 2020

of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
1 39980 Equity Shares cancelled (Refer Note-43)

Na. of Shares vutstandng at the end of the year

1,000,000 1,000,000
-739,980 ~739,980
735,000 735,000
995,020 995,020

€} Varun Beverages Limited is the holding company of the company, holding 547645 equity shares of the company.

d) Following Sharcholders hold shares more than 5% of the total equity shates of the company.

Name of the shareholder 31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
Varun Beverages Limired Holding (w.e.f 04/11/2019 547645(55.04%) 547645(55.04%)
Lunarmech lnvestments & Holdings 50000(5.03%) 50000(5.03%)
Me.Vivek Gupta Whole time director 379159(39.91%) 379159(39.91%)

# Nor disclosed since below 5%

@ The company tus not issued any bonus shares or shares pursuant to contract without payment being recovered in cash during the period of

last 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheer date. (Refer note-43)

Other equity

Retained Earning

As per Last balance Sheet

Add: Ner Profit after Tax

Remeasurement gatns/losses on defined employment benefie

Total-(A)

Capital Reserve (Refer Note- 43)
As per Last balance Sheet

Total-(B)

Total-(A+B)

6,075.11 449427

2,769.87 1,579.48

0.25 1.35

8,845.23 | 6,075.11

-66.00 -66.00

[ 66,00 | -66.00
8,779.23 | 6,009.11 ]




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes of the financial statements

w

Loans Current Non-current
As at As at As at As at
318T 31ST 31ST 318T
December December | December | December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Loans carried at amortized cost
Security deposits 241,671 217,130 90.85 88.85
[ 241,671 | 217,130 | 90.85 | 88.85 |
Other Financial Assets
As at As at As at As at
318T 31ST 318T 318T
December December | December | December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Sccutity deposits -
Deferred Lease Expenses -
Interest receivable 5,394,146 2,749,939
Claim Receivable - - -
L 5,394,146 2,749,939 I -
Other Assets
As at As at As at As at
318T 318T 31ST 31ST
December December | December | December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Capital Advance 486.45 349.45
Balance With GST Authoritics 7,223,768 8,336,352 - -
Advances to Suppliers, Contractors & Others 5,865,373 46,307,265 - -
Prepaid expenses/ Amount recoverable 5,937,481 4,433,208 - -
Amount receivable from NHAI (Dethi baroda highway) - 1,291,714 - -
[ 19,026,622]  60,368539] 48645 | 349.45 |
Borrowings
As at As at
318T 318T 318T 318T
December December | December | December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Secured term loan from Banks :
- Foreign Currency Loans (Buyers credit) - - - 1,926.24
-Indusind Bank -SBLC-3B (Repayable on 10/02/2024 and rate of interest is 1.4% PA)
-Induslnd Bank -SBLC-3A (Repayable on 28/12/2023 and rate of interest is 1.4% PA)
- IndusInd Bank -SBLC-2 (Repayable on 20/02/2023 and rate of interest is 2.4% PA)
- Indusind Bank -SBLC-1 (Repayable on 10/01/2023 and rate of interest is 2.4% PA)
Indusind Bank Buyer's Credit ( CG )-SBLC-4
-From Others - 2,860,000 -
| - | 2,860,000] - | 192604 ]
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had

Notes:

A) Term loan in the form of Buyers credit against Standby letter of credit (SBLC)
taken from Indusind Bank

1} The Buyers credit against Standby Letter Of Credit (SBLC-1 & 2) are Fully repayable as buller payment in January & March 2023 respectively and
Rate of interest is 12 month curibor+2.4% PA.

1) The Buyers credit against Standby Letter Of Credit (SBLC-3 & 4) are Fully repayable as bullet payment in December 2023, February & June 2024
respectively and Rate of interest is 12 month euribor+1.4% PA.

11) The securities are as follows:

a) First and Exclusive charge on Hypothecation of eatire Plant & Machinery funded by Indusind Bank.

b) Furst Pari passu charge over entire current assets of the company, both present and future along with HDFC Bank Lid .

¢) First pari passu charge on Hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the borrower along with HDFC Bank Ltd.

B) The Term loan from HDFC Bank

HDFC Bank Foreign Currency Loan- (Fully repaid as bullet payment in January 2020). Rate of interest - 12 month curibor+175 bps.
HDFC Bank Rupee loan - (fully repaid in June 2019). Rate of interest - 9.75% P.A.

foll

1 Against first Pari passu charge entire current assets of the company, both present and future along with HIDFC Bank Lid .
i) First part passu charge on Hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the borrower along with HDFC Bank Lid.

D) The Working capital limit taken from HDFC Bank is secured against following securities
1) The term loan from HDFC Bank were secured against first Pari passu charge over current assets, entire movable & immovable fixed assets of the
company, both present and future.

1) The working capital limits carry an interest rate ranging from 9.70% to 9.85%.
g cap Y gng

| l l |
Lease Libilities Current Non-current
As at As at As at As at
318T 318T 318T 318T
December December | December | December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Leasc Libilitics 7,522,736.60  6,399,712.07 114.89 189.98

| 7522,136.60] 6,399,712.07 | 114.89] 189.98 ]

a) The following is the lease labilities movement for year ended:

Balance at beginning of the year 253.98

Additions - 330.71
Finance cost incurred during the period Refer Note 25) 22,51 42.86
Payment of lease liabilites -86.38 -119.60
Balance at end of the year - | 190.12 253.98]
Non Current 114.89 189.98
Current 75.23 64.00

- 190.12 253.98 |




14iProvisions

As at As at As at As at
31ST 31ST 31ST 31ST
December December | December | December
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Refer note 24)
Defined benefit liability (ne) - Gratuity 495682 388416 43.43 35.74
Other employee obligations - Leave encashment 163,766 135,391 11.09 7.49
659448| 523807' 54.52 43.23
171Other financial liabilities
As at As at As at As at
31ST 31ST 318T 31ST
December December | December | December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Current maturities of long- term borrowings (refer note 12) - -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 456,123 2,175,625 -
456,123 2,175,625 | - ]
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Deferred tax liabilides (net)

Deferred tax acdsing from temporary differences
As at beginning of the year

Adjustment duning the year

Adjustments due to Ind AS

Total

Trade payables

Dnues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises(as per the intimation received from vendors)

1) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act

i) Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount
i) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond

appointed day during the year

) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act

v) the amount of further mterest remaining due and payable

even in the succeeding years, until such date when the  interest

dues as above are actually pard o the small enterprise, for the

putpose of disallowance
secnion 23,

as a deductible expenditure under

v) Inreresr due and payable to supphers under MSM
towards payments already made

EDD Acr

vi) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year
vii) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable

even in the succeeding years, until such date when the intecest

dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act.

Other trade payables

TOTAL

Notes:

Disclosure with respect to related party rransactions is given in note 34.

g

126.60 161.44
-24.97 -34.85
10162 | 126.60 |
212.88 30.91
865.12 1,002.35
1,078.00 | 1,033.26 |




A)

B)

o}

D)

PARTICULARS As at As at

31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
18 Other Current liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable 10.25 6.37
Advances from customers and others 1151 173
TOTAL 2175 | 8.10 |
19 Current tax liabilities (Net)
Provision for current tax .
As per last balance sheet 389.20 249.63
Add:- Provision for Cuerent Year 835.94 574.61
14 mounr adjusted during the year 20.47 -
L. et off against Taxes paid/Mat credit -678.05 -435.04
Provision for current tax ( Net) ‘ 567.55 l 389.20 ]
TOTAL [ 567.55 | 389.20 |
PARTICULARS Year Ended Year Ended
31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
20 Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 15,371.38 9,656.87
Other operating revenue
Export Incentive 102.18 32.12
Scrap Sales 21.27 17.27
TOTAL 15,500.83 | 9,766.26 |
Disclosure on revenue pursuant to Ind AS 115- Revenue from countract with customers:
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price:
Gross revenue/Contracted price 15,377.23 9,661.20
Adjustments:
Sales return -5.85 -4.32
Revenue as per Statement of Profit and Loss I 1537138 l 9,656.87 |
Disclosure of disaggregated revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss based on geographical segment:
Revenue from cusromers outside India 3,643.55 3,486.98
Revenue from customers within Indi 11,727.83 6,169.90
Revenue as per the Statement of Profit and Loss | 15,371.38 I 9,656.87 ]
Contract balances:
“The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:
As at As at
Receivables 31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
‘Trade receivables 2,460.16 1,882.29
Less: Allowances for expected credie loss -
[ 2,460.16 | 1,882.29 |
Contract Habilities As at
31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
Advance from Customers 10.43 0.40
10.43 ] 0.40

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferced to the customer. Contract Habilities are on acco
the advance payment ceceived from customer for which performance obligation has not yet been completed.

The performance obligation is satisfied when control of the goods or services are transfeered to the customers based on the conteactual
terms. The Group does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods are for a shorter duration.
Further, there are no conrraces for sale of services wherein, performance obligarion is unsatistied o which transaction price has been
allocated.

Paymene terms with customers vary depending upon the contractual teems of each contract and generally falls in the range of 0 1o 120
days from the completion of performance obligation.

There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.

sy Dothl
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unt of



2} Other income

laterest On Fixed Deposit Receipts 116.47 50.64
Interest Received on Elecrncity Security 0.90 4.65
Interest Received on Loan given - -
Net Gain in Foreign Currency Transactions 333.33 -
Sundary Balances Written off - -
Profit on Sale of Fixed assets 468.16 -
Unwinding of interest on secunty deposit 2,17 1.96

Interest Income on Lease tental
Commission recewved

TOTAL 921.04 | 57.25 |
22 Cost of material consumed
Raw Material Consumed
Invenrories ar Beginming of the Year 413.52 348.62
Add : Purchases during the year (Net) 8,844.15 4,360.92
9,257.67 4,709.54
Less : Sale of Raw matenal 9.98 0.52
Less : lnventories at the end of the year 94292 413.52
Consumed 8,304.78 | 4,295.50 |
Packing Material Consumed 492.64 203.90
TOTAL 8,797.41 | 4,499.40
23 Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
AS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
Finished Goods 13.85 4.27
Finished Goods-in Transit 161.68 461.93
Semi Finished Goods 3162 35.32
[ 207.16 | 50153 |
AS AT THE CLOSING OF THE YEAR
Finished Goods 7.30 13.85
Finished Goods-in Teansit 594.57 161.68
Semi Finished Goods 22.20 3162
[ 624.07 | 207.16 |
NET [ -416.91 | 294.37 |

o

s

s
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24 Employee benefit expenses

Salanes and wages

Employer’s contriburion to provident and other funds
Sraft welfare expenses

TOTAL

* Managerial Remuneration paid to Directors

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

Employer’s contribution to provident and other funds

Defined benefit plans

563.98 407.46
12.87 10.97
8.58 3.85
585.42 [ 422.28
129.00 84.00
12.87 10.97

The Company operates a gratuiry plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit. Gratuity is payable ro all eligible employees of the
Company on reticement, sepacation, death or permanent disablement, in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratity Act.

The following table sets out the starus of the gratuity plan as requited under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits as at 31 December 2021, 31

December 2020 -

i. Changes in present value are as follows:
Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year

Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits sertled
Actuarial loss/ (gain)
Balance at the end of the year

ii. Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars
Current service cost

Interest cost

Liability raken of transferred employees from holding company

Total

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:
Particulars

Ner cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/ (foss) opening
Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year on PBO

Actuaral gain /(loss) for the year on Asser

Unrecoguzed actuarial gamn/(loss) for the year

Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Particulars

Present value of defined benefir obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Net assets/(liability) recognized in balance sheet as provision

Bifurcation of closing net liability at the end of year

Current
Non-Current

i.Actuarial assumptions
a) Economic assumptions

Particulars
1} Discounning rate
i) Furure salary increase

b) Demographic assumption
Pardiculars
1) Retirement age {years)

1) Mortality table

) Ages
Up to 30 years
From 31 ro 44 years
Above 44+ years

31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
39.62 33.46
2.62 2.38
6.48 5.58
-0.34 -1.81
48.38
31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
6.48 5.58
2.62 2.38
9.10 7.97

31 December , 2021

31 December , 2020

0.34 1.81
0.34 181

31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
48.38 39.62
-48.38 -39.62

31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
4.96 3.88
43.43 35.74

31 December , 2021

31 December , 2020

0.08 0.08
0.06 0.06

31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
58.00 58.00

100% Of IALM(2012-  100% Of TALM(2012-

14)

Withdrawal rate (%)
3.60
2.00
100

4

Withdrawal rate (%)
3.00
2.00
1.00




a)
by

B)

jHi

A q itative sensitivity lysis for signifi

Impact of the change in discount rate
Present Value obhgation at the end of the perod

P

Impact due to increase of 0.5%
Lmpacr due to decrease of 0.5%

Impact of the change in salary increase
Present Value obligation at the end of the period
Lmpact due to increase of 0.5%

Impacr due to decrease of 0.5%

as at 31 December 2020 is as shown below:

48.38 39.62
-2.79 -2.45
3.05 2.79
48.38 39.62
3.07 270
-2.83 -2.48

The sensitivity analysis above has been derermined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting period, while holding all othe:

SUMPFLons constant.

Risk associated:
Invesrment risk

Inrerest risk (discount rate risk)

Mortality risk

Salary risk

Withdrawls

If plan s funded then assers Habilities mismarch and acural mvestment rerurn

on assers fower than the discount rare assumed at the fast valuation date can

impact the labiliry.

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valaurions can increase the plan's
Habiliry.

Actual deaths and diability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the
valaution can impact the labilities.

Acutal salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary
increase rate assumption in future valuarions will also increase the lability.

Actual withdrawls proving higher or lower than assumed withdeawls and
change of withdrawl rares av subsequent valautions can impact Plan's liabiliry.

The following payments are maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligations in furure years:

Year 12/31/2021 12/31/2020
0o 1 year 4.96 3.88
1 1o 2 year 0.78 0.66
210 3 year 0.78 0.65
3to 4 year 2.67 0.64
410 5 year 0.73 2.02
510 6 year 0.79 0.59
6 year onwards 35.68 3118

Compensated absences (Other benefits)
The Company recognises the compensated absences expenses

n the Srarement of Profir and Loss based on actuanal valuanon,

Acruaral valuanion of compensared absences has been performed by an independent acruary using the following assumpnons:

i. Changes in present value are as follows:
Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Interest cost

Add: Current service cost

Less: Benefits paid

Add: Net actuarial gain/loss during the year
Balance at the end of the year

it. Change in the fair value of plan assets:
The scheme does not have any ass

iii. Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Particulars

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Net assets/ (liability) recognized in balance sheet as provision

iv. Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars

Current seevice cost

interest on defined benefir obligation

Net actuarial gain/loss i the year

Total

31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020

8.85 10.62
0.58 0.76
2.20 1.55
-0.06 -
L16 -4.08
[ 12,73 | 8.85 |

s ar the valuation date to meer the compensated absence liabiliry.

31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020

12.73 8.85

-12.73 -8.85

31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020

2.20 158
0.58 0.76
116 -4.08

3.94 -1.78




A)

a)
b)

B)

b)

Actuarial assumptions
a) Economic assumptions

Particulars 31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
1) Discounting rare 0.08 0.08
1) Future salary increase 0.06 0.06

*The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
facrors such as supply and demand in the employment marker.

b) Demographic assumption

Pardiculars

§ Retirement age (years)
i) Morrality table

iy Ages

31 December , 2021

31 December , 2020

58.00

58.00

100% of IALM(2012-14) 100% of LALM(2012-14)

Withdrawal rate (%)

Withdrawal rate (%)

Up ro 30 years 3 3
From 31 to 44 years 2 2
Above #4 years 1 1
31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
Bifurcation of closing net liability
Carrent 164 135
Non-current 1109 7.49
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 December 2020 is as shown below:
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present Value obligation ar the end of the period 12,73 8.85
Impacr due to increase of 0.5% -0.69 -0.50
Impact due to decrease of 0.5% 0.75 0.55
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present Value obligation at the end of the period 12,73 8.85
Impact due to increase of 0.5% 0.76 0.55
Impact due to decrease of 0.5% -0.70 -0.50

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasomably possible changes of the
reporting periad, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Risk associated:
Investment risk

Interest risk (discount rate risk)

Mortality risk

Salacy tisk

Withdrawls

assumptions oceurring at the end of the

If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismarch and acural investment refurn
on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can

impact the lability,

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valautions can increase the plan's

liabitity.

Actual deaths and diability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the

vakurion can impact the labilities.

Acural salacy increases will increase the Plan's hability. Increase in salary
increase rate assumption in furure valuations will also merease the lability

Acrual withdrawls proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawls and

change of withdrawl rares ar subsequent valautions can impact Phan's leabuliry

The following payments are matunty profile of Defined Benefit Obligations in future years:

Year 31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020
0to 1 year 1.64 1.35
1to 2 year 0.21 0.15
210 3 year 0.21 0.14
3 1o 4 year 128 0.14
410 5 year 0.17 0.75
5 to 6 year 0.19 0.1
6 year onwards 9.03 6.20




25 Finance costs

2

3

Interest on :

- Term loans(Including buyers credir)

- Working capital Loans

- Lease Liabiliry

- Others

Exchange difference regarded as an adjustment to borcowing
costs (as per Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Cost')

TOTAL

Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3(a))
Deprecition of right-of-use asser (Refer Note 3(b))

Other expenses

Manufacturing Expenses
Power and Fuel
Stores & Spares Consumed

Repairs & Maintenance
- Plant & Machinery

- Building

- Miscellaneous

Bank Charges

Rent, Rates & Taxes
Printing & Starionery
Communication
Conveyance & Travelling
Insurance

Legal & Professiomal Charges
General Office & Misc
Computer Expenses

Vehicle Running & Maintenance
cmunerabion

Audit Fees

Freight Ourward & Octrot Charges
Corporate Social Responsibiliry Expenses

Exchange difference (other than adjusted to borrowing costs as
per Ind AS 23)
TOTAL

34.51 35.49
0.23 262
22.51 28.36
2.08 4.03
- 129.70
59.33 | 200.20 |
709.51 516.40
7150 7150
N 781.01 | 587.90 |

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

31 December , 2021 31 December , 2020

740.41 553.67
79.95 62,11
52.40 46.90
57.67 83.89
29.47 32.59
6.70 5.55
11.84 17.55
1.83 164
2.7 2.98
33.92 30.72
17.02 7.73
48.48 43.06
34.02 3125
1.08 116
19.58 18.99
2.1 2.25
459.30 229.78
39.86 9.00
- 5.91

[ 1,638.36 | 1,191.72




28 Income Taxes

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 ace:

A. Statement of profit and loss:

(i) Profit & loss section

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Current income tax charge
MAT credit entitlement
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year

Deferred tax:
Relating to onigination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense reported in the statement of Profit & loss

(if) OCI Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Net loss/(gun) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Income tax charged to OCI

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for FY ended 31

December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation

Accounting profit before income tax
At India’s statutoty income fax rate of 25.17% (31 December 2020:25.17%)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years

Expenses not allowed as deduction

Profit on Sale of Agricultural Land

Adjustments in respect of current come tax of previous year

MAT credit of earher years recognised

Tax impact on foreign Exchange Rate Variation on capex borrowing

Impact of reduction in tax rate of deferred tax

Impact of change in provisional and actual tax liability at the time of filing of ITR

At the effective income tax rate of 23.08 %(31 December 2020: 26.27%)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss
Income tax attributable to a discontinued operation

835.94 374.61
0.00 0.00
2047 23.85
(25.30) (35.30)
831.11 563.16
0.08 0.45
0.08 0.45

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
3,600.99 2,142.64
0.00 0.00
3,600.99 2,142.64
906.30 339,26
(70.42) 0.00
20,47 23.85
0.00 Q.00
0.00 Q.00
Q.00 .00
(25.23) 0.05
831.12 563.16
83t.11 363.16
0.00 0,00
831.11 563.16

C. Deferred tax

l Balance sheet ’ Statement of profit and loss
31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Deterred tax arising from temporary differences -101.62 -126.60 (25.30) (35.30)
Tax (income)/expense during the period recognised in OCI 0.08 0.45
Deferred tax expense/ (income) (25.22) (34.85)
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) -101.62 -126.60 .00 0.00
0400 0.00

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Deferred tax assets (continuing operations)
Deferred rax liabilities (continuing operations)

Deferred tax liabilities, net

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities (net):

Opening balance as of 1 April
Tax (income) /expense during the period tecognised in Profit & loss
Tax (income)/expense during the period recognised in OCI

Discontmued operation

Closing balance as at 31 March

.00 0.00

(101.62) (126.60)

(101.62) (126.60)

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

126.60 16144

(25.06) (35.30)

0.08 045

0.00 .00

101.62 126.60




29 Fair values measurements

() Financial instruments by category (Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
FVTOCI Amortised cost | FVTOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets

Loans(non current) - 90.85 88.85
Other financial assets (non current) - - -
Trade receivables - 2,460.16 1,882.29
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,813.32 1,131.37
Other bank balance - 2,814.52 1,100.00
Loans(current) 2.42 2.17
Other financial assets (current) - 53.94 27.50
Total financial assets - 7,235.20 4,232.19
Financial liabilities

Borrowings (non current) - 4,117.37 1,926.24
Borrowings (current) - - 28.60
Lease Liabilitics(non current) 114.89 189.98
Lease Liabilities(current) 75.23 64.00
‘[rade payables - 1,078.00 1,033.26
Other financial liabilities - 4.56 21.76
Total financial liabilities - 5,390.05 3,263.84

v Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed at 31 December 2021

Fair value measurement using

Date of valuation Total Quoted Significant Significant
pricesin  observable inputs unobservable inputs
active
markets
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets/ liabilities
31-Dec-21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
31-Dec-20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Financial liabilities

Security deposits received
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

For cash and cash equivalents, trade cecetvables, other receivables, short term borrowing, trade payables and other current financial liabilities the
management assessed that their fair value is approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the Company’s long-term interest free security deposits are determined by applying discounted cash flows (‘DCF) method, using discount
rate that reflects the market borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. They are classified as fevel 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the
inclusion of unobservable mnputs including counterparty credit risk,




(Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)
30 Components of other comprehensive income (OCI)

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

During the year ended 31 December 2021

Retained Total
Earnings
Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 0.34 0.34
Income tax effect 0.08 0.08
0.25 0.25
During the year ended 31 December 2020
Retained Total
Earnings
Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 1.81 1.81
Income tax effect 0.45 0.45

1.35 1.35




31 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise , trade and other pavables, security deposits, employee liabilities. The Company’s principal

financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and short-term deposits/ loan that derive directy from its operations.

The Compauy is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior

management is supported by a Risk Management Compliance Board that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the

Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies
and procedures and that financial risks ave identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The management reviews and

agrees policies for managing each of these ris

s, which are summarised below.

I. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types

of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market nisk include . deposits.

the sensiovaty analyses of the above mentioned risk m the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-
financial assets and liabilites of foreign operations. The analysis for contingent liabilides is provided in Note 24.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

- The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilitics held at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.
A, Lnterest rate risk

Interest rate tisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucrate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s
exposure o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debr obligations with floating interest rates. However the risk 1s very low due 10

negligible borrowings by the Company.

Increase/ Effect on profit
decrease in basis before tax
points
(' Rs in Lacs)
31-Dec-21
INR +0.5% -20.59
INR - (L3% 20.59
31-Dec-20
INR + (1.5% 977
INR -0.5% 9.77

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently obscrvable market environment, showing a significandy higher
volaulity than in prior years.

B, Forejgn cnrrengy sensitivity
Foreign currency ris

is the 1isk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in exchange rates. Foreign currency risk senstivity
is the impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The following rables demonstrate the sensitivity to 2
reasonably possible change in USD and EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Change in Effect on profit
Foreign currency before tax
rate

(" Rs in Lacs)

31-Dec-21 5% 205.87
5% -205.87
31-Dec-20 3% 96.31
5% <96.31

The movement in the pre-tax effect on profit and loss is a result of a change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments not designated in a hedge relationship and
monetary assets and labilinies denominated in INR, where the functional currency of the entity ts a currency other than INR.
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1L Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial los
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily wrade receivables) and from its financing activides, including deposits with banks and financial institutions.

The Company is exposed

Credit risk from investments with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the Treasury functions in accordance with the management policies. Investments of
surplus funds are only made with approved counterparties who meet the appropriate rating and/or other criteria, and are only made within approved limits. The
management continually re-assess the Company's policy and update as required. The limits arc set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial
toss through counterparty failure.

A Trade receipables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and contvol relating to customer credit risk managemest.
Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit review and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored.

Atthe year end the Company does not have any significant concentrations of bad debt risk other than that disclosed in note 8.

An impaivment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The calculation is based on historical data. The masimum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 29. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company
evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to ade receivables as low, as its customers are focated in several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

B. Finanzal instryments and cash deposils

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institudons is managed by the Company’s treasuty department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments
of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties.

III. Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between condnuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts,

The aable below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contracwal undiscounted payments.

Less than 1 year 1to5 years > 5 years Total
Year ended
31-Dec-21
Borrowings - 4,117.37 - 4,117.37
Lease liabilines 90.83 123.76 - 214.59
Trade payables 1,078.00 - - 1,078.00
Other financial liabilides 4.56 - - 4.56
1,173.39 4,24L.13 - 5,414.52
Year ended
31-Dec-20
Borrowings 28.60 1,926.24 - 1,954.84
Lease habilities 86.51 214.59 - 301.10
Trade payables 1,033.26 - - 1,033.26
Other financial labiliges 2176 - - 21.76
1,170.12 2,140.84 - 3,310.96

IV. Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterpartics are engaged in similar business activities, ot activities in the same geographical region, or have cconomic features
thar would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, potitical or other condigons. Concentrations indicate the

relative seositivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular indus
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32 Capital Management

The objective of the Company’s capital management structure is to ensure that thete remains sufficient liquidity within the Company to carry out committed

31 December 31 December 2020
2021
Total Liabilities 6,142.09 3,836.20
Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,813.32 1,131.37
Net debts 4,328.77 2,704.83
Total equity 8878.73 6108.61
Gearing ratio (%) 48.8% 44.3%

33 Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

The Company has no outstanding derivative instrument at the year end. The amount of foreign currency exposure that are not hedged by derivative

31 December 2021 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 2020

Particulars Currency ForeignLCurrency (In (Rs in Lacs) Foreign Currency (In (Rs in Lacs)
acs) Lacs)

Liabilities
IndusInd BANK (CAPEX) EURO 48.45 4,117.37 21.58 1,926.24
Interest Payable EURO 0.05 4.56 0.18 16.08
Trade Payable UsD 8.27 614,14 7.70 562.11
Trade Payable EURO 1.20 101.89 - -
Assets
T'rade Receivable Usp 17.03 1,265.53 11.36 829.75
HDFC Bask (EEFC A/¢) UsD 6.23 462.90 4.28 31241
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4)

i)

i)

iv)

v)

B)

Related party disclosures

In accordance with the Accounting Standards (Ind AS-24) on Related ¥

significant influence and, where transactions have taken place during the year, alongwith description of relationship as identified, ave given below:-

Holding / Fellow Subsidiarigs*

Varun Beverages Lid

Angelica Technologies Private Limited

Varun Beverages (Nepal) Private Limited
Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) Limited
Varun Beverages Morocco SA

Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited;

Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited
M/s Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt.) Lid.

Devyani Food Industries Limited

Entities with joint control or significant influence over
the entity *

O Lunarmech Investments & Holdings

© American Precoat Speciality Pvt. Ltd.

© M/S Varun Beverages Ltd

IEntities in which director are interested*
O Vivek Gupta (HUF)

IReImive of Key management personnel :
© Shalini Gupta

Key Managerial Personnel*
© Vivek Gupta
@ Praveen Jain

Holdmg w.e.f04/11/2019 (Refer Note 43)
Holding before merger (Refer Note 43)
Fellow Subsidiary w.e.f 04/11/2019, Associate prior to 04/11/2019
Fellow Subsidiary w.e.f 04/11/2019, Associate prior to 04/11/2019
Fellow Subsidiary w.e.f 04/11/2019, Associate prior to 04/11/2019
Fellow Subsidiary w.e.£ 04/11/2019, Associate prior to 04/11/2019
Fellow Subsidiary w.e.f 04/11/2019, Associate prior to 04/11/2019
Fellow Subsidiary

Subsidiary of ultimate parent company w.e.£ 04/11/2019

upto 10/09/2019
upto 10/09/2019
upto 03/11/2019

Whole time director
Chief Financtal Qfficer

* With whom the company has transactions during the current year and/or previous year.

Transactions during the year

Party Disclosures, where control exists and where key management personnel are able to exercise

Description Relationship Entities with joint Entities with joint
control or significant | control or significant
influence over the | influence over the entity
entity

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Mr.Vivek Gupta Whole time director - 35.05
Pyrchase Of Rm/Pm
M/$ Varun Beverages Lid Holding 1,258.74 551.92

I X X 1
M/S Varun Beverages 1.td Holding 0.69 .01
Remuneration paid to KMP
Mr. Vivek Gupta Key Managerial Personnel 129.00 84.00
Mr. Praveen Jain Key Managerial Personnel 16.20 13.88
le of Finished g f Discoun

M/$ Varun Beverages Ltd Holding 10,913.78 6,160.21
M/s Varun Beverages Zimbabwe) (Private) Lid Fellow Subsidiary 1,524.62 1,622.28
M/s Varun Beverages Moroceo SA Fellow Subsidiary 342.51 388.03
M/s Varun Beverages (Zambia) Lid Iellow Subsidiary 416.63 120.12
M/s Varun Beverages (Lanka) Pve Led Fellow Subsidiary 285.34 184.62
M/s Varun Beverages Nepal Pyt. Lid., Nawalprasi Nepal Fellow Subsidiary 5.47 +.51
M/s Ole Springs Bottders (Pyt) Lid. Fellow Subsidiary 23.11 20.40
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Leases

A. Leases where the Company is a lessee

The Company has taken buildings on lease for Factory & Wharehouse. Lease payments are generally fixed as defined in agreement and average lease term is 5 years.

i. Right-of-use asset

Right-of-use assets related to leased properties that do not meet the definidon of investment propetty are presented on face of balance sheet below property, plant and

equipment.

Opeaing balance {refer note 3B)

Additions
Depreciaton

Impairment

Closing balance as at 31 December 2021
ii. For lease liabilities refer note 13

iii. Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Depreciation

Interest on lease liabilities
Expense relating to short term lease/variable lease payments not included in the me:
Net impact on statement of profit and loss

iv. Amounts recognised in the cash flow statement

Payment for finance cost

Principal repayments
Total cash outflows

31/12/2021t 31/12/2020
Buildings Buildings
235.03 210.03

- 130.25

(71.50) -105.25
163.53 235.03

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
71.50 71.30
2251 28.36
144 1.44
95.45 10130

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
2251 28.36
63.87 33.34
86.38 6L70

v. Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment, vehicles & others and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in

profitor loss.

Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise [T equipment and small items of office furniture.

vi. The average effectve interest rate contracted approximates 10.00 per cent.




C) '

Balances outstanding as at the year end

Description

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Mr. Vivek Gupta Key Managerial Personnel 7.96 4.85
M/S Varun Beverages Ltd Holding 1,190.82 1,042.37
M/s Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd Fellow Subsidiary 423.94 307.78
M/s Varun Beverages Moroceo SA Fellow Subsidiary - 9449
M/s Varun Beverages (Zambia) Lid Fellow Subsidiary 234.88 50.27
M/s Varun Beverages (Lanka) Pyt Lid Fellow Subsidiary 151.92 3.64
Varun Beverages Nepal Pyt Lid., Nawalprasi Nepal Fellow Subsidiary - -
M/s Ole Springs Bottlers (Pve) Led. Fellow Subsidiary 26.03
Provision for doubtful debts/expenses recognised during the NIL, NIT,

period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related
parties.
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Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars 31 December 31 December
2021 2020
) R
Contingent liabilities:
In respect of TDS defaults (As per 26A8 Statement). Ni Nil
Capital commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 917.04 2,228
provided for (net of advances)
Letters of Credit opened in favour of inland/overseas suppliers - 1,927

| 917.04 | 4,154.52 |

Balances appearing under Sundry Debtors, Loans and advances, sundry creditors and other liabilities in various schedules are subject to confirmation/
reconciltations.

In the opmion of the Management current assets, loans and advances have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated except where indicated otherwise.

The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Plastic (PP) Closures. 'The Company is managed organizationally as a unified entity with various functional
heads reporting to the top management and is not organized along product lines. There are therefore, no separate segments within the company as defined
by Ind As -108 (Segmental Reporting) issued by ICAL

The company is required to form a committee on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of Companies Act 2013 and required to spend
2% of its average net profits during the three immediately preceding financial years. Relevant information is given hereunder:

Particulars 31 December 31 December
2021 2020

Amount required to be spent for the year on CSR activities as per section 135(5) of]

companies Act 2013 26.48 19.73

Carry forward from previous year 43.36 32.63

Gross amount required to be spent 69.84 52.36

Amount spent during the year 39.86 9.00

Unspent amount 29.98 43.36

Value of imported/indigenous raw material and packing material consumed and the

percentage of cach to total consumption:-

Particulars Y% 12/31/2021 % 12/31/202

RAW MATERIAL

- Imported 78.52 6,521.19 72.41 3,110.48

- Indigenous 2148 1,783.59 27.59 1,185.02
8,304.78 4,295.50

Particulars Y% 12/31/2021 Y% 12/31/2020

Packing Material

- Imported - - - -

- Indigenous 100 492.64 100 203.90




42 Impact of COVID.19 og the company

Covid 19 pandeic is stll there and its #mpact on working of the company is uncertain, The
aceination, gradual deccease in covid cases, the natere of businesy and the products company

various reans from the tegulators/govesnments, there are no reason w believe that curr
COMDABY to maintain its pormal business operations including the assessment
pendemic will impact working of the company, is highly uncertuin,

43
3} The National Company Law Tribunal, Spedial Bench, New

b) Pursuant o Schesme a5 afosesaid, 739980 squity shares of the cu
cunezllod and fesh shases were subsequoatly issued by the company in ratio of 98 equity
twansferor company to the erstwhile sharcholders of transferos company. 735000 Shaces

&) &5 per the requirements of Appendix C of Ind As 103 * Business Combination”

the eansferor company at their respective canrying amount and cancelbation of inve
66 Lac was recognised in capual reserve.

d) The Authorized Shage Capitad of the Transfeepr Corpuny amounting o Rs 10 lac
Compuny as per the Schume,

# Eamings per share (EPS)

is dealing in, and steps

Dielhi has approved the scheme of amalga
(Transferor Company) with Lunarmech Technologies Private Limited (Transferer Company)
arder dated 22/05/2020 fled with ROC 07/07/2020. The amalpmation was proposed in or

ropany, which wece hed by Angelica Ty echoologics P Lid (chrcsenu'ng 7%
shares of transferee company for every 10 shares

were issued a5 aforesaid amounting to Re.73.50 I

+ nce the armilgamation is o business
coramon conatrol, the secounting of business combination was doge using “Pooling of interest method®,

<5 was merged 1o form new Authorized Share C

gement is of the view that wich che pickup in global

1 being taken to provide support by
any sigaificant impact on the ability of the
mpray. However, the extent 1o which the

ration of Angelica Technnlogies Private Limited
with effect Eom the appointed dare ic. 1°

Apri, 2019 vide
der 10 achieve business and administzarive

Synergies.

o,

Yo share), were

held in
cs.

combimmtion of entties under
After transfer of all assets, babilives & reserves of
stment in the books of wansferor company, the residual amount of R,

apitad of the Transferce

Pasticulure Year ended Yeur endeg
31 December 31 December
2024 2020

Profit/ Loss) for the year 3,600.99 2,142.64
Less: Provision for Income 1ax §35.94 574.64
Less: Iocome Tax Adjustrment 2047 23,85
Less :Defecred Tax ~-25.30 ~35.30
Profit/ ILoss) antributable 1 the Equity Shareholders — (&) 2,769.87 1,575.48
Basic /Weighted average number of Equity Shares ousstanding during the pear (B) Refer 995,620 995,020
Note-43)

Nominal valae of Equity Shares (Rs) 10 1
Basic/Diduted Harrangs per shace {Rg) = {(AY/ (13 27837 158,74

nerms of pur report of even darke annexed
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